CENTER FOR DISCOVERY

[ransforming Lives

Steven W. Lazarus

Associate Health Care Analyst
Connecticut Department of Public Health
410 Capitol Avenue

Hartford, CT 06134
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Dear Steve,

I am pleased to submit Discovery Practice Management’s application for a Certificate of Need for our
second Mental Health Residential Living Center to provide residential treatment for women with eating
disorders at 1320 Mill Hill Road, Southport, CT 06890. The house will provide therapeutic support 24
hours a day, 7 days a week, to no more than 6 individuals at one time. Discovery Practice Management,
aka Center for Discovery, is one of the nation’s leading providers in residential treatment for eating
disorders.

Enclosed you will find our application for a Certificate of Need. | have also included the edits, questions,
and additional information provided in response to our first CON, in order to help expedite the process.
This application is to provide the exact same services as with our first CON, just at a new location. Our
existing facility in Fairfield is running at capacity and we have a waitlist that is several months long. Our
hope is that we can open this second facility and help alleviate the wait time of the clients who
desperately need help.

Please feel free to contact me at any time for responses to questions or concerns with the application.
Thank you for your help and we look forward to working with your department again.

Best regards,

//—"‘"’
Tim Davis, CFA

Director of Business Development
Center for Discovery

4281 Katella Avenue, Suite 111
Los Alamitos, CA 90720
714-947-7357 (OFFICE)
806-438-3505 (CELL)
714-828-1868 (FAX)
lim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com
vww.cenlerfordiscovery.com

4281 Katella Ave - Suite 111 - Los Alamitos, CA 90720

800-760-3934 - www.centerfordiscovery.com




AFFIDAVIT

Applicant: __Discovery Practice Management, Inc. dba “Center for Discovery
Eating Disorder Program, Southport

Project Title: Center for Discovery Eating Disorder Program, Southport
[, _Dr. Craig M. Brown , CEO
(Individual's Name) (Position Title —~ CEO or CFO)

of Discovery Practice Management, Inc. being duly sworn, depose and state that
(Hospital or Facility Name)

Discovery Practice Management, Inc's information submitted in this Certificate of
(Hospital or Facility Name)

Need Application is accurate and correct to the best of my knowledge.

)/~ /3- Zo)S
Signature A Date

Subscribed and sworn to before me on/@ﬂ% %//JW%” =
Sttt /% PNS

Notary Public/Commissioner of Superior Court

My commission expires:




Instructions:

1. Please check each box below, as appropriate; and
2. The completed checklist /17151 be submitted as the first page of the
CON application.

/

}Q. Attached is the CON application filing fee in the form of a
certified, cashier or business check made out to the “Treasurer
State of Connecticut” in the amount of $500.

For OHCA Use Only:

TP Rl 22
Docket No.: __J§~ 33,2(_?_‘}2 CONIcheck No.: __g@_}
OHCA Verified by:f"s&;f) ) Date: __ |\ ,! L

gf_ Attached is evidence demonstrating that public notice has been
published in a suitable newspaper that relates to the location of
the proposal, 3 days in a row, at least 20 days prior to the
submission of the CON application to OHCA. (OHCA requests
that the Applicant fax a courtesy copy to OHCA (860) 418~
7053, at the time of the publication)

Attached is a paginated hard copy of the CON application
including a completed affidavit, signed and notarized by the
appropriate individuals.

Attached are completed Financial Attachments I and II.

Submission includes one (1) original and four (4) hard
copies with each set placed in 3-ring binders.

BB R

Note: A CON application may be filed with OHCA electronically
through email, if the total number of pages submitted is 50
pages or less. In this case, the CON Application must be

emailed to chca@ct.aov.

Important: For CON applications(less than 50 pages) filed
electronically through email, the singed affidavit and the check
in the amount of $500 must be delivered to OHCA in hardcopy.

/@_ The following have been submitted on a CD

1. A scanned copy of each submission in its entirety, including
all attachments in Adobe (.pdf) format.

2. An electronic copy of the documents in MS Word and MS
Excel as appropriate.
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Discovery Practlica Management
is_applying for a Cartificate of
Need pursuant to section 19a-638
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State of Connecticut
Office of Health Care Access
Certificate of Need Application
Instructions: Please complete all sections of the Certificate of Need (“CON")
application. If any section or question is not relevant to your project, a response of “Not
Applicable” may be deemed an acceptable answer. If there is more than one applicant,

identify the name and all contact information for each applicant. OHCA will assign a
Docket Number to the CON application once the application is received by OHCA.

Docket Number:

Applicant: Discovery Practice Management, Inc. dba “Center for Discovery”

Contact Person: Tim Davis

Contact Person’s Director of Business Development

Title:

Contact Person’s 4281 Katella Ave. Suite 111, Los Alamitos, CA 90720
Address:

Contact Person’s 714-947-7357

Phone Number:

Contact Person's 714-828-1868

Fax Number:

Contact Person’s tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com

Email Address:

Project Town: Fairfield

Project Name: Center for Discovery, Southport
Statute Reference: Section 19a-638, C.G.S.
Estimated Total

Capital Expenditure: $0




1. Project Description: New Service (Behavioral Health/Substance Abuse)
a. Please provide a narrative detailing the proposal.

Center for Discovery proposes the opening of a 6 bed Mental Health Residential Living Center
for adulf women (ages 18+} who suffer from eating disorders such as anorexia, bulimia and
binge-eating disorder. Center for Discovery has a proprietary program operating throughout the
country that specfalizes in the treatment of eating disorders. While at the Center, residents
undergo one-on-one therapeutic freatment 3-4 times per week and they participate in over 30
therapeutic groups per week. A physician and psychiatrist check on every client once a week
fo ensure medical stability is maintained and improving and to make any adjustments to
medications that are needed. The Center also provides an intensive dietary program that
involves weekly one-on-one meetings with a dietitian, meal prep, food logs, restaurant outings
to deal with high anxiely behaviors, etc. Center for Discovery is contracted with private pay
insurers nationwide.

Mission Statement

Discovery is the process of uncovering and revealing that which had been previously
unknown. We at Discovery choose as our Mission to provide an infensive therapeutic
experience aimed at profoundly and creatively facilitating behavioral, emotional, and spiritual
growth for individuals and their families. In addition, Discovery combines the finest traditional
inpatient approaches with creative, innovafive and individualized interventions at a
substantially reduced, cost efficient fee, and positions our therapeutic experience at the
forefront of eating disorder treatment.

Popufation to be served

Center for Discovery Residential Eating Disorder Program, Southport will be designed to
treat adult women afflicted with eating disorders. Our clients have an eating disorder (anorexia,
bulimia, binge-eating) as their primary diagnosis. Often, our clients have secondary or co-
oceurring diagnosis including depression, anxiety, efc.

Program Description

The eating disorder program is designed to treat female women who suffer from
anorexia, bulimia and binge eating disorders. The program is accredited by the Joint
Commission. Clients must be medically stable as determined by our medical physician in order
to be cleared for admission into the treatment program. While our clients are admifted based
on a primary diagnosis of an eating disorder, many of these clients do have various secondary
mental health diagnosis. Our therapeutic environment is designed fo freat the client as a whole
and our therapists are trained fo deaf with multi-fevel problems and family systems. However,
we do not admit clients with psychotic disorders or a history of aggressive behavior.

The average length of stay is 40 days. A client is deemed appropriate for discharge when
the treatment team determines the client abie to sustain treatment gains and maintain current
stability and recovery with an outpatient team consisting of a physician, psychiatrist, diefitian
and psychotherapist,




The program is designed to provide an intermediate level of care between acute inpatient
care and oufpatient care. The National Task Force on Eating Disorders has identified
residential treatment of eating disorders as an effective and necessary level of infervention in
the treatment of more severe and treatment resistant disorders. If has been established that
eating disorders that remain untreated resulf in the premature termination of life and are one of
the leading causes of death for adofescent females.

The team at Center for Discovery consists of a physician, psychiatrist, dietitian,
psychotherapist, registered nurses, and counselors. Each resident receives three fo four
psychotherapy sessions each week with a minimum of one being a family psychotherapy
session. They will receive a minimum of one weekly consulf with the psychiatrist, physician,
and diefitian. Additional treatment components include psycho-educational group therapy,
discharge planning, exercise therapy and recreational activities, exposure response
prevention, and a variety of activities including art and music therapy.

Residents work through a treatment “phase system” and follow an individualized treatment
plan that monitors their progress on a weekly basis. The program is designed fo promote
improved family inferactions, social supports along with personal age appropriate
independence including self-responsibility for their recovery. Funding for treatment generally
comes from private insurance or through family resources for a private pay agreement.

2. Clear Public Need
a. Provide the following regarding the proposal’s location:
i. The rationale for choosing the proposed service location;

The Connecticut population is underserved by eating disorder specialist centers. Currently,
there is only one residential center for adulls in the greater Connecticut area. We,
Discovery, operate this other center and our waitlist is several months fong. We have a
facility in Southport we would like to utilize as a second treatment home for the many
women that are on our waiting list and needing this life-saving treatment,

ii. The service area towns and the basis for their selection;

The service will occur in Fairfield/Southport, CT. Center for Discovery has a great
refationship with local officials in Fairfield. Currently, the Center operates two adolescent
facilities and one adult facility in the Fairfield jurisdiction and is confident about the focal
support and need in this area. The site under consideration currently operates as a
residential treatment center with approval from the city.

iii. The population to be served, including specific evidence such as incidence,
prevalence, or other demographic data that demonstrates need;

The population served will be adult women (ages 18+) who suffer from eating
disorders such as anorexia, bulimia, and binge-eating disorder that require a
residentiaf treatment level of care.




Our current program in Fairfield opened in April of this year. It quickly ramped up fo
capacity census and we have a 3 month waitlist of clients waiting to get in.

Eating Disorders occur in approximalely 10% of the female population with that
number going as high as 30% during college years (age 18-24). (See aftached
articles). 4% of individuals suffering from Anorexia will die from complications refated
to the disease while approximately 3.9% of bulimics will die. Based off these statistics
and the attached Fairfield County Metrics, 1% of the adult women between the ages of
16-65 will require our leve! of treatment, this projects approximately 2700 women in the
Fairfield county area and 10,600 women in Connecticut overall, If we adjust the
numbers downward and assume only 33% of those clients in need actually seek and
receive freatment, we are still left with 891 women in Fairfield County and 3,512
women in Connecticut who require treatment for an eafing disorder af the residential
level, Qur existing program has a maximum capacity of about 50 patients a year,

iv. How and where the proposed patient population is currently being served;

Currently, the proposed population has only one residential treatment site in the state
of Connecticut. That is our Center for Discovery, Fairfield facility. The other nearest
residential providers for adulfs are in Boston, New York, and Phifadelphia.

v. All existing providers (name, address, services provided) of the proposed
service in the towns listed above and in nearby towns; and

Closest providers of aduff residential treatment:

Center for Discovery Fairfield — 4536 Congress St. Fairfield, CT 06824
Renfrew Treatment Center — 475 Spring Lane, Philadelphia, PA 19128
Cambridge Eating Disorder Program - 3 Bow Street, Cambridge, MA 02138

vi, The effect of the proposal on existing providers, explaining how current
referral patterns will be affected by the proposal.

Existing providers will be provided the opportunity to refer their clients to a highly
specialized level of care thaf does not exist for the community. This offers a great step-
down platform for In-Patient Psych units to refer to as patients are discharged and offers a
higher leve! of care for out-patient practictioners outside of the hospital.

3. Projected Volume

a. Complete the following table for the first three fiscal years (“FY”) of the
proposed service.

Table 1: Projected Volume




Projected Volume
(First 3 Full Operational FYs)**
FY2014 | FY2015 | FY2016 | FY2017
Residential Treatment for Eating Disorders
Total Clients per Year N/A 35 42 49
Total 35 42 49

#* If the first year of the proposal is only a partial year, provide the first partial year and then the first three

full FYs. Add columns as necessary.

*#*% Identify each service/procedure type and add lines as necessary.
¥*%% Fill in years. In a footnote, identify the period covered by the Applicant’s FY (e.g. July 1-June 30,

calendar year, etc.).

b. Provide a detailed description of all assumptions used in the derivation/calculation
of the projected volumes.

Projections are conservative estimates based off historical company data. Average lengths of
stay for adult women with eating disorders are just over 40 days. In the state of Connecticut,
our adolescent facilities run over 90% occupancy rates throughout the year and our existing
adult facility has been running at 100% occupancy for several months. For a 6 bed facility with
90% occupancy and 40 day stays, this makes an average census of 49 which should be
achieved after enough time has elapsed for marketing efforts and outreach fo take full effect.
The projected numbers are actually a conservative estimate of operation volumes.

¢. Provide historical volumes for three full years and the cutrent year to date for any
of the Applicant’s existing services that support the need to implement the
proposed service.

Our adult facility in Fairfield that opened in April, 2015 took onfy 3 months to reach capacity
census, and since then has run at occupancy levels between 90-100%.

d. Provide a copy of any articles, studies, or reports that support the statements made
in this application justifying need for the proposal, along with a brief explanation
regarding the relevance of the selected articles.

See Aftached "Atticles” Section

Center for Discovery’s outcome data shows the resufts of our proprietary treatment method
over our 18 years of ireating eating disorders.

Eating Disorder Statistics & Research — This article discusses the prevalence of eating
disorders within the general community. If goes into detail of the percentage of the
population that struggles with each of the different diagnoses of eating disorders

The Prevalence and Correlates of Eating Disorders in the National Comorbidity Survey
Replication ~ Discusses both the reported frequency of severe eating disorder cases and
also the comorbidity issues that are often related fo the ealing disorder.

4. Quality Measures
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a. Submit a list of all key professional, administrative, clinical, and direct service
personnel related to the proposal. Attach a copy of their Curriculum Vitae.

See "Resumes” attachment

Also, below is an outline of the different job roles associated with a treatment home.

Staffing Plan
: - The program is overseen by a Program Direclor, who works full-ime on-site at the facility

location. The Program Director reports to the Director of Operations and communes on 2
daily basis.

-~ The Program Director leads a mulfi-disciplinary freatment team for the facilify. The team is
composed of a Physician, Psychialrist, Primary Therapist, Diefitian, and Facility
Administrator. The team convenes on a weekly basis to assess each client and modify and
design unique treatment plans for each individual client.

- In addition o the treatment team, each facility has Registered Nurses, 2-3 dief techs, and
12-15 counselors on staff.

- The facifity is monitored 24 hours through rofafing shifts of counselors. During nighttime
hours, a counselor is always awake and performing bed checks throughout the night.

- Staff Descriptions and credentials

o The Pragram Direclor is rasponsible for the supervision of the treatment program

and facilify. He/She consults with the Operations Director and the Chiof of
Operations on an as needed hasis fo ensure the best, maost efficient ufilization of
program and company resources. The Program Director closely supervises all
services fo assure they are delivered in keeping with the Discovery Mission
statement. Masters Degree required. Two years experience in residential or
hospital setting.

o The Physician is responsible fo ensure appropriate medical inferventions. The
Fhysician sees each resident and completes a history and physical assessment.
If indicated, medications are prescribed, and monitored by the Physician af least
once weekly. The Physician consulfs with the treatment tearn and may attend the
treatment planning meelings if indicated. Must be a graduate of an approved
medical school and licensed in the state of Connecticut, Eligible for membership
in the local branch of the State Medical Sociefy.

o The Psychiatrist is responsible to consuft with the DD, DOOQ, and COO fo ensure
appropriate psychiatric/pharmacological inferventions. The Psychiatrist sees
each resident and completes a psychiatric assessment. If indicafed, medications
are prescribed, and monitored by the Psychialrist at least once weekly. in
addition, the Psychiatrist consuifs with the treatment team and affends the weekly
treatment planning meelings. Must be a graduafe of an approved medical school
and licensed in the state. Must be eligible for membership in the local branch of
the State Medical Society. Must be experienced in adolescent psychiatry and
freatment.

o The Primary Therapist provides and oversees freatment services as defined in the
daily schedule and assists with supervision and facilify management. The
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combined responsibilities of clinical and administrative supervision/management
are key to the success of the treatment facility. The Primary Therapist must
possess a Masters Degree or Doctorate in an appropriate field with Licensure.
The Center for Discovery utilizes MFT and LCSW interns and psychological
assistants under the supervision of an appropriate Licensed Independent
Practitioner. The Primary Therapist must have at least one year in acute care or
residentiaf treatment or closely related experience.

The Registered Dietitian is responsible to consult in a collaborative fashion with
treatment team to ensure the best standard of nutrifion and dietary services. The
Registered Dietitian is responsible for all the diefary services in addifion to
overseeing the Dietary component within the program. Responsibilities include
training new RD's, dietary support and supervision, grocery budget allocation,
nutrition component design, creation of original class protocols and working in
coltaboration with the Program Director to provide dietary employee reviews and
support. The Registered Dietitian must have a Master's Degree with appropriate
emphasis, state registration, American Digtetic Association certification and
Servsafe certification. The Registered Dietitian must have five years experience in
dietary education and management.

The Counselor is responsible for assisting and supporting residents through the
entire treatment experience from admission through discharge. The Counselor
monitors the course of treatment for each resident in a pro-active manner to
ensure that no problem or trouble may compromise the resident’s or treatment
staff's effort. The Counsefor is responsible for contributing insightful, practical, and
meaningful information to the freatment planning process. The Counsefor
introduces each new resident to his/her feflow residents and the treatment staff
orfentates each resident to the Discovery Treatment Program, orients the resident
with the rules, expectations, infent, and routine of the daily treatment schedule.
The Counselor must have a Bachelor's degree or sufficient experience in an
appropriate fiefd and must be willing fo aftend alf training, education, and staff
enrichment aclivifies,

The Registered Nurse consults with the Physician and Psychiatrist to ensure
appropriate medical interventions. The RN meets with each resident and
completes a daily nursing progress nofe and devefops a Nursing Care Plan
specific fo the identified needs of each resident. The RN is responsible to carry
out any orders received from the Physician and Psychiatrist and atfends freatment
team as indicated. Education: As required for Licensure. Experience; Must be
experienced in psychiatric nursing.

The Diet Technician is responsible to consult with the registered Dietifian and the
Treatment Team refative to clients menu planning and challenges and obstacles.
The Diet Tech plans each client’s daily menu planning and menu correcting. The
Diet Tech follows dietary instructions from the Registered Diefitian in preparing
maeals to meet each client's diefary needs and preferences. The Diet Tech acts
as an assistant to the Registered Diefitian and assists the weekly dietary group.
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b.

Current student in a dietary or Diet Technician training program, DTR preferred.
Prior experience not reguired.

Explain how the proposal contributes to the quality of health care delivery in the region.

Residential treatment helps to bridge the gap between patients coming off fedding tubes or
medical weight restoration and continue the appropriate weight gain while stilf providing the 24
hour supervision that an Out-Patient center cannot provide. Clients are more likely to stcceed in
treatment if they move through all phases of the levels of care. The initiation of residential care in
the area should help lower the number of in-patient stays and help prevent clients from cycling
hack and forth between In-Patient and Out-Patient levels,

S. Organizational and Financial Information

a.

Identify the Applicant’s ownership type(s) (e.g. Corporation, PC, LLC, etc.).
Corporation

Does the Applicant have non-profit status?
[] Yes (Provide documentation) <] No

Provide a copy of the State of Connecticut, Department of Public Health
license(s) currently held by the Applicant and indicate any additional licensure
categories being sought in relation to the proposal.

See attached

Financial Statements

i. Ifthe Applicant is a Connecticut hospital: Pursuant to Section 19a-644,
C.G.S., each hospital licensed by the Department of Public Health is required

to file with OHCA copies of the hospital’s audited financial statements. If the
hospital has filed its most recently completed fiscal year audited financial
statements, the hospital may reference that filing for this proposal.

ii. Ifthe Applicant is not a Connecticut hospital (other health care facilities):

Audited financial statements for the most recently completed fiscal year. If
audited financial statements do not exist, in lieu of audited financial
statements, provide other financial documentation (e.g. unaudited balance
sheet, statement of operations, tax return, or other set of books.)

Submit a final version of all capital expenditures/costs as follows:
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Capital Expenditures are N/A because the facifity is already owned and operated by Center for
Discovery. Center for Discovery Is looking to move the current business (adolescent care) fo a new
location and all equipment and capital needs have afready been purchased for the facility.

Table 2: Proposed Capital Expenditures/Costs

Medical Equipment Purchase

IN/A

Imaging Equipment Purchase

Non-Medical Equipment Purchase

Land/Building Purchase *

Construction/Renovation **

Other Non-Construction (Specify)

Total Capital Expenditure (FCE)

SN/A

Medical Equipment Lease (Fair Market Value) ***

$N/A

Imaging Equipment Lease (Fair Market Value) *##

Non-Medical Equipment Lease (Fair Market Value) ***

Fair Market Value of Space ***

Total Capital Cost (TCC)

SN/A

Total Project Cost (TCFE + TCC)

$N/A

Capitalized Financing Costs (Informational Purpose Only)

Total Capital Expenditure with Cap. Fin. Costs

$0

* If the proposal involves a land/building purchase, attach a real estate property appraisal including the

amount; the useful life of the building; and a schedule of depreciation.

** If the proposal involves construction/renovations, attach a description of the proposed building work,
including the gross square feet; existing and proposed floor plans; commencement date for the
constructiony renovation; completion date of the construction/renovation; and commencement of operations

date.

**% If the proposal involves a capital or operating equipment lease and/or purchase, attach a vendor quote
or invoice; schedule of depreciation; useful fife of the equipment; and anticipated residual value at the end

of the lease or loan term.

f.  List all funding or financing sources for the proposal and the dollar amount of
each. Provide applicable details such as interest rate; term; monthly payment;
pledges and funds received to date; letter of interest or approval from a lending

institution,

Center for Discovery Residential Eating Disorder Program, Southport will be funded by intermal
operations of Center for Discovery if the need arises. Discovery operates over 20 residential
facilities across that country that provide the cash flow if needed. Appropriate financial

documentation is atfached,

6. Patient Population Mix: Current and Projected

a. Provide the current and projected patient population mix (based on the number of
patients, not based on revenue) with the CON proposal for the proposed program.

Table 3: Patient Popuiation Mix

| | Current** | Yearl

| Year2

I Year3 |

14




FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018

Medicare*

Medicaid*

CHAMPUS & TriCare

Total Government

Commercial Insurers® 98% 98%

Uninsured 2% 2%

Workers Compensation

Total Non-Government i60% 100%

Total Payer Mix

* Includes managed care activity.

¥* New programs may leave the “current” column blank.

*** Fill in years. Ensure the period covered by this table corresponds to the period covered in the
projections provided.

b. Provide the basis for/assumptions used to project the patient population mix.

Assumptions are based off the current payer mix af our existing Connecticut adult and

adolescent facifities. Most of our business is done through private pay commercial insurers
with a few patients coming to us without insurance. These ratios are expected to stay refatively

consistent for the new adult house.

7. Financial Attachments [ & 11

a. Provide a summary of revenue, expense, and volume statistics, without the CON

project, incremental to the CON project, and with the CON project. Complete
Financial Attachment 1. (Note that the actual results for the fiscal year reported
in the first column must agree with the Applicant’s audited financial statements.)
The projections must include the first three full {iscal years of the project.

Actual results for fiscal year and numerical results for project without the CON are N/A as
the proposed program does not exist and will not be able to operate with a CON.

Provide a three year projection of incremental revenue, expense, and volume
statistics attributable to the proposal by payer. Complete Financial Attachment
IL. The projections must include the first three full fiscal years of the project.

See attached

Provide the assumptions utilized in developing both Financial Attachments I
and II (e.g., full-time equivalents, volume statistics, other expenses, revenue and

expense % increases, project commencement of operation date, etc.),

Assumptions:
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10 FTE’s: The house employs two full-time therapists, 1 full-time Facifity Administrator and
3-4 full-time counselors, The other counselors, diet techs and staff only work 5-15 hours
per week and constitute the other 3-4 FTE's.

Professional Contracted Services: This includes independent contractor agreements with
Physicians, Nurses, and oulside practitioners if needed. Professional services such as
Physicians are only needed for 1-5 hours per week.

Volume Stalistics: These are conservative estimates based on similar 6 bed homes we
operate throughout the country including two adofescent homes and one adult home in
Connecticut. Typical clients per year numbers range from 30-50 based on need in the
area. As Connecticut has a high need and only one other residential home, we anticipate
these numbers being higher than our projections.

Other Expenses: These are composed of projections for groceries/food supplies, auto,
gas, maintenance, fawn care, cleaning services and general maintenance and repair.

Project Commencement Date: Projected opening is March 1, 2016
Revenue: Based off our existing home numbets.

d. Provide documentation or the basis to support the proposed rates for each of the
FYs as reported in Financial Attachment II. Provide a copy of the rate schedule
for the proposed service(s).

We are contracted with most of the major insurance providers in the area, unfortunately,
these contracts are confidential in nature,

e. Provide the minimum number of units required to show an incremental gain from
operations for each fiscal year.

We would only need to see one additional client per year for an average length of stay in
order to show incremental operational gains.

f.  Explain any projected incremental losses from operations contained in the
financial projections that result from the implementation and operation of the
CON proposal.

N/A

g. Describe how this proposal is cost effective.

Center for Discovery already has control of the subject property and has a fulf staff in place
ready to operate. Therefore, the costs fo open and run an adulf program are minimal.
Residential treatment is meant to fill the gap between In-Patient and Out-Patient care.
Unfortunately, eating disorder patients require a very high level of supervision and monitoring
to truly affer their self-harming behaviors such as starvation or purging. Individuals that

16




discharge directly to an out-patient program from the hospital typically have very high levels of
relapse and the medical bills are a never-ending cycle of in-patient and out-patient visits.
Residential care provides the fong-term supervision and support that hospitals are unable fo
offer and provides a structured learning environment where clients can learn and praclice the
healing behaviors they will need to successful in an out-patient and at home sefting. The cost
benefit comes in long-term when these clients are able to stop the endless cycle of in-patient
and out-patient and have success at lower levels of care.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholder of
Behavioral Health Holdings Il, Inc.:

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Behavioral Health Holdings Il, Inc.
and subsidiary (collectively, the “"Company”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2014, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholder's equity
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2014, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

11444 W. Olympic Boulevard, 11" Floor, West Los Angeles, CA 90064 o 4550 E, Thousand Oaks Boulevard, Suite 100, Westlake Village, CA 91362
100 Oceangate, Suite 800, Long Beach, CA 90802 o 117 East Colorado Boulevard, 6" Floor, Pasadena, CA 91105
555 Anton Boulevard, Suite 700, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 o 15760 Ventura Boulevard, Suite 1700, Encino, CA 91436 23
400 W. Ventura Boulevard, Suite 250, Camarillo, CA 93010




Independent Auditor's Report
(Continued)

Report on the Suppiemental Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statemenis as a
whole. The accompanying consolidating balance sheet as of December 31, 2014, consolidating statement
of income and schedule of management adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization ("Management Adjusted EBITDA"} for the year ended December 31, 2014 are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and not required as part of the consolidated financial statements. This
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements.

This information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconcifing such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselvas, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a
whole.

Fotthmse Condin ;L'VEM Nigt L

Long Beach, California
April 1, 2015
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BEHAVIORAL HEALTH HOLDINGS II, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Current assets:

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2014

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 3
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Deferred income taxes
Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Deferred financing costs, net

Goodwill

Intangible assets, net

Other assets

Total assets $

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Revolving fine of credit $
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portion
Deferred income taxes
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

Shareholder's equity:
Common stock, $0.0001 par value, 1,000 shares authorized,
101 shares issued and outstanding
Retained earnings
Total shareholder's equity

Total liabilities and shareholder's equity 5

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

3

402,102
6,635,688
1,102,444

262,364

8,402,598

1,900,994
247,068
6,922,000
12,130,742
565,425

30,168,827

500,000
751,666
887,986
1,419,683

3,669,335

25,116,386
996,961

29,672,682

1
496,144

496,145
30,168,827



Treating eating
disorders since 1999,
Center for Discovery
has a strong
commitment to
evidence-based
practice. To this end,
Discovery has been
collecting data on our
clients and, in several
separate research
endeavors, has
begun to be able

to answer pertinent
questions related to
1) the process of
treatment,

2) the post-discharge
experience, and

3) the need for
readmission.

2015

'ER FOR DISCOVERY

The process of treatment:

Center for Discovery collects admission and discharge data on clients with eating disorders
and has teamed with North Shore LI and The Feinstein Institute for Biomedical Research to
analyze this de-identified data. We are especially interested in the outcome of residential
treatment for eating disorders and factors that may correlate with need for residential treat-
ment, with treatment success, and with need for readmission. Preliminary findings from the
external data analyses have been presented at both the 2015 Academy for Eating Disorders
(AED) International Conference and the 2015 Society for Adolescent Health and Medicine
(SAHM) Annual Meeting. In the interim of the full analyses, we present the following results
from data collected from clients who received residential eating disorder treatment at Center
for Discovery between January 2006 and January 2015 (N = 1,915).

GRAPH 1: Adult clients with active! anorexia (AN), who entered residential treatment?
extremely malnourished, with an average percent of ideal body weight (IBW) in the mid-70s,
had significant increases of 10.0 percentage points on average. For adolescent clients with
active AN-Restricting Type (AN-R), the mean percent of IBW increased by 14.0; for adolescent
clients with active AN-Purging Type (AN-P), mean percent of IBW increased by 12.2. These in-
creases represent an improvement from medically compromising averages of between 77.5%
and 78.6% of IBW at admission to above 90% at discharge. Reaching the benchmark of 90%
of IBW for developing adolescents is important for a number of reasons including a marked
reduction of symptoms of malnutrition® and the evidence that psychopathological symptoms
can persist for years when weight restoration is incomplete®. Furthermore, leading eating dis-
order researchers** cite slow and low weight restoration as dangerous, as it results in not just
the eventual risk of bone disease and relapse but also a decline in motivation for recovery.
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y k70
S [0} Adolescent AN-R Adolescent AN-P Adult AN-R Adult AN-P
o (n = 298) (n=77) (n=98) (n=68)

Turning to weight in pounds, during their length-of-stay® (adolescent AN-R,

m = 59.3 days, adolescent AN-P, m = 56.9 days; adult AN-R, m = 44.1 days; adult
AN-P, m = 44.4 days), Center for Discovery clients with active AN gained 2.1 pounds
per week on average - a rate of restoration that is hard to achieve at lower levels

of care and increases the likelihood of lasting recovery.” Because persistence of
low body weight predicts poorer long-term outcome® and approximately 20-25% of
individuals with AN will become chronically ill>8, Center for Discovery is committed to
timely weight restoration. '
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GRAPH 2: Center for Discovery provides the necessary structure for a swift cessation of purging behavior, a symptom
that can be difficult to extinguish in lower levels-of-care. On average, adolescents and adults with either AN-P or BN?, who
were exhibiting purge behavior upon admission, were able to reduce these behaviors by 99.0%. Furthermore, during an
average length of stay® (adolescent AN-P, m = 58,5 days; adolescent BN, m = 50.0 days; adult AN-P, m = 51.2 days; adult BN,
m = 45.8 days), the vast majority of clients (89.1%) were able to stop purging completely.
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GRAPH 3: Because Center for Discovery takes a holistic approach, symptoms of depression and anxiety are important
targets for treatment. Graph 3 presents average scores on the Beck Depression Inventory (BDI) and the Beck Anxiety
Inventory (BAl) at the time of admission and discharge for adolescent and adult clients with a diagnosis of either AN or BN,
On average, our adolescent clients entered residential treatment? at Center for Discovery within the moderate range of
depression and anxiety, whereas adult clients began treatment within the severe range for depression and anxiety.'
However, both adolescent and adult clients scored within or on the cusp of the mild range of depression and anxiety at
the time of discharge, a vast improvement in mood and related functioning, and an improvement that can strengthen
lasting recovery."
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Center for Discovery is dedicated to restoring weight, greatly reducing purge behavior, and improving mood, and we make
great strides in these areas during clients’ treatment with us. However, symptom improvement in treatment, no matter how
great, is just the first step. Lasting recovery, although built upon the foundation of the work clients do in treatment, is forged
once clients leave the structure of Center for Discovery. Thus, Discovery researchers knew following up with families after
discharge would be imperative and initiated a research project to study clients’ post-discharge experience.

www.centerfordiscovery.com 28




The post-discharge experience:;

The following information was collected from parents of our adolescent clients (n = 68) who were 6 months to 1 year

post-discharge from Center for Discavery's residential eating disorder program.

95.6 % of clients engaged in aftercare within 7 days of discharge (e.g., began PHP/IOP or attended

outpatient treatment appointments)

For clients who had been diagnosed with AN and were discharged at or above 90% of ideal body weight, 88.9% were

reported to have maintained their weight

For the clients with a history of purging, 78.6% were reported as being purge-free the month before contact

81.0% of clients who discharged to a lower level-of-care did not need to be stepped back up to a higher level of eating

disorder treatment at Discovery or any other treatment setting

Additionally, parents were asked to answer the following two questions using the below scale:

How do you feel like your child is doing compared to before they began Center for Discovery?

How do you feel like your child is doing compared to when they discharged from Center for Discovery?

Much better | Better | About the same | Worse |

Much worse

2 I 0 I

GRAPH 4: Examining the first question, the
vast majority (90.6%) of parents reported
that their child was doing better or much
better than before beginning treatment at 2
Center for Discavery. The answer to the
second question, which was designed to
measure whether improvements achieved
while in treatment were maintained after
discharge, was a bit of a surprise to our
researchers. Although we have routinely
watched clients make great strides during
their treatment, we could only hope that
clients did not backslide after leaving

the structure of Center for Discovery.
However, the data suggests that not only
are improvements maintained, but that

AVERAGE PARENT RESPONSE
o

Center for Discovery clients actually by SRRy |
continue to get better following their How do you feel How do you feel
discharge. In fact, 84.4% of parents your child is doing your child is doing

L ; compared to before compared to when
reported their child was doing better or they began they discharged from
much better since discharging from | Center for Discovery?  Center for Discovery?

Center for Discovery.

-2

2: Much Better

1: Better

0: About the Same

— -1: Worse

-2: Much Worse

In summary, 6 months to 1 year after discharge, clients who had received residential eating disorder treatment from
Center for Discovery were not only maintaining the improvements they had made in treatment, but had actually continued
to improve, with over 3 of clients with a history of purging having ceased this behavior and approximately 90% of clients

with AN having maintained their weight within a healthy range.

www.centerfordiscovery.com
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The need for readmission:

Since Center for Discovery began treating eating disorders in 1999, we have treated over 2,600 clients at the residential
level-of-care. Of those clients, only 14.7% have readmitted to Discovery's residential eating disorder program anytime in
the past 16 years. Examining readmission rates for specific time frames, 11.6% of our clients readmitted within one year
of discharge, 8.8% readmitted within 6 months, 6.2% readmitted within 90 days, and 2.7% readmitted within 30 days of

discharge. Such readmission rates are significantly lower than those typically found for a higher level-of-care for eating
disorders, which can be as high as 45.0% to 77.5%.72%2

Weight restoration
Elimination of purge behavior

imor nt Y4 Y )\ AN
Mood improvement RJZ @ QJ \/ [p Ji\.ﬂf
Post-discharge success

Low readmission rates

At Center for Discovery, we are driven to provide the most effective, evidence-based treatment experience ...and
our results speak for themselves. Through all of our research endeavors, our mission is to continuously enhance
our program, give confidence to families and clients regarding the decision to enroll, work with insurance
companies for adequate length of treatment, and lead the field in understanding treatment for eating disorders,

FOR MORE INFORMATION ABOUT CENTER FOR DISCOVERY'S
EVIDENCED-BASED TREATMENT, PLEASE CALL 866-407-2876.

www.centerfordiscovery.com

Active AN indicates clients who were below 85% of IBW upon admission to Center for Discovery.

For the purpose of the analysis for this graph, residential treatment was operationalized as having received at least 7 days of treatment at the residential
level-of-care.

Strober, M., Freeman, R, & Morrell, W., (1997). The long-term course of severe Anorexia Nervosa in adolescents: Survival analysis of recovery, relapse, and
outcome predictors over 10-15 years in a prospective study. International Journal of Eating Disorders, 22(4), 339-360.

Strober, M., & Johnson, C. (2012). The need for complex ideas in Anorexia Nervosa: Why biology, environment, and psyche all matter, why therapists make
mistakes, and why clinical benchmarks are needed for managing weight correction, International Journal of Eating Disorders, 45(2), 155-178.

s Steinhausen, H.C. (2002). The outcome of Anorexia Nervosa in the 20th century. American fournal of Psychiatry, 159, 1284-1293.
Here length-of-stay averages are only representative of those clients meeting criteria for this analysis,

Lund, B. C, Hernandez, E. R, Yates, W. R, Mitchell, J. R, McKee, P. A, & Johnson, C. L. (2009). Rate of inpatient weight restoration predicts outcome in
Anorexia Nervosa. International Journal of Eating Disorders, 42, 301-305.

Viricel, ], Bossu, C, Galusca, B, Kadem, M., Germain, N., Nicolau, A., et al. (2005). Restrospective study of Anorexia Nervosa: Reduced mortality and stable
recovery rates. La Presse Médicale, 34, 1505-1510.

? For the purpose of the analysis for Graph 2, only clients with a length-of-stay of 30 days or greater were included, as at least one month of treatment was
needed to calculate average purge episodes per month on discharge.

0 For BDI, 0-9 is minimal, 10-18 is mild, 19-29 is moderate, and 30-63 is severe. For BAI, 0-7 is minimal, 8-15 is mild, 16-25 is moderate, and 26-63 Is severe.

"' Herpertz-Dahlmann, B., Wewetzer, C,, & Remschmidt, H. (1995). The predictive value of depression in anorexia nervosa: Results of a seven-year follow-up
study. Acta Psychiatrica Scandinavica, 91(2), 114-119.

' Steinhausen, H., Grigoroiu-Serbanescu, M., Boyadijieva, S., Neumarker, K, & Metzke, C. W. (2008). Course and predictors of rehospitalization in adolescent
anorexia nervosa in a multisite study. International Journal of Eating Disorders, 41(1), 29-36.

' Lay, B, Jennen-Steinmetz, C., Reinhard, I, & Schmidt, M. H. (2002). Characteristics of inpatient weight gain in adolescent anorexia nervosa: Relation to speed
of relapse and re-admission. European Eating Disorders Review, 10(1), 22-40.
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¢ Anorexia Nervosa Statistics

* Bulimia Mervosa Statistics

o Binge Bating Disorder Statistics

¢ (General Statistics on Eating
Disorders

o Female Eating Disorder
Prevalence Rates

e Male Eating Disorder Statistics

o Prevalence Rates of Fating
Disorders in Adolescents

o Student Eating Disorder Statistics

o Prevalence of eating disorders
among athletes

e Dieting Statistics and Prevalence

Eating disorders studies, statistics and research are sttprisingly difficult to find. Occasionally you will find
websites and articles that reference a few key studies, but they are few and far between outside of university or
clinical joutnals and papers. We’ve put together some of the key stafistics on eating disorders here for our
readers.

Anorexia Nervosa Statistics

Anorexia Prevalence
e Tt is estimated that 1.0% to 4.2% of woinen have suffered fiom anorexia in their fifetime.[1]
Anorexia Mortality Rates

o Anorexia has the highest fatality rate of any mental ilness. )
o It is estimated that 4% of anorexic individuals die from complications ofthe diseasel!

Aecess to Anorexia Treatment

o Only one third of individuals struggling with anorexia nervosa in the United States obtain treatment. /4]
31




Bulimia Nervosa Statistics

Bulimia Prevalence

o Ttis estimated that up to 4% of females in the United States will have bulimia during their lifetimel).

Bulimia Mortality Rates
o 3.9% of these bulimic individuals will die. ®!
Access to Bulimia Treatment
o Ofthose practicing bulimia, only 6% obtain treatment(").

Binge Eating Disorder Statistics

Binge Eating Prevalence

it ol 'E"}i
sk Ky | Advertisement

o 2.8 % of American adults will struggle with BED during their lifetime. Close to 43% of individuals suffering
from Binge Eating Disorder will obtain treatment(®],

Binge Eating Disorder Mortality Rates
32




o 5.2% ofindividuals suffating fiom eating disorders not otherwise specified,?] the former diagnosis that
BED, armong other forms of disordered eating) was included inunder the DSM-IV) die from health
complications.

Access to Binge Fating Treatment

o Close to 43% of individuals suffering from Binge Eating Disorder will obtain treatment.[10)

General Statistics on FEating Disorders

o Rating disorders are a daily struggle for 10 million females and 1 million males in the United States.[1]

o Four out of ten individuals have either personally experienced an eating disorder or know someone who

12
has.[ L

Over a lifetime, the following percentages of women and men will experience an eating disorder:

Female Eating Disorder Prevalence Rates

o 9% of women will struggle with anorexia in their lifetime
° 1.5% of women will struggle with bulimia in their lifetime
o 3.5% of women will struggle with binge eating

Male Eating Disorder Statistics

° .3% of men will struggle with anorexia
° 5% ofmen will struggle with bulimia

o 2% of men will stuggle with binge eating disorder [13]

Prevalemce Rates of Eating Disorders in Adolescents 33




o The National Instituie of Mental Health reports that 2.7% ofteens. ages 13- 18 yeais old, stugele with an

I 14
eating chsorder.[ ]

a

Student Fating Disorder Statistics

o 50% ofteenage gitls and 30% ofteenage boys use unhealthy weight control behaviors such as skipping

meals, fasting, smoking cigareites, vomiting, and taking laxatives to control their weight.[1]

— : . ... 116
o 25% of college-aged women engage in bingeing and purging as a method of managing their welght.[ :

Prevalence of eating disorders among athletes

o 13.5% of athleies have subclinical to clinical eating disorderst??!
o 42% of female athletes competing in aesthetic sports demonstrated eating disordered behavioisH 1]

Dieting Statistics and Prevalence

o Over 50% ofteenage gitls and 33% ofteenage boys are vsing resirictive measures to lose weight at any
given time.[17]

o 46% of9-11 year-olds are sometimes, or veiy often, on diets, and 82% of their families are sometimes,
or very often, on diets).[18]

o 91% of women recently surveyed on a college caimpus had attempted to control their weight through
dieting, 22% dieted often or always.[1°]

° 95% ofall dieters will regain their lost weight in 1-5 years.[20]

o 35% ofnormal dieters progress to pathological dieting. Ofthose, 20-25% progress to partial or filll-

syndroime eating disorders.
o 25% of American men and 45% of American women are on a diet on any given day,[2!]

If youneed treatment, find an eating disorder center and talk to a professional.
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Backgiround

Little population-based data exist on the prevalence or correlates of eating disorders.

Methods

Prevalence and comrelates of eating disorders from the National Comorbidity Replication, a nationally
representative face-to~face household survey (n . 9282), conducted in 2001—2003, were assessed using the
WHO Composite International Diagnostic Interview.

Fosulis

Lifetime prevalence estimates of DSM-1V anorexia nervosa, bulimia nervosa, and hinge eating disorder are
.9%, 1.5%, and 3.5% among women, and .3% .5%, and 2.0% among inen. Survival analysis based on
retrospective age-of-onset reports suggests that risk of bulimia nervosa and binge eating disorder mereased
with successive birth cohorts. All 3 disorders are significantly cormorbid with many other DSM-IV disorders.
Lifetime anorexia nervosa is significantly associated with low current weight (body-mass index18.5), whereas
lifetime hinge eating disoxder is associated with cwirent severe obesity (hody-mass index < __ 40). Although
most respondents with 12-month bulimia nervosa and binge eating disorder report some role impairment
{data unavailable for anorexia nervosa since no respondents met ctiteria for 12-month prevalence), only a
minority of cases ever sought treatment.

Conchisions

Eating disorders, although relatively uncomnon, represent a public health concern because they are
frequently associated with other psychopathology and role impairment, and are frequently under-treated.

Keywords: Anorexia nervosa, binge eating disorder, bulimia nervosa, eating disorders, epidemiology,
national comorbidity survey replication (NCS-R)

Two eating disorders—anorexia nervosa and bulimia nervosa—are recognized as diagnostic entities in the
Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, Fourth Edition (DSM-1V) (American Psychiatric 5,




Association 1094); a third category, binge eating disorder, is proposed in DSM-IV as a possible new diagnostic
enlity. However, data are incomplele on the prevalence of these 3 disorders in the general population. The
prevalence of anorexia nexvosa has been investigated mainly in samples of young women in Europe and
North America, where the average point prevalence has been .3% (Hoek and van Hoeken 2003; Favaro el al
2004). The lifetime prevalence among adult women has been reported as .5%—.6% in 2 large population-
based surveys it the United States (Walters and Kendler 1995) and Canada (Garfinlel et al 1996); the latter
study found a prevalence of anovexia nervosa among adult men of 1%, The lifetime prevalence of bulimia
nervosa in adult women has been esiimated as 1.1%—2.8% in 3 large populationbased surveys in New Zealand
(Bushnell et al 1990), the United States (Kendler et al 1991), and Canada (Garfinkel et al 1095). For men, the
lifetime prevalence of bulimia nervosa was estimated at .1% in the Canadian study and .2% in the New
Zealand study, but the point prevalence of bulimia nervosa in a study in Austria was reported as .5% (Kinzl et
al 1900h), For the case of binge eating disorder, 2 population-based telephone interview surveys of adults in
Austria estimated the point prevalence as 3.3% among women (Iinz! et al 199ga) and .8% among men (Kinzl
et al 1909h). Other studies of binge eating disorder have been limited to specific populations (e.g., young
women) or were based only on questiorinaires, rather than personal interviews {Streigel-Moor -ank
2004; Favaro et al 2004).

Population-based interview data are needed to ascertain the prevalence of the 3 eating disorders as well as to
provide data on age-of-onset distributions, duration, and association with sociodernographics and body-mass
index (BMI). Population data could also address the question of cohort effecis—whether the incidence of
eating disorders has changed in recent decades. Also of interest is the association of eating disorders with
other mental disordexs, with measures of disahility, and with history of mental health treatment. Finally,
population-based dita may be useful in examining alternative definitions of eating disorder syndroines in
order to determine which definifions are most meaningful as markers of psychopathology. To addiess these
questions, we analyzed data from the recently completed National Comorbidity Survey Replication (NCS-R).

Maihads and Materals Go to:

Sample

The NCS-R is a nationally representative survey of the US household population that was administered face-
to-face to a sample of 9282 English-speaking adulis ages 18 and older between February 2001 and December
2003 (Kessler and Merikangas 20604). The response rate was 70.9%. The sample was based on a multi-stage
clustered area probability design. Recrvitment featured an advance letter and Study Fact Brochure followed
by in-person interviewer visits to obtain informed consent. Consent was verbal rather than written in order to
parallel the consent procedures in the baseline NCS (Kessler et al 1094). Respondents were given a $50
financial incentive for participation. The Human Subjects Committees of hoth Harvard Medical School and
the University of Michigan approved these recruitment and consent procedures. '

The survey was administered in 2 parts. Part I included the core diagnostic assessment and was administered
to all respondents. Part [T assessed additional disorders and correlates of disorders. Paxt IT was administered
to a subset of 5692 respondents consisting of all thase who met lifetime criteria for a Part I disorder plus a
probability sample of other respondents. Disorders of secondary interest were administered to probability sub-
samples of the Part 11 sample. Egting disorders were among the latter disoiders.

The analyses reported here were carried out in a sub-sample of 2080 Part IT respondents who were randomly
assigned to have an assessment of eating disorders. Data records in this subsample were weighied to adjust
for the over-sampling of Part I respondents with a mental disorder, differential probabilities of selection
within households, systematic non-response, and residual socio-demographic-geographic differences between
the sample and the 2000 Census. NCS-R sampling and weighting are discussed in more detail elsewhere

{Kessler et al 2004D).
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NCS-R diagnoses were based on Version 3.0 of the World Health Organization Composite I nternational
Diagnostic Interview (CIDI) (Kessler and Ustun 2004), a fully structured layadministered diagnostic
interview that generates diagnoses according to both 1CD-10 and DSM-1V criteria. DSM-IV criteria were used
in the current report. Cove disorders included the three broad classes of disorder assessed in previous CIDI
surveys (anxiety disorders, mood disorders, and substance disorders) plus a group of disoxders that share a
common feature of difficulties with impulse control (e.g., intermittent explosive disorder, attention-
deficit/hyperactivity disorder, retrospectively reported childhood oppositional-defiant disorder, and conduct
disorder). Diagnostic hierarchy rules and organic exclusion rules were used in making all diagnoses, As
detatled elsewhere (Kessler et al 20044, 2005), good concordance was found between these core CIDI
diagnoses and diagnoses based on the Structured Clinical Interview for DSM-IV (SCID) (Fiust ef al 2002) in a
yprobability sub-sample of NCS-R respondents who were administered clinical reappraisal interviews. The area
under the receiver operator characteristic curve was in the range of .65—.81 for anxiety disorders, .75 for
major depressive episode, .62—.88 for substance disorders, and .76 for any anxiety, mood, or substance
disorder. No clinical reappraisal interviews were carvied out for the impulse-control disorders, as these weve
not core NCS-R disordexs.

For the present study, questions from the CID] were used to assign diagnoses of anorexia nervosa, bulimia
nexvosa, and binge eating disorder based on DSM-IV criteria. The full diagnostic algorithms for all 3
disorders, together with a sensitivity analysis using alternative, narvower definitions of bulimia nervosa and
binge eaiing disorder, are presented as supplemental material available online with the electronie version of
this article and at www.hepamed harvard.edu/nes eating.phyp; the corresponding CIDI questions used to
operationalize the criteria are available at www hepamed.harvard.edu/nes.

Most of the CIDI questions closely paralleled the DSM-IV criteria, but to meet criteria for binge eating
disorder, DSM-1V requires a minimum of 6 months of regular eating binges, whereas the CIDI asked only
whether fle individual experienced 3 months of symptoms. Thus, individuals displaying more than 3 months,
but less than 6 months, of regular binge eating would be classified ag having binge eating disorder in our
algorithm, but not in DSM-1V. Also of note is that for binge eating episodes in bulimia nervosa and binge
eating disorder, DSM-IV requires assessment of loss of control, and for binge eating disoxder requires marked
distress regarding binge eating; these iterns were assessed in the CIDI by a series of questions about attitudes
and behaviors that are indicators of loss of control and of distress, rather than By divect questions.

In addition to the 3 eating disoxders, we also defined 2 provisional entities. The first was “subthreshold binge
eating disorder,” defined as a) binge eating episodes, b) occurring at least twice a week for at least 3 months,
and ¢) not occurring solely during the course of attorexia nervosa, bulimia nervosa, or binge eating disorder.
Thus, subthreshold binge eating disorder did not require DSM-1V criterion B (3 of 5 features associated with
hinge eating) or C (marked distress regarding binge eating for binge eating disorder). The second was “any
binge ¢ating,” also defined as a) binge eating episodes (again, not requiring DSM-IV criteria B and C), b},
oceurring at least twice a week for at least 3 months, but ¢) lacking the hierarchical exclusion critevion if the
individual simultaneously exhibited another eating disorder. In other words, any binge eating was diagnosed
regardless of whether or not the individual simultanecusly met criteria for any of the other 3 eating disorders
or for subthreshold binge eating disorder. This entity thus included all cases of bulimia nervosa, binge eating
disorder, and subthreshold binge eating Jisorder, as well as cases of anorexia nervosa with binge eating. Full
diagnostic algorithms for these 2 pravisional entities, together with a sensitivity analysis parallel to that
above, are presented as supplemental material available with the online version of this article and at

www . hep.med.harvard.edu/nes/ [eating,php.

[n summary, we examined a total of 5 conditions—2 official DSM-IV disorders (anorexia nervosa and
hulimia nervosa), 1 proposed DSM-IV disorder (binge eating disorder), and 2 provisional entities that partially
overlapped with 1 or more of the previous 3 disorders. Although in the following text we refer to these 5
conditions colleciively as “disorders” for simplicity, the reader should bear in mind that they vary in terms of
their level of general aceeptance. 39




As indicated above, ouy criteria allowed that individuals could display more than one lifetime diagnosis of an
eating disorder. We used data from the CIDI regarding time of onset and recency (ie., the thme when the
disorder was last present) to apply diagnostic hierarchies, so that bulimia nervosa, binge eating digorder, and
subthreshold binge eafing disorder were not diagnosed in the presence of anorexia nervosa; and so that binge
eating disorder and subthreshiold binge eating disorder weve not diagnosed in the presence of bulimia nervosa.
Because the CIDI provides information only about onset and recency of a disorder, individuals with an
episode of a given eating disorder occurring only in between two or more discrete episodes of a hierarchically
exclusionary disorder (e.g., anorexia nervosa) would not have been diagnosed with that disorder.

For individuals meeting criteria for any of the 5 five disorders, the CIDI assessed age of onset, recency, years
with the disorder, and professional help-seeking. Respondents with 12-month prevalence (that is, individuals
who met eriteria for the eating disorder at any time within the 12 months before interview) were additionally
administered the Sheehan Disability Scales (Leou et al 1997) to assess the severity of recent episodes and were
asked about treatment in the past 12 months.

Statistical Analyses

Cross-tabulations were used to estimate prevalence, disability, and treatment. The aciuarial method (Wolter
1085) was used to esiimate age-of-onset curves. Discrete-time survival analysis with the person-year as the
unit of analysis (Willett and Singer 1993} using logistic regression (Hosmer and Lemeshow 2000) wasused {o
estimate cohort effects. Logistic regression was also used to study socio-demographic coirelates and
comorbidity. Logits and their 95% confidence intexvals were converted into odd ratios by exponentiation for
ease of interpretation. Standard errors and significance tests were estimated nsing the Taylor series
linearization method (Walter 1985) implemented in the SUDAAN software system (Research Triangle
Institute 2002) to adjust for the weighting and clustering of the NCS-R data. Multivariate significance of
predictor sets was evaluated using Wald _ 2 tests based on design-corrected coefficient variance-covariance
matrices, Statistical significance was evaluated using 2-tailed .05-level tests; it should be noted that this level,
which was pre-specified for all NCS-R analyses, does not correct for multiple comparisons and thus
underestimates the overall type I error rate.

Besults Prevalence

Lifetime prevalence estimates of anorexia nervosa, bulimia nervosa, binge eating disorder, subthreshold binge
eating disorder, and any binge eating were 6%, 1.0%, 2.8%, 1.2%, and 4.5% (Table 1). Lifetime prevalence
was congistently 134 to 3 times as high among women as men for the 3 eating disovders (z _ 2.2—2.8,P_
.029—.005), 3 times as high among men as women for subthreshold binge eating disorder (z__3.3, P_ .001},
and approximately equal among women and men for any binge eating (z _1.2, P _ 219}, No 12-month
eages of anorexia nervosa were found in the sample. The 12-month prevalence estimates of the other 4
disorders were considerably lower than the lifetime estimates, although with similar sex ratios. Estimates of
camulative lifetime risk by age 80, based on retrospective age-of-onset reports (Figure 1), were 0.6% for
anorexia nervosa, 1,1% for bulimia nervosa, 3.9% for binge eating disorder, 1.4% for subthreshold binge
eating disorder, and 5.7% for any binge eating.

~. | Figureg
o Age-of-onget distributions for DSM-IV eating disorders

Tabley
Lifetime and 12-month prevalence estimates of DSM-IV eating disorders

and related behavior
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Age of Onset and Peysisfence

Median age of onget of the five disorders yanged from 18—2t years (Table 2). The period of onset risk was
shorter for anorexia nervosa than for the other disorders, with the earliest cases of the other disorders
beginning about 5 years earlier than fhose of anorexia nervosa {ages 10 vs. 15), and no cases of anorexia
nervosa beginning after the mid-20s—whereas some cases of the other disorders began at a much older age {

Figures 1 and 2).

Figure 2
Cohort-specific age-of-onset distributions for DSM-1V Anorexia Nervosa

Table 2
Estimated age of onset and persistence of DSM-I V eating disorders and
velated entities

The mean namber of years with anorexia nervosa (1.7 years) was significantly lower than far either bulimia
nervosa (8.3; £ _ 4.1, P_.001), binge eating disorder (8.1; ¢ _ 2.9, P _.006), subthreshold binge eating
disorder (7.2; t __ 2.6, P _.013), or any binge eating (8.7; t _ 2.9, P_ .005) (Table 2). Congistent with these
differences in duration, 12-month persistence, defined as 12-m onth prevalence among lifetime cases, was
lowest for anorexia nervosa (,0%) and higher for bulimia nervesa (30.6%), binge eating disorder (44.2%),
subthreshold binge eating (47.2%), and any binge cating (46.9%).

Cohort Effects

Congistent jnverse associations between cohort {age at interview) and lifetime risk were found in sarvival
analyses of all 5 disorders (Table ). However, the odds ratios in younger (ages 1829, 30—44) versus older
(60_) cohorts were significantly higher for all comparisons only for bulimia nervosa, binge eating disorder,
and any binge eating.

Table 4
Inter-cohort differences in lifetime risk of D8M-1V eating disorders and

related hehavior

Association with Body-Mass index

Individuals with a lifetime diagnosis of anerexia nervosa displayed a significantly lower current BMI —with a
greater prevalence of a current BMI of _ 18.5, and a lower prevalence of a current BMI _ 40—than
respondents without any eating disorder (Table 4). The reverse pattern was found for binge eating disorder,
with a significantly higher prevalence of BMI of _ 40 among individuals with binge eating digorder than
respondents without any eating disorder. Any binge eating was also associated with severe obesity, but this
finding was atirfbutable entirely to cases of binge eating disorder.

Table 4
Difference in BMI categories at the time of interview in lifetime

2} prevalence of DSM-IV disorders and related behavior

Twelve-Month Role Iinpairment

Role impairment was assessed only for 12-month cases; since there were no 12-month cases of anorexia
nervosa, our analysis was limited to the other 4 disorders. The majority of respondents with bulimia nervosgy




hinge eating disorder, or any binge eating reported at least some role impairment (mild, moderate, or gevere)
in at least 1 role domain (53.1%—78.0%), but only 21.8% of respondents with subthreshold binge eating
disorder reported this degree of impahment (Table 5). Severe role impairment was much less common, and
canged from 3.4% in subthreshold binge eating to 16.3% in bulimia nervosa, with no significant differences in
prevalence among groups.

Table s
Impairment in role fanctioning (Sheehan Disability Scales) associated
with 12-month DSM-IV eating disorders and related behavior

Comorbidity

More than half (56.2%) of respondents with anorexia nervosa, 94.5% with bulimia nervosa, 78.9% with binge
eating disorder, 63.6% with sibthreshald binge eating disorder, and 76.5% with any binge eating met criteria
for at least 1 of the core DSM-IV disorders assessed in the NCS-R (Table 6). Hating disorders were positively
related to alinost all of the core DSM-1V mood, anxiely, impulse-control, and substanee use disorders afier
conirolling for age, sex, and race-ethnicity, with 89% of the odds ratios for the association between individual
eating disorders and individual comorbid conditions greater than 1.0 and 67% significant at the .05 level. The
odds ratios were consistenily largest, though, for bulimia nervosa, with 2 median (and inter-quartile range n
parentheses) odds ratio of 4.7 (4.3—-7.5), next highest for binge eating disordey (3.2 [2.6—3.71) and any binge
eating (3.2 [2.4~3.8]), and smaller for anorexia nervosa (2.1 {1.2—2.9]) and subthreshold binge eating
disorder (2.2 [1.1~2.9]). No single class of disorders stood out as showing consistently or markedly higher
comorbidity with eating disorders,

Table 6
"1 Lifetime co-morbidity (OR) of DSM-IV Eating Disorders with other core
NCS-R/DSM-1V disorders and related behaviorst

Treatment

A majority of respondents with anorexia nervosa, bulimia nervosa, and binge eating disorder (50.0%-63.2%)
received treatment for emotional problems at some time in their lives, with the most common site of
treatment being the general medical sector for anorexia nervosa (45.3%) and binge eating disorder (36.3%),
and the mental health specialty sector for bulimia nervosa (48.2% for psychiatrist and 48.3% for other mental
health) (Table 7). However, smaller proportions sought treatment specifically for their bulimia nervosa
(43.2%) orbinge eating disorder (43.6%). Only 15.6% of respondents with 12-month bulimia nervosa and
28.5% with 12-month binge eating disorder received treatment for emotional problems in the 12 months
before interview, with the most common site of treatment being the general medical sector, and similar
proportions received 12-month treatment specifically for their bulimia nervosa or binge eating disorder.

Table7
Age-of-onset priority of DSM-IV eating disorders and related behavior

with comorbid DSM-1V disorders

Supplemental data are available with the electronic version of this article and online at

www . hep.medharvard.edu/nes/eating.php.

Pisoussion Go to:

In a population-based suxrvey of American households—the first nationally representative study of eating
disorders in the United States—we found estimates of lifetime prevalence for eating disorders that are bloadly




consistent with earlier data. However, we found a surprisingly high proportion of men with anorexia nervosa
and bulimia nervosa (representing approximately one-fourth of cases of each of these disorders). By contrast,
clinical and case vegistry studies (Faivburn and Beglin 1090; Hoelc and van Hoeken 2003) report that fewer
“than 10% men among cases of these disorders, and population-based studies report a 15% proportion of men
for anorexia nervosa (Garfinkel et al 1006) and 8%-10% of men for bulimia nervosa {(Bushnell et al2000;
Garfinkel et a] 1005). Note, however, that estimates from population-based studies, including gurs, are
unstable because they involve small numbers of men with eating disovders (no more than 5 men with either
disorder in any study).

Our findings provide unique data regarding the lifetime duration of eating disorders, and the onset and
duration of binge eating disorder, together with extensive information on sociodemographic features of
individuals with all 5 disorders. Also, our study provides support for the common impression that the
incidence of bulimia nervosa has increased significantly in the second half of the twentieth century (Kendlex
et al 1001; Hoek and van Hoek 2003), and it provides the first data showing a similar trend for binge eating
disorder. Nevertheless, there are some data suggesting that the incidence of bulimia nervosa may be leveling
off in recent years (Currin et al 200%). Whether the incidence of anorexia nervosa has increased over thine is
unclear and subject to debate. We failed to find a significant increase, but had little power to detect such a
trend; case vegistry study data have yielded conflicting findings and interpretations (Fambonne. 1694; luncas
et al 100y; Hoek and van Hoeken 2003; Currin et al 2005).

We found that lifetime anorexia nervosa is associated with a low current BMI, a finding consistent with
follow-up studlies of clinical samples of individuals with anorexia nervosa showing that low weight often
persists after resolution of the disorder (Steinhausen 2002). By contrast, binge eating disorder was found to be
strongly associated with current severe obesity (BMI _ 40)—a finding also consistent with earlier reports (de
Zwaan 2001; Streigel-Moore and Franko 2003; Hudson et al 2006). Although the cansal pathways
responsible for this latter association are unclear, shared familial factors {such as shared genes or shared
family environmental exposures) are likely af least partly responsible {Hudson et al 2006).

We also assessed role impairment in all disorders except anorexia nervosa, where analysis was precluded
because no 12-month eases were identified, While the majority of respondents with bulimia riervosa, binge
eating disorder, or any binge eating reported at least some role ipairment i atleast 1 role domain, only
21.8% of respondents with subthreshold binge eating disorder reported any role impaihent. Severe role
impairment was uncorimon in all conditions. [t is important to note, though, that participants may possibly
have under-reported role impairment due to factors such as minimization, shame, secrecy, or lack of insight
stemming from the ego-syntonicity of symptoms.

Less than half of individuals with bulimia nervosa or binge eating disorder had ever sought tweatment for
their eating disorder (a measure not assessed for anorexia nervosa), although the majority of individuals with
all 3 disorders had received treatment at some point for seme emotional problem. This finding, coupled with
the observation that physicians infrequently assess patients for binge eating (Crow et al 2004) and oftén fail
to recognize bulimia nervosa and binge eating disorder (Johnson et ai 2001), highlights the importance of
querying patients about eating problems even when they do not include such problems among thefr
presenting complaints,

We found a high prevalence of lifetime comorbid psychiatric disorders in individualg with all disorders except
subthreshold binge eating disorder, although this finding was less pronounced for anorexia nervosa. These
vesults are again generally consistent with those reported in previous population-based studies for anorexia
nervosa (Garfinkel et al 1096), bulimia nervosa {Kendler et al 1091; Bushnell et al 1904; Garfinlkel et al 1095;
"Rawe et al 2002), binge eating behavior (Vallrath et al 1092; Angst 1088; Bulik et al 2002), and regular binge
eating without compensatory behaviors (Reichborn-Kiennerud et al 2004h), as well as in previous studies of
clinical populations for anorexia nervosa, bulimia nervosa, and binge eating disorder (Hudsou et al 1687;
Halmi et al 1901; Johnson et al 2001; Godart et al 2002; Kaye et al 2004; McElroy et al 2005). The cause fois




the high levels of comorbidity is not known, although there is evidence that the co-accwrrence of eating
disorders with mood disorders may be caused in part by common familial (Mangweth et al 2003) or genetic
factors (Walters et al 1002; Wade et al 2000).

Several findings in this study are particularly noteworthy. First, we found that anorexia nervosa displayed a
significantly shorter lifetime duration and lower 12-month persistence, as well as lowex overall levels of
comorhidity, than either bulimia nervosa or binge eating disorder. These findings contrast with previous
studies (Steinhausen 2002) that have conceptualized anorexia nervosa as a chronic and malignant condition.
This discrepancy may be due to the fact that our population-based method identified individuals with milder
cases of anorexia nervosa who might have been missed in previous follow-up studies, which were based
largely on clinical samples. Alternatively, our population-based method might have missed more severe cases
of anorexia nervosa, either because they were unavailable, unreachable, hospilalized, or unwilling to
participate in an interview about emotional problems, Parenthetically, we would note that while we found no
cases of eurrent anorexia nervosa in our study, 15.6% of the individuals with a lifetime diagnosis of anorexia
nervosa still had a current BMI of less than 18.5 at the time of interview. Indeed, these individuals (3 cases)
were all below 85% of ideal body weight, thus meeting our operationalization for DSM-IV criterion A for
anorexia nervosa. However, all of these individuals failed to meet at least one of the other criteria for anorexia
nervosa currently—although our data did not permit an analysis of which specific eviteria were lacking in
individual cases. Nevertheless, these data suggest that a minority of individuals with past anorexia nervosa
may continue to maintain an abnormally low body weight, even though they no longer meet full criteria for
anorexia nervosa.

Our findings also provide further evidence for the clinical and public heaith importance of binge eating
disorder, In contrast to some earlier studies suggesting that binge eating disorder might be a relatively
transient condition (Cachelin et al 1099; Faivburn et al 2000), the present findings, together with those from
another recent study (Pope et al. in press), suggest that this disorder is at least as chronic and stable as
anorexia nervosa ot bulimia nervosa. Binge eating disorder also appears more common than either of the
other two eating disorders, exhibits substantial comorbidity with other psychiatric disorders, and is strongly
associated with severe obesity. Collectively, these findings suggest that binge eating disorder represents a
public healih problem at least equal to that of the other 2 better-established eating disorders, adding support
to the case for elevating binge eating disorder from a provisional entity to an official diagnosis in DSM-V.

Subthreshold binge eating disorder, by contrast, was found to be associated with such low impairment and
comorbidity that it likkely does not merit consideration for inclusion as a DSM disorder, It should be recalled,
in this connection, that the main difference between subthreshold binge eating disorder and binge eating
disorder is that the former lacks the criterion of distvess (see Appendix Table 1 in Supplement 1). These
findings suggest that the eriterion of distress may be fmportant for defining clinically meaningful forms of
hinge eating.

I Appendix table 1
— : Lifetime prevalence estimates of DSM-IV eating disorders and related
' behavior by age and sex

Note that subthreshold binge eating disorder may be defined in different ways. For example, relaxing the
frequency criteria to less than the average of 2 days per week for 6 months required by DSM-IV identifies
groups with characteristics similar to the full disorder (Striegel-Moore et a 2000; Crow et al 2002). We were
unable, however, to evaluate these definitions due the nature of the CIDI questions, and instead defined
subthreshold binge eating disorder by relaxing criteria other than frequency of binges. Thus, while our
definition of subthreshold binge eating disorder does not appear to identify a clinically meaningful entity,

other definitions may well do so.
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Unlike subthreshold binge eating disorder, the entity “any binge eating” is assaciated with severe obesity,




modest levels of impairment, and high Tevels of comorbidity with other mental disorders, These features
appear to be accounted for cases of bulimia nervosa or binge eating disorder within the “any binge eating”
group, given that such features are not shaved by those with subthreshold binge eating disorder, and
individuals with anorexia nervosa contribute only a small number of cases. The findings for any binge eating
are interesting to consider in the light of findings from twin studies of binge eating. These studies have
suggested that there are genetic influences on binge eating (Bulik et al 1908) and on binge eating without
compensatory behaviors (Reichborn-Kjennerud et al 2004a). On the basis of our findings here, it is tempting
to speculate that the heritability of binge eating behavior may be attributable primavily to cases of bulimia
nervosa and binge eating disorder—both of which have been shown to be familial (Strober et al 2000;
Hudson et al 2006)—rather than to cases of subthreshold binge eating disorder within the group.

Several limitations of the study should be considered. First, some CIDI questions did not precisely mirror the
DSM-IV criteria for the various eating disorders, as iltustrated by in the diagnostic algorithms discussed in our
methods section, Perhaps the most important inconsistency is that, in order to have parallel duration
requirements for bulimia nervosa and for binge eaiing disorder, we required only 3 months of illness for a
diagnosis of binge eating disorder, in contrast to the 6 months required by DSM-IV. Thus, it is possible that
we may have overestimated the prevalence of binge eating disorder by including some cases with a duration
of anly g to 5 months.

Second, diagnoses were based on unvalidated, fully structured lay interviews where lifeiime information was
assessed retrospectively. These may be important considerations, given that an eavlier vexsion of the CIDI
was found to underdiagnose eating disorders (Thornton et al 1998), possibly because some individuals
minimized or denied symptoms. Version 3.0 of the CIDI was designed to reduce this sort of under-reporting
by using a number of technigues developed by survey methodologists to reduce embarrassment and other
psychological barriers to reporting (Kessler and Ustun 2004)—but these changes necessitated indirect
assessments of loss of control and distress, as noted above. In any event, pending validation smdies, it would
seem prudent to think of the NCS-R estimates as lower bounds on the true prevalence of eating disorders.

Third, in our analyses of the associations between eating disorders and body weight, we possessed only
current BMI, rather than maximum or minimum adult BMI, or BMI at the time of the disorder. Thus, we
likely underestimated the magnitude of these associations.

Fourth, because recall of earlier experiences may diminish with age, our retrospective assessments may have
overestimated the magnitude of cohort effects (Giuffra and Risch 1094). Since cohort effects and age effects
are confounded, and no prospective studies have been performed over the period under study, it is not possible
to assess the magnitude of this potential bias. Prospective studies will be useful to track possible eohort effects
in the foture,

Fifth, our resulis are based on the assurption that any exiting from the population available for sampling
was non-informative and that there was no selection bias (in. the form of non-response bias) due to sampling
from available subjects; these limitations are discussed elsewhere (Hudsgon et al 2005). For example, the
validity of our results would be threatened if the development of eating disorders rendered individuals less
likely to be available for sampling, which might oceur if there were a high mortality due to eating disorders,
or a significant proportion of cases hospitalized at the time of sampling. Although some clinical follow-up
studies have suggested substantial mortality for anorexia nervosa (Sullivan 1995; Steinhausen 2002; Keel et
al 200%), data from a community case registry study (Lacovino 2004) did not find excess mortality.

Another possible threat to validity would be bias in sampling of available individuals, in that individuals with
eating disorders might be more or less likely to participate. However, we carried out a non-response survey to
deal with this problem, which offered a larger financial incentive ($100) to main survey nonrespondents for a
short (15-min) telephone interview that assessed diagnostic stem questions. Very little evidence was found
that survey respondents and non-respondents differed on stem question endorsement for the NCS-R core
anxiety, mood, impulsecontrol, or substance use disorders (Kessler et al 2004b). Thus, it is likely that non- 45




response bias for eating disorders was minimal.

Sixtl, while we examined 2 provisional entities in addition to those for which eriteria were provided in DSM-
IV, we did not examine many other possible entities that lie within the category of Eating Disovder Not
Otherwise Specified (Fairburn and Boln, 2005)—such as subthreshold forms of anorexia nervosa and
bulimia nervosa, alternative definitions for subthreshold binge eating disorder (discussed above), purging
without either bulimia nervosa or anorexia nervosa (Keel et al 20085), and night eating syndrome (Stunkard
et al 2005)— because the questions in the CIDI did not permit evaluation of these conditions.

In conglusion, the lifetfime prevalence of the individual eating disorders ranged from 0.6-4.5%; these
disorders displayed substantial comorbidity with other DSM-1V disorders and were frequently associated with
role impairment. These patterns raise concerns that such a low proportion of individuals with these disorders
obtain treatment for their eating problems. As it turns out, though, a high proportion of cases did receive
treatment for comorbid conditions. Thus, detection and treatment of eating disorders might be increased
substantially if tveatment providers queried patients about possible eating problems, even if the patients did
not include such problems among thelr presenting complaints.

. Figure 3
- _ Cohort-specific age-of-onset distributions for DSM-IV Bulimia Nervosa

. Figure 4,
- Cohort-specific age-of-onsef distribuiions for DSM-IV Binge-Eating
Disorder

Appendix table o
Twelve-month prevalence estimates of DSM-IV eating disorders and

related behavior by age and sex

Appendix table 3
Estimated age-of-onset and persistence of DSM-IV eating disorders by

lifetime treatment statns

Appendix table 4
Cross-sectonal socio-demographic profile of respondents with lifetime

DSM-1V eating disorders and related behavior!

Table 8a
Lifetime and 12-month treatinent of DSM-IV eating disorders

Tahle 8h
Lifetime and 12~month ireatment of DSM-1V eating disorders for
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Lifetime and 12-month treatment of DSM-IV eating disorders for males
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT

Department of Public Health

LICENSE
License No. 0050

Mental Health Residential Living Center
In accordance with the provisions of the General Statutes of Connecticut Section 19a-493:
Discovery Practice Management, Inc. of Los Alamitos, CA, d/b/a Center for Discovery
Residential Treatment for Adult Women with Eating Disorders is hereby licensed to

maintain and operate a Mental Health Residential Living Center.

Center for Discovery Residential Treatment for Aduit Women with Eating Disordexs
is located at 4536 Congress St, Fairfield, CT 06824 with:

Perla Vilhjalmsdottir as Executive Director,
Samantha Bathija as Director.

The maximum number of beds shall not exceed at any time:
6 Mental Health Residential Living Center beds.
This license cxpires March 31, 2017 and may be revoked for cause at any time.

Dated at Hartford, Connecticut, April 17, 2015. INITIAL

St it

Jewel Mullen, MD, MPH, MPA
Cominissioner
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MEDICAL/BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SUPERVISOR
STONE ACADEMY - Woest Haven, CT - 2002 to 2011

STAFF AND CHARGE NURSING ON A BUAL DIAGNOSS
VA MEDICAL CENTER - Wesl Haven, CT - 1988 {o 2003

HOMECARE PLUS MLFD,, CT. (ASSISTED N THE DEVELOPMENT, CASE MANAGEMENT, AND
PATIENT CARE OF A NEW DEPT. IN A HOME HEALTH AGENCY, ACCORBING TO STATE AND
MEDICARE REGULATIONS. MY WORK FOCUSED ON EDUCATING CLIENTS AND FAMILIES AS WELL
AS OVERSEEING STAFF, PATIENT AND FAMILY. PROGRESS. }

MEDICAL/PSYCHIATRIC NURSING 1989-2003

inpatient and Quipatient seltirigs

VA MEDICAL CENTER WEST HAVEN, CT. { STAFF AND CHARGE NURSING OM A DUAL DIAGNMOSIS,
SUBSTANCE ABUSE, AND PTSD UNITS; ASSISTED iN THE DEVELOPMENT AND MANAGED AN OUT-
PATIENT UNIT, MY FOCUS WAS ON SUPERVISING AUXILARY STAFF, PATIENTS, AND EDUCATING
BOTHIN D!SEASE PROCESSES AND ASSUM!NG RESPONSIBILITY FOR WELLNESS.)

STAFF NURSE
PBYCHIATRIC CHARGE - 198510 1989

CT. MENTAL HEALTH CENTER NEW HAVEN, CT (CASE MAMAGED, FACILITATED THERAPY GROUPS,
TAUGHT DISEASE CONCEPT CLASSES, ASSISTED IN COURT MANDATED COMPETENCY MEET!NGS)

CARDIAC REHAB INSTRUCTOR
YALE NEW HAVEN HOSPITAL - Mew Haven, CT - 1982 iu 1985

PROVIDED PATIENT CARE, PRECEPTED NEW NURSES, ASSISTED IN THE DEVELOPMENT AND
TAUGHT CARDIAC REHAB CLASSES TO RECOVERING PATIENTS AND FAMILIES)

STAFF AND CHARGE NURSE ON GENERAL PEDIATRIC UNIT; PROVIDED BACKUP
NURSING TO NEWBORN {CLJ
ROOSBEVELT HOSPITAL - Mew York, NY - 1580 to 1982

MYG, NY {STAFF AND CHARGE MURSE ON GENERAL PEDIATRIC UNIT; PROVIDED BACKUP NURSING
TO NEWEORN ICU)y
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Cheri Kleiman
1 Mew Haven Avenue ¢ Unit 2P= Milford, Connectiont 46460
Chevi.Kleiman@gmail.com * 203.823.0029

EDUCATION

Master af Science in Marriage ond Family Therapy, 2008
Cenitval Connecticut Siate University — New Britain, CT
Baclielor of Avts in Fspeholngy, 2004 — Miner in Spanish
University of North Flovida — Jacksonviile, FL. :

EXPERIENCE )
Marriage and Fanjly Theeapist, Collaborative Counseling Group, Falyfield, CT' 45/201 3-Crarvent
Pripare Practice

o Provide individual, fimily, and couples thorapies within a group private practice seting
o Maintain positive relationships with other community providers in oxder to facilitate referral processes

Seidor Supervising Clintcien, Mid-Faivfield Chitd Guidance Canter, Nerwalf, CT 087204 2-Crrrent
Cutpatlent Clinic

o Responsible for providing clinical supervision to marriage and family therapy inferas and therapists
working toward licensure
Provide individual and family therapies to cliears served in an outpatient treatment setiing
Co-facilitate adoleseent and muli-family Dialectical Bebavior Th erapy groups
Provide Traima-Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy to children and families with histories of trauma
Manago client erises with vse of on-calf phone services
Lead supervision groups focused on Trauma-Foeused Cogpnitive Behiavioral Therapy
Participate in weekly DBT consultation team in compliance with the mode)

¢ O g e 2 0

Cltnical Therapise, The Children's Conter of Hamden, Hamden, CT 04/201 1- 0872012
Ouxputient Substance Abnse Treatment Prograis
o Provided individual and family therapies to adolescents with substance abuse diagnoses
e Administered vase management services in collaboration with the juvenils court system and e
Departnent of Children and Famiies
o Completed all clinical docurmeritation in compliance with Medicaid and agency standards

o Résponsible for making referrals for afiereate services following discharpe

Clinical Therapise, Youth Continzeum Ine., North Haver, CT 10720140- 052012
»  Provided individual and family therapies to adoleseent males residing in a therapeutic group home
&  Planned and conducted ciinical and life skills groups that were forrutated to engage residents with various
complex mental health diagnoses
Coordinated discharge plans to adult services or family seanification
Collaborated with multidisciplinary treatnient team to create j ndividualized treatment plans

Clinical Theraplst, The Children's Comter af Hainden, Hamden, €T 1/2008-10/2010
Ouipatient Psychiuteic Services and (CARE) Crisfy Stabilization Program
o Responsible for providing individual and faniily therapies to clients in the Qutpatient Mental Health Clinic
and Crigis Stabilization Program
e  Coordinated with outside agencies during assessment, freatment, and in planning for afierears
o Developed crisis plaps with families and provided them with information about community resourees

Ytake Coerdinater, The Children's Cenier of Hamden, Heamden, CT 03/2008-10/2008
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Criipatient Psycliviric Services
o Condusted infake interviews and provided comprehensive clinical assessments of children and famities
referved to Extended| Day Treatment Program and Cutpatient Mental Healih Clinic
e Evaluated referrals and determined necessity for admission to Crists Stabilization Program
¢ Obtained authorization tor services from insurance companies

Clindeal Therapist Intern, The Children’s Center of Hamden, Hamden, CT 08/2006-03/2008
Extended Day Treamient Program '
@ Responsible for carrying a client caseload and providing individual, family, and group therapies
o Provided trauma based therapy working mostly with cases witli historles of abuse and neglect
o 'Worlced as part of 4 multjdisciplinary freatment team providing information, strategies, and a clinical
perapective on treatment of children
o Conducted mulii-family therapy groups with clients in residential substance abuse treatment program

CERTIFICATIONS AND SPRCIFIC TRAINING

Licensed - Marriage and Family Therapist (LMFT) by the state of Connecticut, License number: 061386
SAMPFT Approved Supervisor candidate

Intensively trained i Trauma-Focused Cogaitive Behavioral Therapy model

Completed training in adolescent Dialectical Bebavior Therapy through Behavioral Tech, LLC

Trained in the Risking Connections model for treating psychological trauma

0 8 oo a
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Amber B. Tiliman
14 Marie Dr, APT 12
Seymour CT, 06483
{203) 224-0957
ambertilman@vahoo.com

Equca'lig_n_'._ University of New Haven, West {Taven, CT Gradnated in August 2017 with Masters in
science degree for Criminal Justice with a.cancentration in Victimology

Bay Pathi College, Longnieadow, MA Graduated in May 2010 with Bachelor in science degree jn Criminal
Justice

Novwalk Comunmity Collage, Norwall, CT Graduated in Decenber 9006 with Associakes in science
degree for Criminal Justice, '

Work Ex_gericncte:

The Center of Women and Famnflies, Safe Advocate Fall 2012- Present

= Responsible for providing clicat intake and advoeacy, Hotline coverage, provide support groups
2 -3 per week. Advocating with duiside system regarding client’s needs, assisting clicnt in
developing safety planning which address client’s particular situations

o Providig clients with information and yeferral and vesources outside of the domestic violente
program and provide victim comperisation information and assisting in filing compensation
forms:

o Providing crists intervention for shelter clients as needed, providing travspodation for shelter
clients, medieal needs, shopping, edueation program, cultural activities, etc.

o Updating shelter coordinator andfor on-call staff — phone when appropiiate, Ensure positive and
safe environment for shelter women and childien and attend afl scheduled per diem meetings and
on-going frainings.

¢ Updating progress plan to assure flvat residents arc actively working on goals. Meet with residenis
two times per week: to monitor their progress, establish a calendar for planned activities for shelier
residents and responsible for housebiold and food inveniory, weekly etocery shopping

Community Solutions, Inc. AIC Case Manager Fall 2012-Fall 2013

o Respousible for conducting client orientations, collecting intake data, performing client needs
assessments and maldog recommendations to the supervisor regarding tceatment needs.

o Daveloping and dosumenting prograrm plan goals with clients: Monitoring treatment stipulations,
job readinoss preparation, community resotree reféerals. Developing and implerienting a
discharge plan for clients.

o  Scheduling, conducting and documenling individual counsefing sessions that address client
personal issues and program performance, Making recommendations to supervigor for corrective
dction as required and monitoring en an engoing basis.

o Maintaining client files and ensuring compliance with agency policy regarding confidential
information. :

o Conipleting all client-related documentation and making log entries on al} shifts activiiies.

BHcare, Crisis Advocate Fall 2011~ Fall 2012

Responsible for defivering supportive services to domestic violenco vickims at sheléer, such as
dowestic violence counseling, safety planning, shefter orientation to news cliénis, and transportation
when appropriate.

Coordinating sheltering with other domestic violence prograins or ofker facititles in accordance with
CT Coalition program standards, providing in person supportive services as needed al Griffin Hospilal,
catchment area pdlice stations and safe houses, complete hotline iniake for every hotline call received,
complete hotline activity sheet for each shifted worked and establish an on call recomse file so that
clienit concoms can be addressed effectively, performing danger assessment for clients, performing
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LAP program{Lethalily assessment program).with clisnt and polics officer.

State of' Connecticnt Judicial Brancli, Frabaifon Yolunieer Fall 201 1-Spring 2012
s Similar to my internship this position dlso involved communicating with clients to gathier information
_to update their accoints, setting appointments for clients and docginenting them , performing

background checks on clients, completing probation forms and paperwork, fixing probation foims to
other offices. Calling other probations offices and halfway houses for client’s informatlon and filing
elient’s paperwork. Creating case notos for all client activities and inpufting drugtest results and slatus
of treatment programs. '

= Transforring probation clients from one officer to another; writing arrest warrants and police report
summaries, mailing probation forms to clients, ereating néw restitution accounts for clients and
preforming early probation termination pracess.

Computer Skills: Microsoft word, PowerPaint, Excel, Adobe Photoshop
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' KAREN M. SCHWARTZ T Y

a8 AT e
8 0ld Gate Lane COL" 77 208-648-2815
Newtown, CV 06470 T ) B karenschwartz18@yahoo.com

SUMIMARY

Graduate student in Masters Pragram In Human Nutritlon. Assisted individuals in learning the concept of 2
healthy lifa style thraugh nutrition and fitness. Great motivator and ean adapt to différent personalities.
Strong ability to coimmunicate nutritional advice to people from different backgrounds. Well develeped
computer slkills, including the use of Microsoft Office applications on both Mac and PC platforms.

WORK EXPERIENCE
Westport School District, Westport, €T Sctoher 2013 to Present
Health Assistant, I~ 12
Perferm initial psychological and physical assessment (fake temperature, examine minor waunds and brulses,
view throat, etc.), evaluate defmeanor, discuss and analyze syinptoms, and determine if nursing care is
necessary.

Club24 Concept Giyms, Newtown, CT April to September 2013
Assistant Manager

>  Acknowledged every member every time and responded to mémber feadback.

¥  Created a weleoming and friendly enviranment for club members and colleagues

¥  Participated in member and staff functions and events

»  Held monthly staff meetings with employees to go over the gyms accomplishments and future goals

5 Increased both employee sign ups as well as employee retention

% Answered all customer questions regarding-equipment, nutrition and exercise

» Discussed dietetic patterns with individual members aided them in creating a healthy lifestyle balance

Atlas Air Worldwide Holdings, Purchase, NY 2011 t0 2013

Reliability Analyst

» Performed analysis of aircraft maintenance program to achieve the highest level of safety and economics.

» Monitored Reliability Data for the 767 fleet for adverse trends that could affect the ETOPS fleet and
participate in the event investigations process as required. Review, monitor, and evaluate ETOPS related
alaris. .

» Prepared monthly ETOPS operating summaries and assoclated reports.

¥ Communicated with management on the ETOPS fleet reliability at scheduled Reliahility Meetings

» Reviewed and evaluated maintenance discrepancies generated from pilot write-ups, maintenance write-
ups, and non-routine cards. Initiate actions an findings that show an adverse trend.

» Analyzed effectiveness of proposed and implemented aircraft modifications

» Experienced in maintaining compliance with FAA requirements for a Reliability Program

> Provided data as required by maintenance fo determine causes of adverse reliability trends.

» Provided analysis on Maintenance and aircraft problems to the Manager of Maintenance Programs.
%  Assisted Maintenance and Engineering with data collection for project justifications.

» Performed other duties as directed by the Reliability Manager, or the Director of Quality Assurance /

Quality Control:

EDUCATION

Currently enrolled in Masters in Human Nutrition, University of Bridgeport, Bridgeport, CT.
Bachelor of Arts, Businass Administration, concentration in Marketing, Monmouth University, NI
Regents University; London, England, Attended junior year abroad.
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8 Old Gate Lane
Newtown, €T 06470

[ St !

KOREN M, SCHWARTZ

203-648-2815
karenschwartzl 9@yahoo.com

Susan Neville, Owner

Susan Neville CPA

830 Post Rd £, Westpari, €T 06880
- (203} 227-8104

Susan Marse, LCSW

REFEREMCES

1 Washington Ave #4, Sandy Hook, CT 06482

(203} 426-4701

Wes Gonzalez, Manager

Club 24 Concapt Gyms

280 Pratt St, Meriden, CT 06450
{203} 3143343

tinda Egdahi
Private Pastry Chef

33 Fawnwood Drive, Sandy Haok, CT 06482

(203) 270-8113
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Arfty R. Patnode ~

1443 New Haven Road Naugatuclk, CT 06770
203-558-6704 » amy.r.patnode@gmail.com

OBIECTIVE
Geeking a teaching position in the area of Social Studies.

EDUCATION
University of New Haven
Bachelor of Science, Legal Studies

University of New Haven
Bachelor of Science, History

University of New Haven
Paralegal Cartification

University of Bridgeport

Master in Education, Secondary Education

West Haven, CT
Graduation: May 2011

West Haven, CT
Graduation: May 2011

West Haven, CT
Graduation: May 2011

Bridgeport, CT
Graduation: May 2012

RELEVANT COURSEWORK-Undergraduale

American 60’s: Change and
Turbulence

Arnerican Government & Politics
American History since 1607
Civil Procedure

Constitutional Law

Equality Under the Law

Ethics

Europe in the Nineteenth Century
Europe-Renaissance to Enlightenment
Foundations for Western World

RELEVANT COURSEWDRK-Graduaie
Civics

Differentiated Instruction

Educating Exceptional Student

History for Teachers

New Technologies for Learning

psychology Foundations for Education

EXPERTENCE
Terence $. Hawking, Esq.
intersa

Terence S, Hawlkins, Esq.
Administrative Assistant

Naugatuck High School
Intern

Genocide in Modern Times
International Relations
Japan-U.S. Relations
Legislative Process

Modern Asia

Madern Political Analysis

Public Speaking & Group Discussion
State and Local Government
Western World in Modern Times
Women in 207 Century America
U.S. 20" Century

Reading in Conkent Area, Secondary
Research& Report Writing

Teaching with Smart Board
Teaching Social Studies

U.S. History for Teachers

New Haven, CT
June 2009—August 2009

New Haven, CT
August 2009—March 2011

Naugatuck, CT
August 2011—3June 2012
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Naugatuci High School
Student Teachsy

Naugatuck Beard of Education
Substitute Teéacher

Middietown Board of Education
Substitute Teacher

COMPUTER SKILLS
Blackboard

GoTo Meeting

JSTOR

LexisNexis

Microsoft Word
Microsoft Excel

., ‘-‘/:

Naugatuck, CT
August 2012-Decemiber 2012

Naugatucle, CT
Becembear 2012- present

Middletown, CT
October 2013- prasent

Microsoft PowerPoint
Open Office
PowerSchoal

Smart Board

West Law
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Summarxy of Qualifications:
% Highty-motivated, dependuble , and hardworking professional with excellent  customer service skitls
& Effective ability to work well independently, as well as in a tvam environment with minimal supervision
Graduated in (op enth percestile in high School
Strong verbal and writlen communication skills
% Fluent in English, Creole & French
< Proficient in Microsoft Applications, and Internet Explorer
Skills:
>

< Daia Entry

L)
R

(]
- o

-

¥ Fast Learner

+
“r
-

Wellk-Organized

< Punctual o Cash Handling & Trustworlhy
% Responsible % Safely Conscious % Detail-Oricnted
# Customer Focus o Great Leadership Skills
il Education:
Liberal Studies Southern Connecticut Stale University New Haven, CT
Minor: Psychology and Wellness minor Expecled Graduation Dale December 18, 2013

Relevant Courses: Infant and child Psychology, Social Psyctiology, Abnorma! Psychology, Cognition and Perception
Psychotogy, Seminar: Behavioral theory and Praclice.

| Professional Experience:

Personal Aid /Companion
& Provides personat care and companionship to clicas ina timely and cfficient manner

| %  Accompanies paticnts (o doctor’s appoiniments and other related fum activites

# Prepates food per diet plan and assists with feeding as needed
& Mainlains records of client progress and services performed, reports changes to supervisor

| Call Center Customer Service Represcitative
% Provided information about products, entered orders, cancelled accounts, and obtained details of complaints
% Kept reoords of customer inleractions recording details of inquiries, complainls, and comments
& Foflowed company standards procedures and policics at all times

I| Customer Service/Shoes Specialist/POS Data eatry

’ % Described merchandise and explained use, o{wralinn, and care of merchandise Lo cuslomerns

; & Computed sales prices, lotal purchases, reccived and processed cash or credit cavds payment

& Recommended, selected, and helped focate merchandise based on customer needs and desires

il Front Desk Clerk

% Courteously greeted customers and answered their inquiries in a professional manner

l 4 Answered phone and fransferred fhe calls {o the: appropriate departments

R

; & Performed other duties as assigned by supervisor

{| Shift supervisor

; % Responsible for opening, closing the store, and cash managemonl

& "Prained and supervised new employces per company’s policies and procedures

& Ensured afl customers have a greal shopping expericnce and provided excellent customer service

Il Work History:

I| Companions and Homemalkers; Fairfield CT Porsonal Aid/fConipanion 2000 — Present

il Acrotel Temp-Agency; Norwitlk CT Outhound Sales call Representative 2011 — Present
11l Really Good Stuff Company; Monroe, CT Customer Service Rep 2013 -2013

i 1C Perny; Milford, CT Custowmer Seevice/Shoes Specialist 2012 - 2013

8 Fabricare Cleaners; Darien CT Front Desk Clerk 2011 - 2011

| Payless Shoes; Trumbull CT Shift Supervisor 007 - 2011

— Ly
JENNIFER MATHELIER |, "ortcd st
265 Hawley Avenue
Bridgeport, CT 06606
(203) 218-8718

| Volunteer Worlc :
B) Service for Peace volunteer; Bridgepor( CT 004 — 2007 l

H
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DANA GARVEY
dana.garvayy@gmail.com
(203) 243-6721

OBIECTIVE

To gbtain a position that will contribute to my professional growth, utifize my skills, and he an asset to
your company.

EDUCATION

HS Diptoma Notre Dame Catholic High School Fairfield, CT

Graduation date: May 2003

Earned Associates Degree ~Liberal Ars

University- of Hartford West Hartford, CT: Decamber 2010

Bachelor's Degree in Communications- University of Hartford West Hartford, CT: May 2012
EXPERIENCE

Trumbull Smiles Family Dental

Review provider schedules and individual patient charts and assist the care team

in coordinating care for visits and for future healthcare needs.
s Handle non-appointment related calls from patients. Rasalve the reason for the
call or route to the appropriate party.

» Provide an effective communtication link between patlent and medical staif,
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including relaying messages from providers, gatheving Infarmation from patients

for providers, etc.

» Suppost patients and providers in the medication refill process

o Use registry and other information to Inform care team rnembers of preventive
care required for each patient seen each day.

s Ensure that all patients are tracked and data entered into systems for follow-up
and reporting.

o Regularly review registry information for assigned panel of patients and arrange
for care neéded to proactively coordinate healthcare needs.

Nov 2011~ Sept 2012

Birmingham Group of Companies - Milford, €T

ASST, Manager

Developed efficiency-enhancing workflow

Accounting Services - QuickBooks

Handled busy phone systermn

Eunctioned as primary Hajson to customers

Ensured a cansistently positive custamer experience

Scheduling Appointments
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Opened & Closed Office

Filing

June 2011-Aug 2011

Office of Cornmuriications — intern
Editoriéi Services

Marketlihg Communications

Miedia Relations

July 2010 -May 2012,

Women's Educations Leadership Fund-
Communications assistant
Fundratsmg
NonProfit

v The Women's Education and Leadership Fund was estabiished to foster and support University of
Hartford initiatives to enhance the education of women, Empower wornen to lead, Enrich the University
community and beyond. Help bring awareness to the fund and administrative wark.

Computer Skills

Adobe Photashop, Adobe Bridge, lllustrator, MS Excel, Word Press ,PowerPolnt, Access, outloak, Social
Media, Project management sofiware’s, HTML and €85, QuickBooks
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HRORREMCNAL EXPERIENCE

BT~ Progont Yotk Cgnzivomm, Dacnspossatod, Nm*ﬁh Haven, OF
Prograw Ergsior, Theraputic Group Hone

Pravide direo] supsivision med oversight for all duy to-day operations of the Hetgpontis

fgroup home mohiding: therapoutie crigly fitervention; sorbplating risl assessmeonts foe ot

vl odolegeent youth, provide giowp smd Sudividual thecapy us needed both in the abgsnee
of and in mmum.-imn vrith-alintenl therapist, participate I weekly peystiuteio supa.wuian
migelings, seraenirg andl intet viewding potential revidents upon metuhing o Insosanes
companies, extensive sase manageInent servises, coordinaw and faoiliate nonebly stalt
it dd qua;wiy teadeilings Fof ull tnf¥, create staff sohedule, maintaining
wsmiplonee with seaqnined elivdoal thesapy houts, phystos! slant wetatenencs,
dusunention sequizasents, budgf*tmg, pahy distiibutios, manfhiy and weskly mpamng
requitsmants, payroll and divect supervision b6 shift supervivors aind slintolan, pacthoipate
int esping apeney qualify Smprovement, ensive the groun horas b opremting imdey the
sayuitameiitn of varlous regulatosy budies nelhuding B, COA wod PMMI suudards,

3007~ Prenent Bunthory Connoetiont Btats Undveeity, New Haver, CT
Adfunet Professor, Sehowl-of dvts & Sclonoes, Paychology Deparinent

Cravsest Adwlescent Payeholagy, Infont and Child. Dm!apmeat & Abrorod
Peychology, Plan leotures for & dynamis elasg of forty students, whicl often Includos
ascpmnadattons for siudents with vadous dsshilities, browse varlous fexcts und shooss
cane that hest suits the sylfunt sad censst with-tegard fo foseurch Al chis examples,
sieite, ddinintiter and grade qmzw-,x‘ tuaty, pmgec::ts il papers, edupate studenis-onthe
ABA giyle Hfwitidg. alxd gitation s 'wall 53 provide them with & comprehenslve
undsratandiing of the subjest maser using olass leotins, Potver Polnt, viaual dids,
sugedotal information, sxamples from the DMV TR and seanll provp work, caleulate
and submit midter and Hual wades in o Huely manney, maintaf courie websz and
‘post Jesfure nofes, Biudy puides, pertinent hfmation and links 16 the webalts va

- weekly basis 1o snconrage dhudstty i tale ax nolive wle i bis/her nnivarelty aduestion,

2008« 3010 The Ohiieei’s Conter of Hmdew, Haordon, 27
Clintenl Supervisor, Outpaiiont Mevtol Hyolth (OPAH) Clivie & :
Bpogrenn Supervisor; Chitid & Adolescert Roypivg i Bealuation (CAARE) Progrein

Hareide divstt superviaivn to botleelinial snd wilicu sl maintain both programs with
mapert to DCH, JCARD and Medientd iegulations, pmif{tz diveot alinionl cue fordpto 8
yoixth on the CARK gkt ager 718, soordinate teatment planning, oversse il olinfeal
provider mee&tzugs, coraplsts vazlows payrell and staffing coorslionsion 1wuks, condupt
weshly mplrisoanse chivoki to jdeify pusithle safury oobeéing dn e uait, siplite
totalce, adimispions and dispharges for the CARE snd OPMHM progeams amd all
fpcompatying. paperwotk, Gt risk rusossnents anit ments] sfafus wnig wt a.t tlsk

A B i .........-.LI‘ J TGS 5 7 JN |

[P [eTs b i e Y | 7 RPN A O SO, SRS
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foview repusts, féﬁwa; ~a & rnbee of the prdfessionsl shiff ofpantzation tvulved in
fdentifying veaining noeds and otganizing/selicditlug tratnikes on o se peeded bags,
iment vritiog fior 6 agency, oriantation end talning of new eraploysefitems, condud
mionthly stafmsetings, ensure trawan sengiive Anewerk for 51t freatiart,

2046 - 2008 The Chilldpa’s Conder of Hunwlen, Hasden, OF
Clintval Therapiss, itensive Ouipationt | ‘eogrowt & Betended Dy Freatmiant Progei

Parfinn daily pevopfhitieu thorapy, tndivigunl therapy and family therapy & casclond of
1 o ten adoleesent slente of the IOP and BOTY {dvels afenrs, sxtemdve caye
sumsgement services involvlig all iecalment providers indhiding, bt ot fimised to:
RCE, I, YICAPS, varous systame T care, coltmuniy agencles and the CTRHP,
Cebtatss authnizniiony for treatnyent St atl insaranos providers, ghordingie-care-Hhrough
aage eorferentns, amiment ant mestings and wedkly supsrvision, Disgnode vlents and
develop irdapment pling o te DMLV TR, Inferface with the Sonsulting pavehintrion
e tha trealrient, tearn 4o best serves the ellents aned plan for vase eooedinution and
njapregstinte disehieny plasntng. Provide peer supervision aud mitje staff supervinion gh
i weeldy basis 1 edusate sttt abit disgrosie, defons wechasisoy and stenajve
fettunna Jistoried bf the elients, Provide beth home wid sehool sisily to ahaseve lients iy
other exvizongiénts and In the sommuuity, Serve ss 2 mamber of the cultsl CORTPENCY
Aoaniiiies to engure that the sgency Iy belng wuftueally vensitive to the popalation it
gevea,

EDUCATION

203 - 2065 Bovihevn Chnnastiont Stals University, New Savesn, &7
Mastar of Meerigge amd Beanilp Thevagy :

Intetn gt BOSY Bamily Clinie; individual therupy, couples therspy, supenised visitatian,
anger management group for adult males, Fanily thetapy, 650 managetment servises
Iterens of Mangatucl: Youth Beivioes; individual, couples and farmily therapy

Tntern at Moagatuek High School; individid thesapy with sdolescents

1599 ~ 2003 - Houthern Comneetions Stute Utversity, New Bayon, ©F
. Femrs College

Bachelay af dris, Mewicd Heatt Paychologt Gy Eowde

Thesia tifls “The Bifests of Parenting Styles ot Adoleseent Detaking Feliovior”

Award for Miccessful Complation and Deféoss of Thenis

Thets Chi Upsilen, Algha Chapter

TROVESSIONAL LICENSIRY

Livensed ns a Marieal aid Farily Thoreplst, Stute of Cohnacfiout
License Numlsr: 081243

EROUESSIONAL SRR TIPICA TIONS

CPR & Fleak A1 §/2011
Cortified Risking Connestions Tesiuer 1 12009
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Jassica Anne Morrlson
78 Grand View Straet
Providence, Rl 02806

JesshMarison@ommall.com
(484) 678-3169

Qualifications

Ambitious; outgoing; hardworking, charismaic individual with strong:interpersenal skills, Works wellin

group activifles and mdwidually Produgtive worker who is depsndabla and resourceful. Well educated, and always
eager o learn,

Educatlon

10992004 Wbt Chestar University of Pennsyivania, West Chaster, PA 19380
Bachelor of Arfs i Psiiehdlogy, Minor in Music

2008 Professional Association of Therapeufic Horsemanship Interhational
Certified Therapeutie Riding fnstrictor

Expetlence

Jan. 2042 The Providance Center- Providence, Rl
Present Intake Specialist ~ Respect Profrain
o Triage all telephone calls dirécled to RESPECT from a variety of referfal sousces including
hospitals, consumers, familfes, police, etc.
Gather demographic and CNGM information, chaclt EDS on all non-insured clients
-Gather presenting clinical concarms, fisk factors, ASAM and diagnostic crileria when
avallable, and level of cate fequest
o {lake defermiinations of level of care-based on clinical information provided by the caller,
inclixding medicaliclinical necessity
Investigate and problem solve clinical and/or placement issues to completion
Data entér informalfon into client record systém, and ulllize-data from system in order o
make -apprepriate refarrals orfacilitate transfer

May2011-  Resewood Centers for Eating Disorders - Wickenburg, AZ
Sep. 2011 Regiondl Ouiffedih Manager - Easf Goast
o Regmuit, maintéln and manage refenal relationships with current and new customers,
maeting berchmaiks for admissions on a quarterly basls
Create, coordinate educational opportunities within the norheast on a quarerly basis
Promote and represent company programs and services within the healthcare, business,
and retovering eafliig disorder community
o Complete monthiy acfivlty reports that include dally marketing visits, follow up
corraspondence, visits; ealls.and netwarling functions
¢ Asslst clinipal team with referrals

June 2010« Rogers Memorlal Hospital - Oconomowoe, Wi
May 2011 Nslional Oufreach Representdtive
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o Collaliurte with other members of the marketing departinént, program managers and
 phiysicians to plan and execute projects within all residential programs wifl a main focus
on aating disorder services.

o Research ant analyze quality of programs, services, prices, strengthis:and weaknesses of
national competitois' pragrams

o Davelop naw referal contacts

o Moriitor ahd follow adinisstons for edting disorder services, identify all referyal sources and
potential ieads at a national level '

o Devslop difact marketing and outreath elationship taclics with key-referents in five nation

o Gonstrugt and malntein annual eatlng disorder services budgets

= Drovidé sademship and direction with manager in the sfrafegic planning and development
of national events, workshaps and.conferences

= Assist Rogers Foundation with fundraising campaigns and evanis

o Identify and particpate in rietv business developinent discussions at a nationat feve!

April 2609~ Rogers Memoarial Hospital - Oconomawas, Wi
Junge 2010 Regional Oulrgach Represenlative
o Reseatch and analyze quallty of programs, services, prices, strengths arid weaknesses of
competitors' programs in the region
o Collaborate with.other members of the marketing department, program managers and
physiclans to plan and exacue projests within all sesidentiof programs with main focus
on galing disorder servives and the cheinical dependency residential program
o Monitor and Tollow adriissions, identify all feferial Soufces and potential leads within tie
region
o Develop direst marketing and ovfreach relationship tacties with key feferents T the region
o [dentify and paricipate in new husiness development discussions ata reglonai level
Assist Regers Foundation with fundralsing campaigns and events-
Provide lsadership and direction with manager iin the strategic planning and development
of segional events, workshaps-and conferances

Octebey 2007 Rogers WMemotiat Hospital - Oconomowos, Wi
April 2009 Cormunity Oufregeh Representafive
a  Support Senjor National Quireach Representalive
o Collaborate with other members of the marketing department, program managers and
physicians te plan and execute projects wihin afl residenitial programs with & main-focus
on child and adolescent residentlal programs
o Monifor and follow-admisslans for child and adelescent residential programs, identify all
referral sources and make initial contact
o AssistRogers Foundation with fundraising campaigns and events
o  Adsistin maintenance of child-and adolescent residential program hudgets
= fsgsistin the strafegic planning and development of events, wotlshops and conferences

Trainings recalved from 2007-2008 ingluds:
o HiiS Sequsl Help/Systers

August2006.  Rogers Memorlal Hospital =Milwaukee, Wi
October 3007  Itake Spécialist
- o Perform duties of patient admissiori
s Collabosate with members of ihe health care team o promote confinuity of care and cost
effactive practice pattems
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s Goortinate admission of patients for eating disorder panil hosplialization program

danuary 2005 Holcomb Behavioral Health Sysfems - Exton, PA
Juliy 2006 Intake Counselor/Chiniloal Support Serviges
e Process new referrals, secure and verify lnsurance from hoth commercial and
governmental funded sources '
¢ Transinit all refesral lfiformation to the appropriate person or service within the agency’
= Maintaln aceurate dafly, weekly: and monthly-service activity information anid dafa oii
many dafabases.

Tralnings reteived from 2005-2006 include:
= TB/STD, HIVIAIDS; and Confidentiality In Addiction training from Mirmont Treafment
Centar

= Clinlcal Dacumentalion; Clinlcian's Desktop Database softwaie, Microsof: Office

Qther Experlence

Sep. 2011~ Greenlock Therapeutic Riding Genter - Rehoboth, MA

Proserit Gertifisd Therapeutic Ridiny mstructor
o Instruct 8 graup lessons per week
o Train and exercise therapy horses once a wask if appropiiate
o Assiatin fundraising campaigns and evenis

May 2089. LifeStridars Therapeutls Riding Cénter= Delafield, Wi
June 2011 Certified Therapsutic Riding instruclor
o Instuct 2-3 lessens per wesk from 2008 - June 2010
e Subslitule feacher from June 2010 - June 2014
e Train and exercise therapy horses otice a wesk if appsopriate
o Construct lesson plaris en a waekly basis

Activities and Interests

o Fomer Viollst and Board of Directors chair member for the Main Line Symphony Orchiestra - Devon, PA,
Fiist Soprano for the Bef Canto Choir - Milwaukas, Wi, aiid the West Chester University Woman's Choi;
Violist for the West Chester University String Ensemble, West Chester Universify Symphony Orchesira, and
member of the West Chesfer Univarsity Equestian Club (President, spring 2000-2003, Vice Presidant , fal
2000)

Refarencas:

Available upon faquest
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AZARIA DRAKEF(@RD (LAt whek Sar

176 Butler Avenue New Haven; CT 06511 *adrakefo@bridgeport.cdit * 860,327,211 [
PROFESSIONAL PROFILE

Energetic, dedicated youth specinlist with strong interpersonal skills. Resposd well to difficult situations and skilled al juggling
multiple tespansibilities. Proven ability to work ¢ffgetively with peaple of various ages, eultural backgrounds, and socta-scononiic
statuses. Long-lime interest in youth empowerment and leadership. Well-developed problem solviug and communication skills.

EDUCATION

University of Beidgepert, Bridgeport, GT
Master of Counseling - Cailidate, May 2015
Concertration - Clinieal fdental Heafih

Southern Conuectieut State Untversity, Mew Haven, CT
Buchelor of Sociolngy, May 2012

RELEVANT COURSENWORK

Child and Adeleseent ‘Therupy Soeio Cultural Foundatlons of Counseling

Career and Lifestyle Development Helping Relationships

EXPERIENCE SUNMARY

Academic Advisor December 201 [-Preseul

Yale-Bridgepers GEARUP
New Haven, CT

©  Fucilitae an early college awarcness and social development cwrrieuluny tailored to frst year figh schodl students and graduating
senions,

@ Assist students develop academic progress plars and assist stedenes in meeting high school requirements and exploring career
intersts.

°  Connect students with available academic and social support systems, as well as locating other resowrces.

= Coordinate and exccute ficld trips and cullege tows for studenls

*  Maiiained records and reports en each student.

= Demonstale as a role model and resource for afl first year studens and graduating seniory

Residence Hall Advisor 372009 - 127201 |
Sonthern Conneettout State University

New Haven, CT

®  Extensive interaction wilh Universily visitors including stedents, erployers, theulty and staff,

¢ Coordinated and executed programs footsing on issues and concerns of residents,

*  Gijded gew residents on rules and prozedures and responded to auestions,

°  Became a mediator and helped resolve gricvarices and responded to-complaints.

Orientotinn Ambngsader 612011 - 712001

Soutthern Connecticut State University New Stidemt Orientation

MNew Haven, CT )

*  TFacilitated progratns and workshops to promote academic excellence, ca-cumicular involvement, and living o healthy and well-
adjusted life in college.

e Provided individual and group advisement, guidance and support to over 1200 freshmen through multiple New Stedenat Orientation
sessions.

* Bsiblished conthued support (o feshmen tiroughout their aeademic careers.

COMMUNITY INVQLVEMENT

Woman | Ain, Inc. New Huven, CT-Seeretary

Sigma-Cianimia Rito.Sozerity, Incorporated-Member

National Association for the Advancenient of Colored Pepple, SCSU Chaptet-Member
The Open Hearth Association, Hariford, CT-Volunteer

TECHNICAL SKILLS
MS Word, PowerPoint, Excel
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Nicole M Weryi, RED, CID-N

(208) 5076613
nicole. forri@hotmail gom 1¢ Ashford Court Watlingford, CT06492
. EDUCATION . '

Keenis State College, Keene, NE May 2011

Bachelor of Science! Health Scienie, Nuxition Dpucn GPa: 382

Minor: Peychalogy Honors Program
DIBETELICINTERNSHIE . .
The Cleveland Clinic Woundation, Cleveland, OH Angust 203 1-Tuly 2012

- 1800 hours of gupervlsed preictica completed: 28 weeks clivisal, 7 wesks fhod sexvice, 3 weeks commanity, 3 weely
gales/marketing, 2 weels résearch

~ Areas of care- include heart Siluxs, Hyver/QL, sardiclogy, neurolaptent ICU, pedxamcs nutrition aspport, calnmcral,
oncology, lung tranaplant, intestinal rebabilitation management, and senal nutrition

EMPLOYMENT
CENTERFOR DISCOVERY
Repistered Dietitinn Fail 2012-corg
Provide nutrition connzeling and education to adolescents with eating disorders; facilitete nutrition groups as wﬂll a8
individual eagions to liclp promote healthy bebaviors, beliofs, and attitudes towmds food,
HEALTH SOLUTIGNS
Henlth Screenex/Health Coach Fall 2012-cmrent
Provide biometds sereening; Interpretation of liealdi velated data, and health eoaching to verions compony employecy
PCA WALVER EROGHRAM
Personal Caxé Asgistant Summer 2011
Aasigted physically disabled college student with daily activities) tutored student in summer biology class
KEENE STATE COLLEGE
Resident Agsigtant Fall 2009-Spriog 2011
Qversaw-and provided guidince For 24-52 feshmen residential students; prepared bi-monthly programs-in health and
wellngss

Head Tuter ' Fan 20{18~Sprmg 2011

Supemacd mfors, pmvxded traiings: futored 8~F0 sudents per semesrer i varions nuardtion and seience classes
RESEAR SIE !
“Uilization of CACEP In the stale of NH” Eal} 2010-Sutnmer 2011

Tutrition rogearch preseated at the 2011 Keene State Acrdemic Excollence Canference {ARC) and NH Departmont of
Hducation

Honory Sanfor Thesis .Fall 2010, Spriug.2011

Fitty page paracnal case shidy prosentéd with ather membard asa panel discussion at the 2011 AEC.
Early Sprouts Poster Prasentation Summer 2010

Preseited Early Sproits gaiderio-tsble fegearch a1 the Suciery for Niitrition, Bducarion Conference in Reng, NV

South African Health Care Surosmer 2008, Spring 2010

Study abroad experdence and resea,rch paper presumed with other members as 2 panel discussion an the 2010 AEC
) TEER EXPERYE] _
Nutrition Assistant, Wallingford; CT Swinmer 2009

Masumcchutnucn!Food Sexvice: grovided heéalthy-dink aprions for older adialss; audited rofigeratom
Pracficum atudent, volunteer, Widlingford, CT' ‘Winter 2009, Suramer 2010

Maryann Me.ade, MS/RD Privare Practice: agsiated with a varicty of. "nitofion-related projects; taught ouiition elagses
for repovering substancs abuse patents

CER MBERSHIF 7
ServSafe Cczﬂflcd (2010) Academy of Mutririon and Dictetivs member {2030-purxent)
CPR, and Firgr Aid Certificd (2012) Pro-Act Cortified (2012)

onn Mt 3 rnme are raziunad At NI At b Sinaansany A v lf-e«v?lgn




Questions and Answers

From our First CON
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The following pages are in response to the Depariment of Public Health's Completeness Letter senton
June 4, 2014 in response to Discovery Practice Management's application for a CON to establish a 6-bed
residential freatment home for women in Fairfield.

Docket Number; 14-31913-CON

1) The Applicant states on page 15 that it considers its financial information to be confidential. Under
Connecticut General Statute §19a-639{4] the Applicant must demonstrate how the proposal will
impact the financial strength of the health care system in the state or that the proposal is
financially feasible for the Applicant. Under Connecticut General Statute §19a-639(5), the
Applicant must satisfactorily demonstrate how the proposal will improve quality, accessibility and
cost effectiveness of health care delivery in the region. Therefore, please provide:

a. Audited financial statements for the most recently completed fiscal year or other
financial documentation; and
b. Financial Attachment | {attached).

See Attached Appendix A

The Independent Auditor's statement is included along with the 2013 company balance sheet. Please refer
to the cash figure of $871, 605 which will more than suffice to cover necessary expenses for the proposed
facility.

Financial Attachment | is included, Please note that no actual results are included since the proposed
facility does not yet exist until the CON is granted. Three years of projections are given and are counted as
incremental gains since they will not occur without the grant of a CON.

2} Provide a brief history of Discovery Practice Management, Inc, and provide an organizational
chart.

Organizational charts are found in Appendix B: Two charts are included; one is the organization chart for
the treatment home, while the ofher chart depicts Discovery Practice Management.

Discovery Practice Management, aka, Center for Discovery has been providing residential treatment for
women and teens for over 15 years. At Center for Discovery, we provide residential lreatment for women
with eating disorders, teens with eating disorders, teens with mental health disorders, and teens with
substance abuse issues. Each of our locations is dedicated solely to one of our specialized treatment
programs. By keeping each [ocation specialized to one of our treatment programs, we are able to provide
the most effective and efficient treatment for our residents. We provide residential treatment via home-like
residential treatment centers located in residential neighborhaods. Qur locations provide treatment for a
small number of residents at one time to maintain an intimate setting and a low resident to staff ratio.
Treatment within a residential neighborhood also allows our residents to feel more comfortable in a familiar
surrounding as well as providing greater transferability and internalization of the treatment experience to life




after treatment. Our locations do not look, feel or smell like a hospital and we strive to provide an
environment where residents feel like and are treated like psople, never patients.

Center for Discovery has been dedicated {o providing successful residential realment for years, and over
that time we have developed a proprietary treatment model that has helped us create a legacy of success.
Our proprietary program aflows for one-of-a-kind treatment to be provided to every ciient to support their
healing, growth, and recovery. Each resident is personally involved in creating their treatment program and
treatment is individualized for each resident to specifically address the issues and situation they are dealing
with. At Center for Discovery, we know that treatment is not only about the diagnosed issues, it is about the
contributing factors that underlie those condifions. We understand that while the symptoms may be similar,
the underlying factors are unique to each of our clients.

Our team of renowned experts helps guide clients and families to recovery, well-being and a healthy life. it
is our firm belief at Center for Discovery that families are critical to the solution. Research has shown that
family involvement is instrumentat in providing for successful treatment outcomes. At Center for Discovery,
it is never about blame. We focus on where you and your family go from here and how you get there.
Family is a primary source of support for our residents and is closely involved in the trealment process.

Each of our locations is accredited by the Joint Commission as a residential treatment cenier and maintains
the highest state licensure. JCAHO accreditation is a nationally recognized symbol of quality and reflects
our deep commitment to the highest professional and treatment standards. Center for Discovery is trusted
by the leading doctors, clinicians, diefitians, and insurance organizations in the country and many of our
residents are referred fo us through medical and therapeutic professionals.

3}  Provide a list of the Discovery Practice Management Inc.'s/Center for Discovery's eating disorder
facilities currently in operation, Include the name of the facility, street address, town and state.

See Attached Appendix C

4)  Provide a description of the Center for Discovery and how its proprietary treatment will benefit
Connecticut residents.

See response to question (2) for description of Center for Discovery.

See Attached Appendix D that depicts Center for Discovery’s empirical results for the treatment
of eating disorders over the past several years in a residential setting. As you can see,
residential treatment is incredibly effective in altering the life-threatening habits of individuals
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with eating disorders such as binging, purging, and restricting. Center for Discovery hopes to
offer this life saving level of care to the adult women of Connecticut who do not have access to
residential treatment in the state.

5) Provide by town name the proposed service area for the new facility.

The service will be provided in Fairfield, CT. The address of the proposed facility is 4536 Congress St,,
Fairfield, CT.

The service area will primarily be Fairfield County with some clients expected from neighboring Connecticut
counties and Westchester, NY.

6) Develop the need for the proposal based on population incidence by geographical area (e.g. town
Estimate the number of adult women within each listed town that need the proposed service.
Provide documentation that supports the statements that develop need.

See attachment E for Fairfield County population metrics.

Based off statistics presented in the original CON application and attached Fairfield County metrics, 1% of
the adult women between the ages of 18-65 will require our level of treatment, this projects approximately
2700 women in the Fairfield county area and 10,600 women in Connecticut overall. If we adjust the
numbers downward and assume only 33% of those clients in need actually seek and receive treatment, we
are still left with 891 women in Fairfield County and 3,512 women in Connecticut who require treatment for
an eating disorder at the residential level.

7)  The proposal included two articles in the initial CON application. Please address each of the

a. What is the source for the first article that begins on page 417

The source is: http:/fwww.eatingdisorderhope.com/information/statistics-studies

Their sources and references can be found at the end of the article and include the American
Journal of Psychiatry; International Journal of Eating Disorders; National Institute of Mental
Health; and others.

b. Explain how information in the second article beginning on page 47 was utilized in the
application.

This article was meant to reinforce the stalistics found in Article 1 and to highlight the eating disorder
prevalence in adult women and the high degree of eating disorder onset in women in their late teens
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8)

E)

and early twenties.

Provide a discussion that supports the number of beds proposed on page § for the facility.

We have zoning approvat for a 6 bed facility and have cleared fire and life safety requirements for
housing six individuals in the residential home. In addition, Discovery likes to keep the treatment
sefting small to allow for more 1 on 1 therapy with the clients and a more conducive healing
environment,

Concerning the Applicant's child care facilities in Connecticut, please address each of the
following:

a. The amended first provisional license for the Congress $t. location was effective for a period
of 60 days and expired on April 26, 2014, Was the license renewed? If ves, please provide a
copy. I no, explain why it was not renewed. Describe the services provided at the facility

during the period the license was in effect,

See Attachment F.

The license was renewed. The facility opened in February, 2014 and will be on conditionat licenses
for & months to 1 year with periedic reviews. The facilily provides residential eating disorder
treatment to adolescents.

b. The copy of child care facility license on page 63 lists the facility's address as 1320 Mill Road,
Please confirm that this is the correct and full address for the facility. Does the Applicant
expect that this facility’s license will be renewed by or on the expiration date of November

19, 20147 If not, please provide an explanation.

The full address of the facility is 1320 Mill Hill Road, Southport, GT 06824. Discovery fully expecis
the license to be renewed on or before the expiration date in November,

10) Explain how the proposal will improve quality, accessibility and cost effectiveness of health care

delivery in the region, including but not limited to (1) provision of or any change in the access to

services far Medicaid recipients and Indigent persans and (2} the impact upon the cost
effectiveness of providing access to services provided under the Medicald program.

Center for Discovery is not coniracted with Connecticut State Medicaid, However, we do take single case
agreements for Medicaid clients. In addition, Discovery has utilized sliding fees to accommodate individuals
whose insurance doesn't cover a large portion of reatment. Discovery has also launched a non-profit
scholarship in the Connecticut region that sponsors individuals who qualify for treatment but are unable to
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provide any compensation. The fund will sponsor several individuals every year to address indigent care.

11) Provide a discussion on the Applicant's private pay agreement with clients that are uninsured or
underinsured. Does the Applicant provide these clients with a sliding fee schedule?

We offer sliding fee schedules based on the proportion of care that insurance can cover and the individuat
is able to pay. We also have a non-profit scholarship that will cover several individuals every year who are
unable to pay for treatment.

12) If the proposal fails to provide or reduces access to services by Medicaid recipients or indigent
persons, provide explanation for good cause for doing so. Note: good cause shall not be
demanstrated solely on the basis of differences in reimbursement rates between Medicaid and
other health care payers.

While Center for Discovery is not contracted with Medicaid, we are still willing fo accept clients within the
Medicaid system on individual case agreements, sliding fee schetdules, or scholarships.

13) Which license(s) is the Applicant seeking to obtain from the State of Connecticut, Department of
Public Health in relation to the proposal?

Discovery seeks to obtain licensure as a Private Freestanding Mental Health Residential Living Center
under Sec. 19a-495-551 of the Connecticut Department of Public Health regulations.

14) The propram description on page 8 of the initial CON application states that the average length of
stay is two to three months. However, the volume projections on page 11 are based on an average
length of stay of "just over 40 days". Please revise the relevant sections of the initial CON
Application to be consistent for the average length of stay. (See pages 8 and_11}. Include volume
projections for number of bed days for each projected fiscal vear.

The Program Description on Page 8 details an incorrect length of stay. Our adolescent programs see an
average length of stay of 2-3 months; however, our adult programs average just over 40 days. Inpuis on
page 11 are consistent with 40 day stays.

15) Page 17 states that the volume statistics are conservative estimates based on similar 6-bed
homes. Please explain how the projections can increase higher than 50 clients based on 40-day
average length of stay with a fixed capacity of 2,190 bed days {365 days * 6 beds).

The conservative part of the estimate is the fime expecled to reach 90% capacity, or 49 clients per year.
The projections are conservative in that 90% capacity is not reached until year 3 of operation, in contrast,
our adolescent facilities in Connecticut reached 80% capacity within 6 months of opening.

16) Please explain what is meant by a "30 unit (client days} bump vear over year” given in response to
Question 7e on page 18.

79




1 unitis equal to 1 client for 1 day. A 30 unit increase per year over the projected opening year values
would maintain stable profitabifity in the face of inflation and rising wages. This woutd be based on
projections of only serving 35 clients in the first year.

17) Page 13 states that the psychiatrist to be on staff at the new facility must be experienced in
adolescent psychiatry and treatment. Please amend the description to include the experience that
will be appropriate for treating adutt women.

See Attachment G : Psychiatrist must have experience in adult psychiatry, preferably at least one year of
experience with adult women with eating disarders.

18) Provide supporting documentation to support the statement made on page 18 concerning high
levels of relapse when a client steps down from acute care directly to an outpatient program.

See attachment D which contains the following excerpt and references. Please note, this is a prefiminary research
report containing internal and external statistics that has not yet been published. its sources of readmission rates are
based off of pser reviewed scientific joumals,

“Since Center for Discovery began freafing eating disorders in 1999, we have treated almost 2000 clients at the
residential fevel. Of those clients, less than 14% have needed to readmif anytime in the 15 years. This readmission
rate is significantly lower than those typically found for a higher level-of-care for ealing disorders, which can range
from 45% to 77.5%.5.10"

#Sleinhausen, H., Gigoriu-Serbanescu, M., Boyadjieva, 8., Neumirker, K., & Meizke, C. W. (2008). Course and prediciors of rehospitalizalion in adolescent
anarexia nervesa in  mullisite study. Infernational Journal of Eating Disorders, 41(1), 28-36.

“Lay, B., Jennen-Steinmetz, C., Reinhard, £, & Schmidt, M. H. {2002). Characterislics of inpatieat weight gain in adolescent anorexia neivosa: Relation fo speed
of relapse and re-admission. European Ealing Disorders Review, 70(1), 22-40.

19) DBoes the Applicant have relationships with other Connecticut providers that provide a referral
base for the proposed facility?

Yes, referrals come from local Mental Health out-patient therapists in Connecticut, Yale New Haven
Hospital system, and local physicians and psychiatrists. In addition, many clients seek eating disorder
treatment at Long Island Jewish Hospital, New York Presbyterian Outlook Program, and Eafing Disorder
180 PHPAOP in Long Island. These programs are currently serving adults in both Connacticut and New
York and currently refer adolescents to our adolescent residential programs.

20) Explaln how clients discharged from the provosed inpatient program will gbtain outpatient care in
their community,

80




In general, clients step down to an Intensive Outpatient (IOP) level of care after residential treatment.
Center for Discovery recently opened an {OP in Greenwich, CT which will be available to all discharging
clients. If the location of our Greenwich facility is not conducive for certain clients, our team will locate the
nearest lOP center and provide a referral. In other cases, clients will be referred back to their original
outpatient therapist or one that we refer them fo in their local area.

21} Provide a list of existing providers in Connecticut that have outpatient treatment programs for
eating disorders.

Center for Discovery has an IOP located in Greenwich, CT.
Renfrew Ealing Disorder Treatment has an I0P in Greenwich, CT.
Walden Behavioral Health has an [OP located in Hartford, CT.

22} Provide documentation demonstrating that the Applicant has a transfer agreement or procedure

in place in anticipation that a client may encounter the need for emergency care. Discuss the
procedures to be followed and the anticipated roles of the program directar, the physician{s),
psychiatrist{s} and the acute care hospital.

See aftachment H

23) Whois the owner of the building(s) and tand where the facility will be located? What is the
relationship of the owner to the Applicant?

The owner of lhe facility is Valley Forge Financial Group (VFFG). VFFG is a stakeholder in Center for
Discovery and Discovery Practice Management. They help purchase facilities and offer long-term leases
(~15-20 years) to Discovery.

24) Demonstrate how this proposal wilf impact the financial strength of the health care system in the

state or that the proposal is financially feasible.

The proposal is financially feasible for the foliowing reasons:

- Discovery already operates the property and has made the capital improvements necessary for
meeting applicable fire, zoning and health codes.

- The facility is already fumnished and ready for operation, so capital costs going forward are zero.

- Discovery already has insurance contracts with the major providers in Connecticut due fo the
existence of our residential programs for adolescents.

- Please refer to financial attachments | and If for expected revenues and profitability.

- Discovery Practice Management has sufficient funds and cash flow from its other operations to
support the facility in case of a revenue shorffall,

81







BEHAVIORAL HEALTH HOLDINGS Ii, INC,

AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
AND
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
DECEMBER 31, 2013

83




BEHAVIORAL HEALTH HOLDINGS i, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditor's Report
. Consolidated Financial Statements:

Consclidated Balance Sheet
Consolidated Statament of Income
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholder's Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidaied Financial Statements

Supplemental Information:
Consolidating Balance Sheet
Consolidating Statement of Income

Schedute of Management Adjusted EBITDA

=17

18
19

20

84




HOLTHOUSE
S| CARLIN &
‘Ei \/AN TR]GTLLP

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholder of
Behavioral Health Holdings Il, Inc.:

Report on the Consoclidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Behavioral Health Holdings Il, Inc.
and subsidiary (collectively, the "Company"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2013, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholder's equity
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Nanagement's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2013, and the resuilts of their operations and their
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

11444 W. Olympic Boulevard, 11th Floor, West Los Angeles, CA 90064 = 4550 E. Thousand Oaks Boulevard, Suite 100, Westlake Village, CA 91362
100 Oceangate, Suite 800, Long Beach, CA 90802 = 117 East Colorado Boulevard, 6th Floor, Pasadena, CA 91105
555 Anton Boulevard, Suite 700, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 » 15760 Ventura Boulevard, Suite 1700, Encino, CA 91436
400 W. Ventura Boulevard, Suite 250, Camarillo, CA 93010 115 West 2nd Street, Suite 204, Fort Worth, TX 93010
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Independent Auditor's Report
(Continued)

Report on the Supplemental Information

Qur audit was conductad for the purpose of foriming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying consolidating balance sheet as of December 31, 2013, consolidating statement
of income and schedule of management adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (“Management Adjusted EBITDA") for the year ended December 31, 2013 are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and not required as part of the consclidated financial statements. This
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlylng
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements.

This information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and recanciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our oplnion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a
whole.

77%&-‘%!/21% Con ooy é—[/Zz/y; 3?;7{:(—!..;"

/

LLong Beach, California
April 4, 2014
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BEHAVIORAL HEALTH HOLDINGS H, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
DEGEMBER 31, 2013

ABSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Deferred income taxes
Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Deferred financing costs, net
Goodwill

Intangible assets, net

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Revolving line of credit
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current fabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities

Lang-term debt, net of current portion
Deferred income taxes
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (notes 5, 6, 7 and 8)

Shareholder's equity:
Common stock, $0.0001 par value, 1,000 shares authorized,
101 shares issued and outstanding
Additional paid-in capital
Retained eamings
Total sharsholder's equity

Total liabilifies and shareholder's equity

See accompanying notes fo consolidated financial stafements.

3

$

<A

871,605
5,907432
433,229

125,847

7,337,913

1,250,675
244,448
6,922,000
12,554,286

711,279
29,020,601

600,000
495,888
872,133
1,235,765

3,203,786

19,745,943
606,520

23,556,249

1
4,512,431
951,920

5,464,362
29,020,601
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13.Bi. Please provide one year of actual resuits and three years of projections of Total Eacitity revenue, expense and volume statistics
without, incremental to and with the CON proposal in the following repoiting format:

FY EY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY

Actual Projected Projected  Projected Projected Frojected Projecled Projected Projected Projected
Descrintion Resuits W/out CON fncremental With CON Wiout CON Incrementat WIith CON Wiout CON Ingremantat  With CON
NET PATIENT REVENUE
Non-Governmemt S0 $1.432,000 $1,432,000 80 51,546,800 $1,646,800 30 $1,893,820 $1,893.820
Medicare 30 $0 S0 $0 $0 30 30 $0 50
Medicaid and Other Medicai Assistance 30 30 50 50 30 80 30 30 S0
Other Government $0 30 50 §6 30 30 30 $0 S0
Total Nel Patient Patient Revenue 50 50  $1,432,000 $1,432,000 S0 $1,646,800 $1,646,800 30 $1,893,820 $1,893,820
Other Operating Revenue S0 $0 50 ] $0 30
Revenue from Cperaticns 50 50  $1,432,000 $1,432,000 50 $1,646,800 51,646,800 30 $1,893,820 $1,893,820
OFERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and Fringe Benefits 30 $504,000  $504,000 s0 $524,160  $524,160 30 $545,126  $545,126
Professional / Contracted Services 50 $423,750  $123,750 50 $128,700  $128,700 30 $133,848 $133,848
Supplies and Drugs $0 340,800 $40,800 80 542,432 $42.432 30 $44,129 $44,129
Bad Debts $0 $0 $0 30 $0 50 50 30 30
Other Operating Expense $0 $61.200 $61,200 50 363,648 $63.648 30 $66,194 $E6, 104
Subtotal E) 50 5729,750 $729,750 30 $758,240  $758,940 0 $789,288 $789,258
Depreciaticn/Amortizalion ¢ 50 $0
Interest Expense 30 S0 $0
Lease Expense &0 $125.000  $125.000 $125,000  §125,000 $125,000  $125.000
Total Operating Expenses 50 50 $B54,750  $B54,75C 30 $BB3,240  §BB83,940 50 $914,258  §914,298
Income (L.oss) from Operations $0 30 $577,250  $577,250 30 $762,860 §752,860 30 $879,522 §979,522
Non-Operating Income 50 30 30
Income before provision for income {axes 50 s0 $577.250  §577,250 S0 $762,860 $762,860 $0 $979,522 §979,522
Provision for income taxes $202,038  $202,038 | 5267.001__ $267,001 $342,833 342,833
Net Income 80 k] 3375213  $375,213 50 $495,859  $495,859 %0 $636,650 S636,690
Relained earnings, beginning of year 30 S0 50 50 $375.213  $375,213 g0 $871.072 8871072
Retained eamings, end of year 30 30 $375213 8375213 30 3871.072  $871,072 50 $1,507,761 $1,507.761

FTEs 10 10 10
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12.C(ii). Please provide three years of projections of incremental revenue, expense and volume statistics attributable to the proposal in the following reporting format:

Type of Service Description Residenlial Eating Disorder Treatment for Women

Type of Unit Description: Client Days

# of Months in Operation 12

B¥ o o m (2) (3) (4) O] ©® (7) (8) )] (10)

FY Projected Incremental Rale Units Gross Allowances/ Charity Bad Net Operating Gain/{Loss)

Total Incremental Expenses: $854,750 Revenue Deductions Care Debt Revenue Expenses from Operations
Col.2*Col. 3 Col.4 - Col.5 Col. 1 Total * Col.8-Col. 9

Total Facility by -Col.6-Col,7 Col. 47 Col. 4 Total

Payer Category:

Medicare 0 $0 30 30 50

Medicaid 50 0 $0 S0 S0 S0

CHAMPUS/TriCare 50 0 30 30 50 30

Total Governmental 0 $0 S0 30 $0 $0 50 50

Commericial Insurers $1,000 1.328 $1,328,000 $1,328,000 $792,673 $535,327

Uninsured $1.300 80 $104,000 $104,000 $62,077 $41,923

Total NonGovernment 50 1,408 $1,432,000 30 $0 50 $1,432,000 $854,750 $577.250

Total All Payers $0 1,408 $1,432,000 30 $0 50 $1,432,000 $854,750 $577,250
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Connecticut House Organization Chart
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CENTER

Facility Address Service Client License & JCAHO #’s
(Ages)

Center for 16305 SE 37" Street Adult Family Home
Discovery, Bellevue, WA 98008 RTC, PHP Adult - Female Only | Lic-752239, NO Expiration
Bellevue, King Co. Eating Disorders | {(ages 16+) 6 Bd JCAHO-493514, Exp. 4/10/16
Center for 3737 Lawson Road Child Welfare Agency & Group
Discovery, Glenview, IL 80026 RTC, PHP Adolescent Home

Chicago, Cook Co.

Eating Disorders

(ages 11-21) 8 Bd

Child Welfare Agency Lic:524264-02
Group Home:Lic-527214, Exp 910117
JCAHO-551681, Exp. 3/26/16

Center for 9844 Pangborn Congregate Living

Discovery, Downey, CA 90240 RTC, PHP Adolescent Lic-280001593, Exp 11/04/14
Downey, Los Eating Disorders | (ages 10-19)6 Bd | JCAHO- 150964, Exp. 2/8/16
Angeles Co.

Center for 7511 176" Street SW Children's Agency

Discovery, Edmonds, WA 98026 RTC, PHP Adolescent Lic-436020, Exp, 10/20/15
Edmonds, Eating Disorders | (ages 11-18)6Bd | JCAHO-493514, Exp. 4/10/16
Snohomish, Co.

Center for 4536 Congress St. Child Care Facility & Group Home
Discovery, Fairfield, CT 06824 RTC, PHP Adolescent

Fairfield, Fairfield, Eating Disorders | (ages 10-18) 6 Bd | Lic-CCF/GH 137 ex 5/25/14

Co

Center for 46890 Rancho Higuera Congregate Living

Discovery, Rd RTC, PHP Adult - Female Only | Lic-550001930, Exp 5/16/14
Fremont, Alameda Fremont, CA 94539 Eating Disorders | (ages 16+) 6 Bd JCAHO-150964, Exp. 2/8/16
Co.

Center For 7 Riverville Road TBD

Discovery, Suite 2A 0P Adolescent

Greenwich, Fairfield | Greenwich, CT 06831 Eating Disorders Ages: TBD

Co

Cenler for 2115 Las Palomas Congregate Living

Discovery, La Habra, CA 80631 RTC, PHP Adalescent Lic-550001575, Exp 04/13/14

La Habra, Orange
Co.

Eating Disorders

(ages 10-19) 6 Bd

JCAHO- 150964, Exp.2/8/16

Center for Center for | 4136 Ann Arbor Road, RTC, PHP Adolescent Congregate Living

Discovery, Lakewood, CA 90712 Eating Disorders | (ages 10-19)6Bd | Lic-980001602, Exp. 11/04/14
Lakewood, Los JCAHO-150964, Exp. 2/8/16
Angeles Co.
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Center For 1000 Quail Street

Discovery, Suite 290 Business license:

Newpost Beach, MNewport Beach, CA 0P Adolescent and BT30046281

Orange Co 92660 Eating Disorder | Adult {10+)

Center for 1895 Altschul Ave RTC, PHP Adolescent Congregate Living

Discovery, Menla Park, CA 94025 Eafing Bisorders | {ages 10-19)6Bd | Lic-550000127, Exp. 2/26/15
Menlo Park, San JCAHO-150984, Exp. 2/8/16
Matgo, Co.

Center for 30175 Avenida Tranguilla Congregate Living

Discovery, R.PV, CAB0275 RTC, PHP Adult - Female Cnly | Lic-980001355, Exp. 03/23/14

Rancho Palos
Verdes, Los Angeles
Co.

Eating Disorders

{ages 16+)6 Bd

JCAHO-150884, Exp.2/8116

Genter for 3013 Woodford Dr. Congregate Living
Discovery, La Jolla, CA 92037 RTC, PHP Adoclescent Lic-550000153, Exp. 52114
San Diego, San Eafing Disorders | (2ges 10-19)6Bd | JCAHO-150964, Exp. 2/8/16
Diege Co.

Center for 1320 Mill Hill Road Child Care Faclity & Group
Discovery, Southpert, CT 06824 RTC, PHP Adolescent Home

Southpor, Fairfiefd
Co.

Ealing Disorders

{ages 10-18) 6 Bd

Lic-CCF/GH132, Exp. 11/19/14
JCAHO-532443, Exp. 9/9/16

Cenler for
Discovery,
Virginia, Fairfax

5343 Summii Drive
Fairfax, VA 22030

RTC, PHP
Eating Disorders

Adolescent
(ages 10-18) 8 Bd

Children's Residenlial Treatment
Center

Lic#2240-14-G04 Exp. 6115/14
JCAHO-653993, Exp. 512214
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Treating eating disorders
since 1997, Center for
Discovery has a strong
commitment to a research
based approach. To that
end, the following data were
compiled from a review of
741 clients’ treatment at

the Center for Discovery for
active Anorexia Nervosa (AN)
and active Bulimia Nervosa
(BN).

CENTER FOR DISCOVERY™

/

TABLE 1: Adult AN clients, who entered treatment extremely malnourished, with an
average percent of ideal body weight (IBW) in the low 70s, had significant increases of
approximately 7.5 percentage points on average. For adolescent clients with AN-Restricting
Type, the mean percent of IBW increased by 13.58; for adolescent clients with AN-Purging
Type, mean percent of IBW increased by 11.61. These increases represent an improvement
from medically compromising averages of between 76.5% and 79.5% IBW at intake to
above 90% at discharge. Reaching the benchmark of 90% IBW for developing adolescents
is important for a number of reasons including a marked reduction of symptoms of mal-
nutrition? and the evidence that psychopathological symptoms can persist for years when
weight restoration is incomplete?. Furthermare, leading eating disorder researchers? cite
slow and low weight restoration as dangerous, as it results in not just the eventual risk

of bone disease and relapse but also a rise in psychological inertia. Because persistence

of low body weight predicts poorer long-term outcome® and approximately 20-25% of
individuals with AN will become chronically ill*¢ , Center for Discovery is committed to
aggressive weight restoration.

“TABLE 1: AVERAGE PERCENT OF IBW IN ANOREXIC CLIENTS
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TABLE 2: The mean body weight of adolescent clients with AN-Restricting Type
increased by 16.01 Ibs from intake to discharge; for clients with AN-Purging Type mean
weight increased by 14.20 Ibs. For adults, mean weight increased by 9.87 Ibs for clients
with AN-Restricting Type and by 8.71 Ibs for clients with AN-Purging Type. During their
length of stay (adolescent AN-R m=57.5 days; adolescent AN-P m=52.5 days; adult AN-R
m=36.5 days; adult AN-P m=27.6 days), Center for Discovery clients gained 1.95 lbs per
week on average, which is well above the benchmark of 1.76 Ibs per week that outcome
research suggests provide clients significantly less clinical deterioration following treatment
than that of lower weight gains.”

“TABLE 2: AVERAGE WEIGHT IN ANOREXIC CLIENTS 7,
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Treating eating disorders since 1999, Center for Discovery has a strong commitment to evidence-based
practice. To this end, Discovery has been collecting data on our clients and, in several separate research
endeavors, has begun to be able to answer pertinent questions related to 1) the process of treatment, 2) the
post-discharge experience, and 3) the need for readmission.

The process of treatment

Center for Discovery collects intake and discharge data on clients with eating disorders and has recently
teamed with North Shore LIJ and The Feinstein [nstitute for Biomedical Research to begin to analyze this
de-identified data. We are especially interested in the outcome of residential treatment and factors that
may correlate with need of residential treatment, with treatment success, and with need for readmission.
In the interim of the external data analyses, we have run preliminary analyses. The following results are
from data collected from clients who received treatment at Center for Discovery between January 2006
through April 2014 (N = 1730).

Graph 1: Adult clients with active' anorexia (AN), who entered treatment extremely malnourished, with
an average percent of ideal body weight (IBW) in the mid-70s, had significant increases of approximately
9.1 percentage points on average. For adolescent clients with active AN-Restricting Type (AN-R), the
mean percent of ideal body weight (IBW) increased by 13.7; for adolescent clients with active AN-
Purging Type (AN-P), mean percent of IBW increased by 12.3. These increases represent an
improvement from medically compromising averages of between 77.3% and 78.9% IBW at intake to
above 90% at discharge. Reaching the benchmark of 90% IBW for developing adolescents is important
for a number of reasons including a marked reduction of symptoms of malnutrition” and the evidence that
psychopathological symptoms can persist for years when weight restoration is incomplete®. Furthermore,
leading eating disorder researchers™' cite slow and low wei ght restoration as dangerous, as it results in not
just the eventual risk of bone disease and relapse but also a rise in psychological inertia.

Graph 1: Weight Restoration
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Turning to weight in pounds, during their length of stay (adolescent AN-R, m = 59.1 days; adolescent
AN-P, m = 56.6 days; adult AN-R, i = 43.0 days; adult AN-P, m = 46.1 days), Center for Discovery
clients with active AN gained 1.92 pounds per week on average — a rate of restoration that is hard to
achieve at lower levels of care and increases the likelihood of lasting recovery.’ Because persistence of
low body weight predicts poorer long-term outcome® and approximately 20-25% of individuals with AN
will become chronically ill*®, Center for Discovery is committed to timely weight restoration.
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Graph 2: Center for Discovery provides the necessary structure for a swift cessation of purging
behavior, a symptom often difficult to extinguish in lower levels-of-care. On average, adolescents and
adults with either AN-P or BN, who were exhibiting purge behaviors upon admission, were able to reduce
these behaviors by 99%. Furthermore, during an average length of stay (adolescent AN-P, i = 50.2 days;
adolescent BN, m = 41.4 days; adult AN-P, m = 39.3 days; adult BN, 1= 33.1 days), the vast majority of
clients were able to stop purging completely.

Graph 2: Reduction in Purging Behavior
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Graph 3: Because Center for Discovery takes a holistic approach, symptoms of depression and anxiety
are important targets for treatment. Graph 3 presents average scores on the Beck Depression Inventory
(BDI) and Beck Anxiety Inventory (BAI) at the time of intake and discharge for adult and adolescent
clients with a diagnosis of either AN or BN. On average, our adolescent clients entered treatment at
Center for Discovery within the moderate range of depression and anxiety, whereas adult clients began
treatment within the severe range for depression and anxiety.® However, both adolescent and adult
clients scored within the mild range of depression and anxiety at the time of discharge, a vast
improvement in mood and related functioning, and an improvement that strengthens lasting recovery.

Graph 3: Mood Improvement
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Center for Discovery is dedicated to restoring weight, greatly reducing purge behavior, and improving
mood, and we make great strides in these areas during clients’ treatment with us. However, symptom
improvement in treatment, no matter how great, is just the first step. Lasting recovery, although built
upon the foundation of the work clients do in treatment, is forged once clients leave the structure of
Center for Discovery. Thus, Discovery researchers knew following up with families after discharge
would be imperative and initiated a research project to study clients’ post-discharge experience.
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The post-discharge experience:

The following information was collected from parents of our adolescent clients (17 = 68) who were 6
months to [ year post-discharge from Center for Discovery’s eating disorder residential treatment.

©  95.6 % of clients engaged in aftercare within 7 days of discharge (i.e., began PHP/IOP or
attended outpatient treatment appointments)

© Forclients who had been diagnosed with AN and were discharged at or above 90% of ideal body
weight, 88.9% were reported as having maintained their weight

©  For the clients with a history of purging, 78.6% were reported as being purge-free the month

before contact

©  81.0% of clients discharged to a lower level of care did not need to be stepped back up to a higher
level of eating disorder treatment at Discovery or any other treatment setting
© Additionally, parents were asked to answer the following two questions using the below scale:

How do you feel like your child is doing compared to before they began Center for Discovery?
How do you feel like your child is doing compared to when they discharged from Center for Discovery?

Much better

Better

About the same Worse Much worse

2

1

0 -1 -2

Examining the first question, the vast majority of parents reported that their child is doing much better
since before they began treatment at Center for Discovery. The answer to the second question, which was
designed to measure whether improvements achieved while in treatment were maintained after discharge,
was a bit of a surprise to our researchers. Although we have routinely watched clients make great strides
during their treatment, we could only hope that clients did not backslide after leaving the structure of
Center for Discovery. However, the data suggests that not only are improvements maintained, but that
Center for Discovery clients actually continue to get better following their discharge. In fact, 84% of
parents reported their child is better or much better since discharging from Center for Discovery.

Graph 4: Parents' Report of Post-Discharge Progress

Average Response
(=]

2 : Much better

1 : Better

0: About the same

2

-1: Worse

-2 : Much worse

How do you feel your child is
doing compared to before they
began Center for Discovery?

How do you feel your child is
doing compared to when they
discharged from Center for
Discovery?

100




In summary, 6 months to 1 year after discharge, clients who had received treatment from Center for
Discovery were not only maintaining the improvements they had made in treatinent, but had actually
continued to improve, with over % of clients with a history of purging having ceased this behavior and
approximately 90% of clienfs with AN having maintained their weight within a healthy range.

The need for readmissiomn:
Since Center for Discovery began treating eating disorders in 1999, we have treated almost 2000 clients at
the residential level. Of those clients, less than 14% have needed to readmit anytime in the 15 years.

This readmission rate is significantly lower than those typically found for a higher level-of-care for cating
disorders, which can range from 45% to 77.5%.>1°

Through all of our research endeavors, Center for Discovery hopes to enhance our program, give
confidence to families and clients even before they step thirough our doors, afford insurance companies
incentives for authorizing the necessary length of treatment, and enrich the fieid’s understanding of eating
disorder treatment. However, it is only with the help of our clients and their families that our research is
possible — this collaboration fuels our ability to continue helping in the fight against eating disorders.

If you or a loved is suffering, please call 866-407-2376,

YActive AN indicates clients who were below 85% of [BW upon admission to Center far Discovery.
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State & County QuickFacts

Fairfield County, Connecticut

Fairfield
People QuiclFacts County Connecticut
Population, 2013 estimate 939,904 3,596,080
Population, 2012 estimate 933,733 3,591,765
Population, 2010 (April 1} estimates base 916,829 3,574,007
Population, percent change, April 1, 2010 to July 1, 2013 2.5% 0.6%
Population, percent change, April 1, 2010 to July 1, 2012 1.8% 0.5%
Population, 2010 916,829 3,574,097
Persons under 5 years, percent, 2012 5.9% 5.4%
Persans under 18 years, percent, 2012 24.1% 22.1%
Persons 65 years and ower, percent, 2012 14.0% 14.8%
Female persons, percent, 2012 51.3% 51.3%
“\White alone, percent, 2012 @) 80.6%  82.0%
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Black or African American alone, percent, 2012 (a)
American Indian and Alaska Native alone, percent, 2012 (a)
Asian alone, percent, 2012 (a)

‘Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander alone, percent,
2012 (a)

Two or More Races, percent, 2012
Hispanic or Latino, percent, 2012 (b)
White alone, not Hispanic or Latino, percent, 2012

Living in same house 1 year & over, percent, 2008-2012
Foreign bom persons, percent, 2008-2012

Language other than English spoken at home, pct age 5+,
2008-2012

High school graduate or higher, percent of persons age 25+,
2008-2012

Bachelor’s degree or higher, percent of persons age 25+,
2008-2012

Veterans, 2008-2012

Mean travel time to work {minutes), workers age 16+, 2008-
2012

Housing units, 2013

Homeownership rate, 2008-2012

Housing units in multi-unit structures, percent, 2008-2012
Median value of owner-occupied housing units, 2008-2012
Mouseholds, 2008-2012

Persons per household, 2008-2012

Per capita money income in past 12 months (2012 dollars),
2008-2012

Median household income, 2008-2012
Persons below poverty level, percent, 2008-2012

Business QuickFacis

11.8%
0.5%
5.2%

0.1%
1.8%
17.8%
65.3%

20.2%
28.2%
89.0%

44.6%
43,159

281
362,457
69.7%
35.3%
$447,500
332,068
2.70

$48,900
382,614
8.8%

Fairfield
County

11.2%
0.58%
4.2%

0.1%
2.1%
14.2%
70.3%

87.9%
13.5%

21.2%

89.0%

36.2%
228,291

24.8
1,487,982
68.3%
34.5%
$285,900
1,360,184
2.54

$37,807
$69.519
10.0%

Connecticut

Private nonfarm establishments, 2012
Private nonfarm employment, 2012

Private nonfarm employment, percent change, 2011-2012

26,814
405,226

88,210
1,463,7321
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Nonemployer establishments, 2012
Total number of firms, 2007
Black-owned firms, percent, 2007

American Indian- and Alaska Native-owned firms, percent,

2007
Asian-owned firms, percent, 2007

Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander-owned firms,
percent, 2007

Hispanic-owned firms, percent, 2007
Women-owned firms, percent, 2007

1.7%
87,297
108,910
4.7%

0.4%
3.3%

mH
5.9%
28.6%

1.5%]
261,922
332,150

4.4%

0.5%
3.3%

0.0%
4.2%
28.1%

Manufacturers shipments, 2007 ($1000)

Merchant wholesaler sales, 2007 ($1000)

Retail sales, 2007 ($1000)

Retail sales per capita, 2007

Accommaodation and food senices sales, 2007 ($1000)
Building permits, 2012

Geography QuickFacts

20,028,377
78,881,637
15,702,222
$17,661
1,861,946
2138
Fairfield

58,404,858
107,917,037
52,165,480
514,953
9,138,437
4,669

County Connecticut

Land arez in square miles, 2010

Persons per square mile, 2010

FIPS Code

Metropolitan or Micropolitan Statistical Area

1: Includes data not distributed by county.

{a) Includes persans reporting only one race.

624.89
1,467.2
a1

Bridyeport-
Stamford-

Norwalk, CT

Meiro Area

{b) Hispanics may be of any race, so also are inctuded in applicable race categories.

x Suppressed to avoid disclosure of confidential information
F: Few er than 25 firms

FN: Footnate on this item for this area in place of data

MNA: Not available

4,842.36
738.1
09
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DEPARTMENT of CHILDREN and FAMILIES

NMaking o Diffevence for Childven, Frmilies and Conmuunitics i

Joetle Kalz ‘ Dannel . Malloy
Commissioner Governor

May 35,2014

Craig M. Brown, Ph.D, Chief Executive Officer
Discovery Practice Management, Inc.

4281 Katella Avenue, Suite 111

Los Alamitos, CA 90720

Re: Second Provisional License-Center for Discovery and Adolescenl Change- Fairfield
Dear Dr, Brown,

Enclosed you will find the Second Provisional License for the Center for Discovery and Adolescent
Change located at 4536 Congress Street, Fairfield, CT. This licensed is issued effective April 27, 2014
for a period of time not to exceed sixty days. The Department may issue up to six provisional licenses
during this initial licensing period. The Center for Discovery and Adolescent Change program will
remain on a provisional license until the Department has verified that all regulatory requirements have
been met. Should you have any questions regarding this license or the licensing process please do not
hesitate to contact me at 860-550-6310 or via email at tom.cuchara@ct.gov.

Sincerely,
5 A Vi

’ y At -
S b N

Tom Cuchara, Regulatory Consultant
DCF Licensing Unit

STATE OF CONNECTICUT
www.ct.gov/dcf
An Equal Opportunity Employer
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o The Psychiatrist is responsible to consuit with the DD, DOO, and COO to ensure
appropriate psychiatric/pharmacological interventions. The Psychiatrist sees eachresident
and completes a psychiatric assessment. If indicated, medications are prescribed, and
monitored by the Psychiatrist at least once weekly. n addition, the Psychiatrist consults
with the treatment team and attends the weekly treatment planning meetings. Mustbe a
gradtsate of an approved medical school and licensed in the state. Must be eligible for
membership in the local branch of the State Medical Sociely. Must be experienced in adult
psychiatry and treatment. Preferably minimum 1 year of experience with eating disorders.
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BRIDGEPORT

HOSPITAL
YALE New HaveN HeaLTH

February 19, 2014

Tim Davis

Business Development Manager
Center for Discovery

4281 Katella Avenue, Suite 111
Los Alamitos, CA 90720

RE: Transfer Agreement

Dear Mr. Davis:

This letter is in reference to a transfer agreement between Bridgeport Hospital and Center for
Discovery — New England effective October 15, 2012, pursuant to which the parties agreed on
the form and protocol for patient transfers from Center for Discovery - New England to
Bridgeport Hospital (the “Transfer Agreement™).

[ understand that Center for Discovery — New England has added a new site in Fairfield, CT
(“Center for Discovery — Fairfield”), and wishes to add this new site to the “Transfer
Agreement.” This letter hereby amends the Transfer Agreement to add Center for Discovery —
Fairfield, effective on the date of your signature below. All other terms and conditions of the
Transfer Agreement remain in effect. Please sign where indicated below to indicate your
agreement with the foregoing amendment to the “Transfer Agreement,” and return a signed copy
of this letter to me.

Very truly yours,

/ 1 e 1
Norman G. Roth
Executive Vice-President & COO
Understood and agreed:
CENTWQERY
By: /——-f\- / S—

Name: ~71pt__ Davls
Title: Zusiaces Be:u;f.\pru o lencay
Date: c?!!ﬂ‘l/!’-/ :

267 Grant Street

P.O. Box 5000

Bridgeport, CT 06610-0120
203.354.3000
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TRANSFER AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
BRIDGEPORT HOSPITAL
AND
THE CENTER FOR DISCOVERY — NEW ENGLAND

This Transfer Agreement (“Agreement” is effective this /5~ day of Crese s , 20/,
by and between The Center for Discovery - New England, (“Trausferring FACILITY™) and Bridgeport
Hospital (“Receiving Hospital™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Transferring FACILITY is a properly licensed intensive residential treatment

program for adolescent females and males between the ages of 10 to 19 years old located in Southport,
CT.

WHEREAS, Receiving Hospital is a properly licensed general acute care hospital in Bridgeport,
CT

WHEREAS, Transferring FACILITY recognizes that at times its patients may require
emergency and non-emergency medical services available at the Receiving Hospital.

WHEREAS, the parties desire to enter into this Agreement to address arrangements under which
patients under the care of Transferring FACILITY may be transferred to the Receiving Hospital
pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth herein.

ARTICLE I - PATIENT TRANSFERS

1.1 Patient Transfers. When a patient transfer is necessary for emergency or non-emergency
medical services which are not available at Transferring FACILITY, Transferring FACILITY shall
make a concerted effort to transfer the patient as soon as is practical, and Receiving Hospital agrees to
accept the patient, provided that all applicable conditions for transfer and admission are met and

appropriate facilities and qualified personnel are available to accommodate and provide care to meet the
patient’s needs.

1.2 Advance Notification. Prior to transferring the patient, Transferring FACILITY must
receive confirmation from the Receiving Hospital that it can accept the patient. The purpose of the
advance notice is to determine if the Receiving Hospital has available space and qualified personnel to
treat the patient. Each party agrees to notify the other party of the names or classifications of individuals

who may arrange for or accept transfers. A patient shall only be transferred to Receiving Hospital upon
the written order of the patient’s attending physician.

13 Transfer Consent. Transferring FACILITY shall have responsibility for obtaining any
required consent from the patient or the legally responsible person acting on the patient’s behalf prior to

the transfer. If such consent is not possible, the consent of the patient’s physician shall be obtained by
Transferring FACILITY. _
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14 Transportation of Patient. Transferring FACILITY shall be responsible for effectuaring
all transfers with qualified personnel and any transportation equipment medically necessary for safe

patent transfer. Jn all patien: transfers from Transferring FACILITY 1o Receiving Hospial,
Transferring FACILITY shall be solely responsible for, and shal] indernify and hold Receiving
Hospital harmless from, any and all imjuries, damages or losses to the patient or the patient’s personal
property arising out of or in any way connected with any actions or aciivities occurring at anv iime
during said transfer of the patient from Transferting FACILITY wntil the patient enters Receiving
Hospital’s building and in non-emergency cases. the Receiving Hospita)'s authorized personnel accept
responsibitity for such patient in writing.

1.5 Transfer Protocol. Transferring PACILITY and Receiving Hospital shall follow the

transfer protocol set forth in Exhibii 4 with respect to the respansibilities of Transferring FACILITY
and the documentation to be provided by Transferring FACILITY .

1.6 Patient's Personal Effects. Transferring FACILITY shall make amrangements for
transferring with the patient, or wn the case of ap CINEIZENCY, as $00m as is practicable afier the patient’s

transfer, appropriate and necessary personal properiy of the patient,

17 Payment for Services. Charges for services performed by either facility under this
Agreement shall be collected by the facility rendeding the services. Such collection shail come directly
from the patient, third-party payors or other sources normally billed by that Institution, and neither
facility shall have any liability to the other for such charges except 10 the extent that such liabilities

would exist separate and apart from this Agreement with other healthcare facilitics,

ARTICLE Il - TERM AND TERMINATION

2 lerm.  Subject to each party’s right of termination as set forth below, this Agreement
shalt be for a term of one (1) vear from the date first set forth above and shalt be renewed au

tomnaticaily
for successive one (1) vear periods.

22  Termination. Notwithstanding anvthing herein to the confrary, this Agreement may be
terminated at any time as follows:

2.2.1 Mutual Agreement. Whenever Transferring FACILITY and Receiving Hospita:
shall mutually agree to the termination in writing,

222 With Cause. With cause by either party upon the default by the other party of any
term, covenant or condition of this Agreement, where such default continues for a period of ten (10)

days after the defaulting party receives written notice thereof from the other party specifying ‘the
existence of such a default.

2.2.3  Without Cause. Without cause by either party upon at least ten {10} days written
notice given by either party to the other party in which case the Agreement shatl terminate og the date
specified in such notice,
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224 Loss of Licensure, Immediately upon written potice should
- . - N
ficense to operate susperded or yevoked or otherwise fail to be
state agency,

either party have jts
licensed 1o operate by the appropriate

ARTICLE 111 - MISCELLANEQUS

it Non-Exclusivity, Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed or inerpreted ag
requiring either party 1o transfer its patients to the other party’s facility, Transferting FACILITY shall
be free to transfer its patients to other general acute care hospitals.

3.2 Independent Contractor Status. Both parties to this Agreement are acting as independent
conuactors.  This Agreement is for the sole purpose of facilitzting the transf:

er of patients and
information between the parties. It is not intended and shali not be construed 1o create any other
relationship between the parties. Neither party is authorized 10 act as the agent of the other party,
Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as Implying that either party endorses or
sanctions the quality of care rendered by the other,

3.3 Insurance. Both parties agree to maintain general and profes
during the term of this Agreement.

sional liability insurance
34 Goveming Law. This Agreement shall be governed by

the laws of the State of
Connecticut as to Interpretation, construction and performance.

shall be aliowed without the prior written, consent of both parties, except
Agreement to a successor, subsidiary or to an affiliated entity under common control.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have executed this Agree

ment effective as of the
date first set forth abave,

TRANSFERRING FACILITY

Llealeer fur /s, Catlios = MNeer Togland

BY. oz 0 /70 e At e
Name: Tamcs o f?umry{(’tjﬁuaq
Title: ¢« (2 o5 fltobsce £ 2 050 e

RECEIVING HOSPITAL BRIDGEPORT HOSPT.[_:.‘&L
/I i o . .
B}"Z s el / !i,,f’ f:-‘,’.,“ P

Name: Nornan Roth
Title: Chief Operating Officer
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Center for Discovery Approved By: Origination Date;03/15/97

Policy and Pracedure Manual Goveming Board Approval Date: | Revision Date; 07/02/03
10/01/03

Subject: Resident Transfer Chapter: 14
Policy number; 14.6

Policy

The Discovery Adolescent Program recagnizes that a resident/client may need a higher or more intense
level of treatment than is within the scope of our treatment services. A systemalic, orderly transfer fo an
appropriate level of care is fallowed in such instances.

Puroose

To ensure that each residenticlient parficipates, is educated to the reasons, and intent of a fransition to
another tevel of treatment, that the resident/client has the opportunity to provide input in the decision
making process,

Procedure/Responsibility

The Director of Clinical Services
All treatment Staff

Under normmat circumstances each resident/client is discharged in accordance with the CTP and its'
criteria for discharge. Each resident/client in a collaborative approach with the treatment team ptans for
discharge throughout the treatment experience. All required appropriate agencies and persons are
notified at least seventy two hours in advance of the aclual discharge date. Such persons or agencies
include but are not limited to family, parents, guardian, probation dept., courts, state, county, and local
agencies, third party payers, and referral sources. Each member of the resident's treatment team
educates the resident to the discharge plan, aftercare, and post discharge referrals.

In the event an emergency discharge is indicated, the above procedures apply and in addition, the
following procedures are initiated:

o Allfreaiment and Administrative staff are nofified

The treatment teams meets to discuss the best therapeutic approach

A twenty four hour probation or “cool down" periad may be initiated

During this period, all apprepriate persons and agencies are notified

Should the resident/client require a higher more intense level of care, discharge occurs within six
hours

All referming agencies, persons, and sources ate educated to this procedure upon admission.
The Discovery Adolescent Program will provide transportation if necessary

The resident/client is kept abreast of all events as they occur and input is taken form him/her.

@ O 0 @

o o
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Food Refusal

Center for Discovery follows a planned, defined protocol when delermining the appropriatenass of
transferring a client lo a higher level of care. To assure that any possible transfer is properly screened and
evaluated prior to the actusl physical transfer, it is necessary for the facility physician to be notified in the
event of food refusal.

It &s staff rasponsibility to nofify the Dietilian when a client is refusing food and boost supplemendation.
Cenler for Discovery is held medically responsible far each client's medical stabifization and foad refusal is
closely monitored and assassed o ensure that ezch client remaing medically stable under our care. When
a client refuses their planned mealisnack and thair boost supplemenrtation, the Dietitian is to be notified.

The Dietilian Is responsiole for communicating with the Pragram Director and the Facility Physician fo
determine the appropriate care for each client on an individual basis. Vitals are to be monitorad closely by
miliey staff, as well as any beverage and food intake. Itis the responsibility of miliew staff to effectively
communicale tis informalfon o the Dielitian, whether in person or over the phene if not during normal
business hours.

Through sommuaication will the Dietifian, Program Dirgctor, and Physician, the milieu staff will be notified
if the client is a candidale for bed rest. § a client is put on bed rest, they are to remain on bed rest uniil the
ohysictan gives approval, which is generally until the client begins to eat consistently and apprapriately to
maintain medical stabilization. A cfient an bed rest is to be resting in their bed, with no movement, and
closely monitored by a staff member sitting in their room with them. When itis time for a meal or snack, e
client's meal or snack is to be brought to them in their room. One slafl member is to eat snack o meal in
the client's reom with the client.

The physician will make a decisian on whether the client needs transport for medical stabilization before
relurning back to Center for Oiscovery. This usually accurs aRler 72 hours of refusal or sooner if a client is
seen as medically unstable.
The: following guidelines are to serve as general parameters by which the determination to transfer
a client to a higher level of care are assessed. Itis understood that these are general guidelines
and will possibly vary from case to case.

o Acule refusat of all food and fiquids for a period of 72 hours

o Acute refusal for <72 hours if vitals become orthostatic {lying to standing pulse change >30) or
resting supine heari rale becomes bradycardic {<50)

o Acute food refusal with syncope
o Low caloric intake (~<500 kcallday} with development of orlhostasis o beadycardia
Uliimately, the dacision to lransfer fo « high level of care rests on the shoulders of lhe accepiing physician

of the hospital where admission is sought, but hospital admission is generally sought when lhe above
criteria are present
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Greer, Leslie

From: Greci, Laurie

Sent: Monday, December 14, 2015 3:35 PM

To: 'tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com'

Cc: Riggott, Kaila; User, OHCA

Subject: Completeness Letter for CON Application for Center for Discovery; Docket Number
15-32042-CON

Attachments: CON Main Form Version 10_01_15.docx; 1_Establishment of a new health care

facility MHSA.docx

Dear Mr. Davis:

On November 19, 2015, the Department of Public Health (“DPH”), Office of Health Care Access (“OHCA”) received the
Certificate of Need (“CON”) application from Discovery Practice Management, Inc. d/b/a Center for Discovery
("Applicant") proposing to establish a 6-bed mental health residential living center for adult women age 18 and older
with eating disorders.

OHCA requests additional information pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes §19a-639a(c). Please electronically
confirm receipt of this email and the two attachments as soon as you receive them. Provide responses to the questions
below in both a Word document and PDF format at the earliest convenience as an attachment to a responding email.

Many of the questions presented below are directly from the + CON applicant available on OHCA’s website at DPH:
OHCA Forms (http://www.ct.qov/dph/cwp/view.asp?a=3902&q=562014&dphNav=]). A copy of the CON application has
been attached to this email. In addition, there is a supplemental form for new health care facilities that must be
completed and submitted. This form is also attached to the email.

Repeat each question before providing your response and paginate and date your response, i.e., each page in its
entirety. Information filed after the initial CON application submission (e.g., completeness response letter, prefile
testimony, late file submissions and the like) must be numbered sequentially from the Applicant’s document preceding
it. Begin your submission using Page 118 and reference “Docket Number: 15-32042-CON.”

1) Complete the following OHCA tables available in the attached CON application identified as the “Main
Form”:
a. Table?2
b. Table 6 — Report the projected utilization for Fiscal Years (“FY”) 2016, 2017 and 2018.
c. Table 7 — Report the Projected Payer Mix for FY 2016, 2017 and 2018 based on population
payer mix for the facility on Congress Street, Fairfield.

2)  Using the format of Table 5 in the Main Form, report the number of clients in the existing program at the
start of each month by town and state.

3) Page 1 of the submitted CON application states, “the existing facility in Fairfield is running at capacity
and we have a wait list that is several months long.” Provide an expanded discussion of the capacity at the
existing facility and report the number of persons on the wait list at the beginning of each month of
operations. Where are the persons on the wait list currently receiving treatment?

4)  Complete the attached supplemental CON application form identified as “Establishment of a New Health
Care Facility (Mental Health and/or Substance Abuse Treatment).”



5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

10)

11)

12)

13)

14)

15)

16)

17)
18)

19)

Provide any available letters of support for the proposal.

Describe how the proposed project is consistent with any applicable policies and standards in regulations
adopted by the Connecticut Department of Public Health.

Describe how the proposed project aligns with the Connecticut Department of Public Health Statewide
Health Care Facilities and Services Plan, available on OHCA’s website.

With respect to the proposal, provide evidence and documentation to support clear public need:
a. discuss how low income persons, racial and ethnic minorities, disabled persons and other
underserved groups will benefit from this proposal;
b. explain how access to care will be affected,
c. discuss any alternative proposals that were considered.

Describe how the proposal will:
a. improve the quality of health care in the region;
b. improve accessibility of health care in the region; and
c. improve the cost effectiveness of health care delivery in the region.

How will this proposal help improve the coordination of patient care (explain in detail regardless of
whether your answer is in the negative or affirmative)?

Describe how this proposal will impact access to care for Medicaid recipients and indigent persons.

If the proposal fails to provide or reduces access to services by Medicaid recipients or indigent persons,
provide explanation of good cause for doing so.

Will the proposal adversely affect patient health care costs in any way? Quantify and provide the rationale
for any changes in price structure that will result from this proposal, including, but not limited to, the
addition of any imposed facility fees.

Describe the impact of this proposal on the financial strength of the state’s health care system or
demonstrate that the proposal is financially feasible for the applicant.

The Financial Attachment | provided on page 20 of the initial CON submission appears to be a replica of
the attachment given for OHCA Docket Number 14-31913-CON. Review the information reported and
submit a revised table. Explicitly identify the fiscal years being reported by including them in the column
heading. If there are no changes between the new and old tables, explain why. List the assumptions used
to prepare the reported information.

Report the minimum number of admissions required to show an incremental gain from operations for
projected FYs 2016, 2017 and 2018.

Provide a discussion that supports the need for six beds for the facility.
Explain why the approval of the proposal will not result in an unnecessary duplication of services.

How will the proposal impact the diversity of health care providers and patient choice or reduce
competition in the geographic region?



20)

21)

22)

23)

24)

25)

26)

27)

28)

Discuss the referral pattern for the facility on Congress Street. (Where do the clients reside and what
treatment facility are they coming from?)

Demonstrate how this proposal will impact the financial strength of the health care system in the state or
that the proposal is financially feasible.

Explain how the proposal will improve quality, accessibility and cost effectiveness of health care delivery
in the region.

Provide a discussion on the Applicant's private pay agreement with clients that are uninsured or
underinsured. Does the Applicant provide these clients with a sliding fee schedule?

If the proposal fails to provide or reduces access to services by Medicaid recipients or indigent persons,
provide explanation for good cause for doing so. Note: good cause shall not be demonstrated solely on the
basis of differences in reimbursement rates between Medicaid and other health care payers.

Does the Applicant have relationships with other Connecticut providers that provide a referral base for the
proposed facility?

Explain how clients discharged from the proposed inpatient program will obtain outpatient care in their
community.

Provide a list of existing providers in Connecticut that have outpatient treatment programs for eating
disorders.

Who is the owner of the building and land where the proposed facility will be located?

Please note that pursuant to Section 19a-639a(c) of the Connecticut General Statutes, you must submit your
response to this request no later than sixty days from the date of this email transmission. Therefore, please
provide your written responses to OHCA no later than Monday, February 15, 2016, otherwise your application
will be automatically considered withdrawn. Please email your responses to all of the following email addresses:
OHCA@ct.gov; laurie.greci@ct.gov; and kaila.riggott@ct.gov. If you have any questions concerning this letter,

please feel free to contact me at (860) 418-7001 and (860) 418-7045.

Sincerely,

Lawiie K. CQueci

Laurie K. Greci

Associate Research Analyst

CT Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS #13HCA
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134

Tel: 860-418-7001

Fax: 860-418-7053

mailto: laurie.greci@ct.gov
Web: www.ct.gov/ohca
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All Supplemental Forms

In addition to completing this Main Form and the appropriate financial worksheet,
applicants must complete one of the following supplemental forms listed below. All CON
forms can be found on the OHCA website at OHCA Forms.

Conn. Gen. Stat.

Section Supplemental Form
19a-638(a)
(1) Establishment of a new health care facility (mental health and/or
substance abuse) - see note below*
) Transfer of ownership of a health care facility (excludes transfer of
ownership/sale of hospital — see “Other” below)
3 Transfer of ownership of a group practice
4) Establishment of a freestanding emergency department
Termination of a service:
(5) termination of inpatient or outpatient services offered by a hospital
(7) termination of surgical services by an outpatient surgical facility
(8) termination of an emergency department by a short-term acute care
general hospital
(15) termination of inpatient or outpatient services offered by a hospital or
other facility or institution operated by the state that provides services
that are eligible for reimbursement under Title XVIII or XIX of the
federal Social Security Act, 42 USC 301, as amended
(6) Establishment of an outpatient surgical facility
9 Establishment of cardiac services
(20) Acquisition of equipment:
acquisition of computed tomography scanners, magnetic resonance
imaging scanners, positron emission tomography scanners or
positron emission tomography-computed tomography scanners
(11) acquisition of nonhospital based linear accelerators
(12) Increase in licensed bed capacity of a health care facility
Acquisition of equipment utilizing [new] technology that has not
(23) . .
previously been used in the state
Increase of two or more operating rooms within any three-year period
(24) ; . o .
by an outpatient surgical facility or short-term acute care general hospital
Other Transfer of Ownership / Sale of Hospital

*This supplemental form should be included with all applications requesting authorization for the
establishment of a mental health and/or substance abuse treatment facility. For the establishment of
other “health care facilities,” as defined by Conn. Gen. Stat § 19a-630(11) - hospitals licensed by DPH
under chapter 386v, specialty hospitals, or a central service facility - complete the Main Form only.



http://www.ct.gov/dph/cwp/view.asp?a=3902&q=276934&dphNav=|

Instructions:

Checklist

1. Please check each box below, as appropriate; and
2. The completed checklist must be submitted as the first page of the CON application.

[l

[l

0 O

Attached is a paginated hard copy of the CON application including a completed
affidavit, signed and notarized by the appropriate individuals.

(*New?*). A completed supplemental application specific to the proposal type,
available on OHCA'’s website under “OHCA Forms.” A list of supplemental forms
can be found on page 2.

Attached is the CON application filing fee in the form of a certified, cashier or
business check made out to the “Treasurer State of Connecticut” in the amount
of $500.

Attached is evidence demonstrating that public notice has been published in a
suitable newspaper that relates to the location of the proposal, 3 days in a row, at
least 20 days prior to the submission of the CON application to OHCA. (OHCA
requests that the Applicant fax a courtesy copy to OHCA (860) 418-7053, at the
time of the publication)

Attached is a completed Financial Attachment

Submission includes one (1) original hardcopy in a 3-ring binder and a USB flash
drive containing:

1. A scanned copy of each submission in its entirety, including all
attachments in Adobe (.pdf) format.

2 An electronic copy of the applicant’s responses in MS Word (the
applications) and MS Excel (the financial attachment).

For OHCA Use Only:

Docket No.: Check No.:
OHCA Verified by: Date:
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General Information

MEDICAID TYPE OF
MAIN SITE PROVIDER ID| FACILITY MAIN SITE NAME

(]
=
- STREET & NUMBER
‘T
=

TOWN ZIP CODE

MEDICAID TYPE OF
o | PROJECT SITE |PROVIDER ID FACILITY PROJECT SITE NAME
.*U:)'
‘8' STREET & NUMBER
o
o TOWN ZIP CODE
OPERATING CERTIFICATE TYPE OF LEGAL ENTITY THAT WILL OPERATE OF
NUMBER FACILITY THE FACILITY (or proposed operator)

S
= STREET & NUMBER
j@1
@)

TOWN ZIP CODE

NAME TITLE

2
S [STREET & NUMBER
o
i [TOWN STATE ZIP CODE
@
G [TELEPHONE FAX E-MAIL ADDRESS

Title of Attachment:

Is the applicant an existing facility? If yes, attach a copy of the
: . YES []
resolution of partners, corporate directors, or LLC managers,
.- ; NO []
as the case may be, authorizing the project.
Does the Applicant have non-profit status? If yes, attach YES [
documentation. NO []

Version 04/01/2015
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PC ] Other:
Identify the Applicant’s ownership type. LLC ]

Corporation [ ]
Applicant's Fiscal Year (mm/dd) Start End

Contact:

Identify a single person that will act as the contact between OHCA and the Applicant.

NAME

TITLE

STREET & NUMBER

TOWN

STATE

ZIP CODE

TELEPHONE

FAX

E-MAIL ADDRESS

Contact Information

RELATIONSHIP TO
APPLICANT

Identify the person primarily responsible for preparation of the application (optional):

NAME

TITLE

STREET & NUMBER

TOWN

STATE

ZIP CODE

TELEPHONE

Prepared by

FAX

E-MAIL ADDRESS

RELATIONSHIP TO
APPLICANT

Version 04/01/2015
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Affidavit

Applicant:
Project Title:
l, )
(Name) (Position — CEO or CFO)
of being duly sworn, depose and state that the (Facility

Name) said facility complies with the appropriate and applicable criteria as set forth in the
Sections 19a-630, 19a-637, 19a-638, 19a-639, 19a-486 and/or 4-181 of the Connecticut
General Statutes.

Signature Date

Subscribed and sworn to before me on

Notary Public/Commissioner of Superior Court

My commission expires:

Version 04/01/2015 Page 4 of 18



Executive Summary

The purpose of the Executive Summary is to give the reviewer a conceptual
understanding of the proposal. In the space below, provide a succinct overview
of your proposal (this may be done in bullet format). Summarize the key elements of the

proposed project. Details should be provided in the appropriate sections of the
application that follow.

Version 04/01/2015 Page 5 of 18



Pursuant to Section 19a-639 of the Connecticut General Statutes, the Office of Health Care
Access is required to consider specific criteria and principles when reviewing a Certificate of
Need application. Text marked with a “8” indicates it is actual text from the statute and may be
helpful when responding to prompts.

Project Description

1. Provide a detailed narrative describing the proposal. Explain how the Applicant(s)
determined the necessity for the proposal and discuss the benefits for each Applicant
separately (if multiple Applicants). Include all key elements, including the parties involved,
what the proposal will entail, the equipment/service location(s), the geographic area the
proposal will serve, the implementation timeline and why the proposal is needed in the
community.

2. Provide the history and timeline of the proposal (i.e., When did discussions begin internally
or between Applicant(s)? What have the Applicant(s) accomplished so far?).

3. Provide the following information:
a. utilizing OHCA Table 1, list all services to be added, terminated or modified, their

physical location (street address, town and zip code), the population to be served and
the existing/proposed days/hours of operation;

b. identify in OHCA Table 2 the service area towns and the reason for their inclusion (e.g.,
provider availability, increased/decreased patient demand for service, market share);

4. List the health care facility license(s) that will be needed to implement the proposal;
5. Submit the following information as attachments to the application:

a. acopy of all State of Connecticut, Department of Public Health license(s) currently held
by the Applicant(s);

b. alist of all key professional, administrative, clinical and direct service personnel related
to the proposal and attach a copy of their Curriculum Vitae;

c. copies of any scholarly articles, studies or reports that support the need to establish the
proposed service, along with a brief explanation regarding the relevance of the selected
articles;

d. letters of support for the proposal;

e. the protocols or the Standard of Practice Guidelines that will be utilized in relation to the
proposal. Attach copies of relevant sections and briefly describe how the Applicant
proposes to meet the protocols or guidelines.

f. copies of agreements (e.g., memorandum of understanding, transfer agreement,

operating agreement) related to the proposal. If a final signed version is not available,
provide a draft with an estimated date by which the final agreement will be available.

Version 04/01/2015 Page 6 of 18




Public Need and Access to Care

8 “Whether the proposed project is consistent with any applicable policies
and standards adopted in regulations by the Department of Public
Health;” (Conn.Gen.Stat. § 19a-639(a)(1))

6. Describe how the proposed project is consistent with any applicable policies and standards
in regulations adopted by the Connecticut Department of Public Health.

8 “The relationship of the proposed project to the statewide health care
facilities and services plan;” (Conn.Gen.Stat. § 19a-639(a)(2))

7. Describe how the proposed project aligns with the Connecticut Department of Public Health
Statewide Health Care Facilities and Services Plan, available on OHCA'’s website.

8 “Whether there is a clear public need for the health care facility or
services proposed by the applicant;” (Conn.Gen.Stat. § 19a-639(a)(3))

8. With respect to the proposal, provide evidence and documentation to support clear public

need:

a. identify the target patient population to be served;

b. discuss how the target patient population is currently being served;

c. document the need for the equipment and/or service in the community;

d. explain why the location of the facility or service was chosen;

e. provide incidence, prevalence or other demographic data that demonstrates community
need,;

f. discuss how low income persons, racial and ethnic minorities, disabled persons and
other underserved groups will benefit from this proposal;

g. list any changes to the clinical services offered by the Applicant(s) and explain why the
change was necessary;,

h. explain how access to care will be affected,;

discuss any alternative proposals that were considered.

Version 04/01/2015 Page 7 of 18


http://www.ct.gov/dph/cwp/view.asp?a=3902&q=277050&dphNav=|52611|

8 “Whether the applicant has satisfactorily demonstrated how the proposal
will improve quality, accessibility and cost effectiveness of health care
delivery in the region, including, but not limited to, (A) provision of or any
change in the access to services for Medicaid recipients and indigent
persons, and (B) the impact upon the cost effectiveness of providing
access to services provided under the Medicaid program;”
(Conn.Gen.Stat. § 19a-639(a)(5))

9. Describe how the proposal will:
a. improve the quality of health care in the region;
b. improve accessibility of health care in the region; and
c. improve the cost effectiveness of health care delivery in the region.

10. How will this proposal help improve the coordination of patient care (explain in detall
regardless of whether your answer is in the negative or affirmative)?

11. Describe how this proposal will impact access to care for Medicaid recipients and indigent
persons.

8 “Whether an applicant, who has failed to provide or reduced access to
services by Medicaid recipients or indigent persons, has demonstrated
good cause for doing so, which shall not be demonstrated solely on the
basis of differences in reimbursement rates between Medicaid and other
health care payers;” (Conn.Gen.Stat. § 19a-639(a)(10))

12. If the proposal fails to provide or reduces access to services by Medicaid recipients or
indigent persons, provide explanation of good cause for doing so.

8 “Whether the applicant has satisfactorily demonstrated that any
consolidation resulting from the proposal will not adversely affect health
care costs or accessibility to care.” (Conn.Gen.Stat. § 19a-639(a)(12))

13. Will the proposal adversely affect patient health care costs in any way? Quantify and provide
the rationale for any changes in price structure that will result from this proposal, including,
but not limited to, the addition of any imposed facility fees.

Version 04/01/2015 Page 8 of 18



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Financial Information

8 “Whether the applicant has satisfactorily demonstrated how the proposal
will impact the financial strength of the health care system in the state or
that the proposal is financially feasible for the application,”
(Conn.Gen.Stat. § 19a-639(a)(4))

Describe the impact of this proposal on the financial strength of the state’s health care
system or demonstrate that the proposal is financially feasible for the applicant.

Provide a final version of all capital expenditure/costs for the proposal using OHCA Table 3.

List all funding or financing sources for the proposal and the dollar amount of each. Provide
applicable details such as interest rate; term; monthly payment; pledges and funds received
to date; letter of interest or approval from a lending institution.

Include as an attachment:

a. audited financial statements for the most recently completed fiscal year. If audited
financial statements do not exist, provide other financial documentation (e.g., unaudited
balance sheet, statement of operations, tax return, or other set of books.). Connecticut
hospitals required to submit annual audited financial statements may reference that
filing, if current;

b. acomplete Financial Worksheet A (not-for-profit entity) or B (for-profit entity),
available on OHCA's website under “OHCA Forms,” providing a summary of revenue,
expense, and volume statistics, “without the CON project,” “incremental to the CON
project,” and “with the CON project.” Note: the actual results reported in the Financial
Worksheet must match the audited financial statement that was submitted or referenced.

Complete OHCA Table 4 utilizing the information reported in the attached Financial
Worksheet.

Explain all assumptions used in developing the financial projections reported in the Financial
Worksheet.

Explain any projected incremental losses from operations resulting from the implementation
of the CON proposal.

Indicate the minimum number of units required to show an incremental gain from operations
for each projected fiscal year.
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21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

Utilization

§ “The applicant's past and proposed provision of health care services to
relevant patient populations and payer mix, including, but not limited to,
access to services by Medicaid recipients and indigent persons;”
(Conn.Gen.Stat. § 19a-639(a)(6))

Complete OHCA Table 5 and OHCA Table 6 for the past three fiscal years (“FY”), current
fiscal year (“CFY”) and first three projected FYs of the proposal, for each of the Applicant’s
existing and/or proposed services. Report the units by service, service type or service level.

Provide a detailed explanation of all assumptions used in the derivation/ calculation of the
projected service volume; explain any increases and/or decreases in volume reported in
OHCA Tables 4 and 5.

Provide the current and projected patient population mix (number and percentage of
patients by payer) for the proposal using OHCA Table 7 and provide all assumptions. Note:
payer mix should be calculated from patient volumes, not patient revenues.

8 “Whether the applicant has satisfactorily identified the population to be
served by the proposed project and satisfactorily demonstrated that the
identified population has a need for the proposed services;”
(Conn.Gen.Stat. § 19a-639(a)(7))

Describe the population (as identified in question 8(a)) by gender, age groups or persons
with a specific condition or disorder and provide evidence (i.e., incidence, prevalence or
other demographic data) that demonstrates a need for the proposed service or proposal.
Please note: if population estimates or other demographic data are submitted,
provide only publicly available and verifiable information (e.g., U.S. Census Bureau,
Department of Public Health, CT State Data Center) and document the source.

Using OHCA Table 8, provide a breakdown of utilization by town for the most recently
completed FY. Utilization may be reported as number of persons, visits, scans or other unit
appropriate for the information being reported.

8 “The utilization of existing health care facilities and health care services in
the service area of the applicant;” (Conn.Gen.Stat. § 19a-639(a)(8))

Using OHCA Table 9, identify all existing providers in the service area and, as available, list
the services provided, population served, facility ID (see table footnote), address,
hours/days of operation and current utilization of the facility. Include providers in the towns
served or proposed to be served by the Applicant, as well as providers in towns contiguous
to the service area.

Describe the effect of the proposal on these existing providers.
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28. Describe the existing referral patterns in the area served by the proposal.

29. Explain how current referral patterns will be affected by the proposal.

8 “Whether the applicant has satisfactorily demonstrated that the proposed
project shall not result in an unnecessary duplication of existing or
approved health care services or facilities;” (Conn.Gen.Stat. § 19a-
639(2)(9))

30. If applicable, explain why approval of the proposal will not result in an unnecessary
duplication of services.

8 “Whether the applicant has satisfactorily demonstrated that the proposal
will not negatively impact the diversity of health care providers and patient
choice in the geographic region. . .” (Conn.Gen.Stat. § 19a-639(a)(11))

31. How will the proposal impact the diversity of health care providers and patient choice or
reduce competition in the geographic region?.
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Tables

TABLE 1
APPLICANT'S SERVICES AND SERVICE LOCATIONS
. New Service or
Service Street Address, Town Population Days/Hoqrs of Proposed
Served Operation O
Termination
back to question
TABLE 2
SERVICE AREA TOWNS

back to question

Version 04/01/2015

List the official name of town* and provide the reason for inclusion.

Town*

Reason for Inclusion

* Village or place names are not acceptable.

Page 12 of 18



TABLE 3

TOTAL PROPOSAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Purchase/Lease

Cost

Equipment (Medical, Non-medical Imaging)
Land/Building Purchase*
Construction/Renovation**

Other (specify)

Total Capital Expenditure (TCE)

Lease (Medical, Non-medical Imaging)***

Total Capital Cost (TCO)

Total Project Cost (TCE+TCO)

* If the proposal involves a land/building purchase, attach a real estate property

appraisal including the amount; the useful life of the building; and a schedule of

depreciation.

** |f the proposal involves construction/renovations, attach a description of the proposed
building work, including the gross square feet; existing and proposed floor plans;

commencement date for the construction/ renovation; completion date of the
construction/renovation; and commencement of operations date.

*** |f the proposal involves a capital or operating equipment lease and/or purchase,
attach a vendor quote or invoice; schedule of depreciation; useful life of the equipment;

and anticipated residual value at the end of the lease or loan term.

back to question

TABLE 4

PROJECTED INCREMENTAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FY 20 * FY 20 * FY 20 *
Revenue from Operations $ $
Total Operating Expenses
Gain/Loss from Operations $ $

* Fill in years using those reported in the Financial Worksheet attached.

back to question

Version 04/01/2015
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TABLE 5
HISTORICAL UTILIZATION BY SERVICE

Actual Volume
(Last 3 Completed FYs) CFY Volume*
Service** FY 20__ #*** FY 20_ ** FY 20__ #*** FY 20__ #***
Total

For periods greater than 6 months, report annualized volume, identifying the number of actual months covered and the
method of annualizing. For periods less than 6 months, report actual volume and identify the period covered.
*%

Identify each service type and level adding lines as necessary. Provide the number of visits or discharges as appropriate for
each service type and level listed.

*** Ejll in years. If the time period reported is not identical to the fiscal year reported in Table 4 of the application, provide the
date range using the mm/dd format as a footnote to the table.

back to question

TABLE 6
PROJECTED UTILIZATION BY SERVICE
Projected Volume
Service* FY 20__** FY 20__** FY 20__**
Total
* |dentify each service type by location and add lines as necessary. Provide the number of

visits/discharges as appropriate for each service listed.

** |f the first year of the proposal is only a partial year, provide the first partial year and then
the first three full FYs. Add columns as necessary. If the time period reported is not

identical to the fiscal year reported in Table 4 of the application, provide the date range
using the mm/dd format as a footnote to the table.

back to question
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TABLE 7
APPLICANT’'S CURRENT & PROJECTED PAYER MIX

Payer

Current Projected

FY 20__** FY 20 ** FY 20 **

FY 20 **

Discharges | % | Discharges | % | Discharges %

Discharges | %

Medicare*
Medicaid*

CHAMPUS &
TriCare

Total Government

Commercial
Insurers

Uninsured

Workers
Compensation

Total Non-
Government

Total Payer Mix

* Includes managed care activity.
** Fill in years. Ensure the period covered by this table corresponds to the period covered in the projections
provided. New programs may leave the “current” column blank.

back to question

Version 04/01/2015
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back to question

TABLE 8

UTILIZATION BY TOWN

Town

Utilization FY XX**

* List inpatient/outpatient/ED volumes separately, if applicable

** Fill in year if the time period reported is not identical to the fiscal year
reported on pg. 2 of the application; provide the date range using the

mm/dd format as a footnote to the table.

TABLE 9

SERVICES AND SERVICE LOCATIONS OF EXISTING PROVIDERS

Service or
Program Name

Population
Served

Facility
ID*

Facility's Provider Name,
Street Address and Town

Hours/Days
of Operation

Current
Utilization

* Provide the Medicare, Connecticut Department of Social Services (DSS), or National Provider Identifier (NPI) facility
identifier and label column with the identifier used.

back to question
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Connecticut Department
of Public Health

Supplemental CON Application Form
Establishment of a New Health Care Facility (Mental
Health and/or Substance Abuse Treatment)*
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-638(1)

Applicant:

Project Name:

*This supplemental form should be included with all applications requesting authorization
for the establishment of a mental health and/or substance abuse treatment facility.
For the establishment of other “health care facilities,” as defined by Conn. Gen. Stat §
19a-630(11) - hospitals licensed by DPH under chapter 386v, specialty hospitals, or a
central service facility - complete the Main Form only.



Affidavit

Applicant:
Project Title:
I1 i)
(Name) (Position — CEO or CFO)
of being duly sworn, depose and state that the

(Facility Name) said facility complies with the appropriate and applicable criteria as set
forth in the Sections 19a-630, 19a-637, 19a-638, 19a-639, 19a-486 and/or 4-181 of the
Connecticut General Statutes.

Signature Date

Subscribed and sworn to before me on

Notary Public/Commissioner of Superior Court

My commission expires:




1. Project Description: New Facility (Mental Health and/or Substance Abuse)

a. Describe any unigue services (i.e., not readily available in the service area)
that may be included in the proposal.

b. List the type and number of DPH-licensed health care professionals that will
be required to initiate the proposal.

2. Projected Volume

a. For each of the specific population groups to be served, report the following by
service level (include all assumptions):

0] An estimate of the number of persons within the population group by
town that need the proposed service; and

(i)  The number of persons in need of the service that will be served by the
proposal (estimated patient volume).

b. Provide statistical information from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Administration (“SAMSHA"), or a similar organization demonstrating that the
target population has a need for the proposed services.

Please note: provide only publicly available and verifiable information and
document the source.



Greer, Leslie

From: Tim Davis <tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com>

Sent: Thursday, January 07, 2016 9:15 AM

To: User, OHCA

Cc: Riggott, Kaila; Greci, Laurie

Subject: Re: Completeness Letter for CON Application for Center for Discovery; Docket Number

15-32042-CON

| have received it.
Sent from my iPhone

OnJan 7, 2016, at 5:43 AM, User, OHCA <OHCA@ct.gov> wrote:

Mr. Davis,

Please reply that you have received the email below.
Thank you,

Leslie Greer

From: Greci, Laurie

Sent: Monday, December 14, 2015 3:35 PM

To: 'tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com'

Cc: Riggott, Kaila; User, OHCA

Subject: Completeness Letter for CON Application for Center for Discovery; Docket Number 15-32042-
CON

Dear Mr. Davis:

On November 19, 2015, the Department of Public Health (“DPH”), Office of Health Care Access (“OHCA”)
received the Certificate of Need (“CON”) application from Discovery Practice Management, Inc. d/b/a
Center for Discovery ("Applicant") proposing to establish a 6-bed mental health residential living center
for adult women age 18 and older with eating disorders.

OHCA requests additional information pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes §19a-639a(c). Please
electronically confirm receipt of this email and the two attachments as soon as you receive them. Provide
responses to the questions below in both a Word document and PDF format at the earliest convenience
as an attachment to a responding email.

Many of the questions presented below are directly from the + CON applicant available on OHCA’s
website at DPH: OHCA Forms (http://www.ct.gov/dph/cwp/view.asp?a=3902&q=562014&dphNav=]). A
copy of the CON application has been attached to this email. In addition, there is a supplemental form
for new health care facilities that must be completed and submitted. This form is also attached to the
email.

Repeat each question before providing your response and paginate and date your response, i.e., each
page in its entirety. Information filed after the initial CON application submission (e.g., completeness
response letter, prefile testimony, late file submissions and the like) must be numbered sequentially
from the Applicant’s document preceding it. Begin your submission using Page 118 and reference
“Docket Number: 15-32042-CON.”



1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

10)

11)

12)

Complete the following OHCA tables available in the attached CON application identified
as the “Main Form”:
a. Table?2
b. Table 6 — Report the projected utilization for Fiscal Years (“FY”) 2016, 2017 and
2018.
c. Table 7 — Report the Projected Payer Mix for FY 2016, 2017 and 2018 based
on population payer mix for the facility on Congress Street, Fairfield.

Using the format of Table 5 in the Main Form, report the number of clients in the existing
program at the start of each month by town and state.

Page 1 of the submitted CON application states, “the existing facility in Fairfield is running
at capacity and we have a wait list that is several months long.” Provide an expanded
discussion of the capacity at the existing facility and report the number of persons on the
wait list at the beginning of each month of operations. Where are the persons on the wait
list currently receiving treatment?

Complete the attached supplemental CON application form identified as “Establishment of
a New Health Care Facility (Mental Health and/or Substance Abuse Treatment).”

Provide any available letters of support for the proposal.

Describe how the proposed project is consistent with any applicable policies and standards
in regulations adopted by the Connecticut Department of Public Health.

Describe how the proposed project aligns with the Connecticut Department of Public
Health Statewide Health Care Facilities and Services Plan, available on OHCA’s website.

With respect to the proposal, provide evidence and documentation to support clear public
need:
a. discuss how low income persons, racial and ethnic minorities, disabled persons
and other underserved groups will benefit from this proposal,
b. explain how access to care will be affected,;
c. discuss any alternative proposals that were considered.

Describe how the proposal will:
a. improve the quality of health care in the region;
b. improve accessibility of health care in the region; and
c. improve the cost effectiveness of health care delivery in the region.

How will this proposal help improve the coordination of patient care (explain in detail
regardless of whether your answer is in the negative or affirmative)?

Describe how this proposal will impact access to care for Medicaid recipients and indigent
persons.

If the proposal fails to provide or reduces access to services by Medicaid recipients or
indigent persons, provide explanation of good cause for doing so.



13)

14)

15)

16)

17)

18)

19)

20)

21)

22)

23)

24)

25)

26)

27)

Will the proposal adversely affect patient health care costs in any way? Quantify and
provide the rationale for any changes in price structure that will result from this proposal,
including, but not limited to, the addition of any imposed facility fees.

Describe the impact of this proposal on the financial strength of the state’s health care
system or demonstrate that the proposal is financially feasible for the applicant.

The Financial Attachment | provided on page 20 of the initial CON submission appears to
be a replica of the attachment given for OHCA Docket Number 14-31913-CON. Review
the information reported and submit a revised table. Explicitly identify the fiscal years
being reported by including them in the column heading. If there are no changes between
the new and old tables, explain why. List the assumptions used to prepare the reported
information.

Report the minimum number of admissions required to show an incremental gain from
operations for projected FYs 2016, 2017 and 2018.

Provide a discussion that supports the need for six beds for the facility.

Explain why the approval of the proposal will not result in an unnecessary duplication of
services.

How will the proposal impact the diversity of health care providers and patient choice or
reduce competition in the geographic region?

Discuss the referral pattern for the facility on Congress Street. (Where do the clients reside
and what treatment facility are they coming from?)

Demonstrate how this proposal will impact the financial strength of the health care system
in the state or that the proposal is financially feasible.

Explain how the proposal will improve quality, accessibility and cost effectiveness of
health care delivery in the region.

Provide a discussion on the Applicant's private pay agreement with clients that are
uninsured or underinsured. Does the Applicant provide these clients with a sliding fee
schedule?

If the proposal fails to provide or reduces access to services by Medicaid recipients or
indigent persons, provide explanation for good cause for doing so. Note: good cause shall
not be demonstrated solely on the basis of differences in reimbursement rates between
Medicaid and other health care payers.

Does the Applicant have relationships with other Connecticut providers that provide a
referral base for the proposed facility?

Explain how clients discharged from the proposed inpatient program will obtain outpatient
care in their community.

Provide a list of existing providers in Connecticut that have outpatient treatment programs
for eating disorders.



28) Who is the owner of the building and land where the proposed facility will be located?

Please note that pursuant to Section 19a-639a(c) of the Connecticut General Statutes, you must
submit your response to this request no later than sixty days from the date of this email
transmission. Therefore, please provide your written responses to OHCA no later than Monday,
February 15, 2016, otherwise your application will be automatically considered withdrawn.
Please email your responses to all of the following email addresses: OHCA@ct.gov;
laurie.greci@ct.gov; and kaila.riggott@ct.gov. If you have any questions concerning this letter,
please feel free to contact me at (860) 418-7001 and (860) 418-7045.

Sincerely,
Lawdie K. Gueci

Laurie K. Greci

Associate Research Analyst

CT Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS #13HCA
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134

Tel: 860-418-7001

Fax: 860-418-7053

mailto: laurie.greci@ct.gov
Web: www.ct.gov/ohca

<image001.jpg>



Greer, Leslie

From: Tim Davis <tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com>

Sent: Tuesday, January 12, 2016 7:17 PM

To: Greci, Laurie

Cc: Greer, Leslie

Subject: RE: Attachments for 15032051-CON Completeness Letter
Attachments: Southport CON application edits and corrections.pdf
Laurie,

Thank you for reviewing our initial CON application. Attached are the requested edits and corrections. Please let me
know if you have any questions or require additional information.

Best,
Tim

Tim Davis, CFA

Director of Business Development
Center for Discovery

4281 Katella Avenue, Suite 111
Los Alamitos, CA 90720
714-947-7357 (OFFICE)
806-438-3505 (CELL)
714-828-1868 (FAX)
tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com
www.centerfordiscovery.com

CENTER FOR DISCOVERY

From: Greci, Laurie [mailto:Laurie.Greci@ct.gov]

Sent: Monday, December 21, 2015 6:26 AM

To: Tim Davis <tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com>

Cc: Greer, Leslie <Leslie.Greer@ct.gov>

Subject: Attachments for 15032051-CON Completeness Letter

Dear Mr. Davis,

| have attached the document files that you requested. Each is in Word document (.doc)and Adobe (.pdf).
Please let me know if you are able to use them.

Regards,

Laurie K. Greci

Associate Research Analyst

CT Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS #13HCA



P.O. Box 340308
Hartford, CT 06134

Tel: 860-418-7001

Fax: 860-418-7053

mailto: laurie.greci@ct.gov
Web: www.ct.gov/ohca

Caementicut Department
of Pubie Hisith




CENTER FOR DISCOVERY"

Transforming Lives

January 12, 2016

Laurie Greci

Associate Research Analyst

CT Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access

410 Capitol Avenue, MS #13HCA
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT

Dear Laurie,

Thank you for taking the time to review our initial CON application. Attached are Discovery Practice Management's
responses to the additional questions and concerns raised in regards to Docket Number: 15-32042-CON.

Please let me know if you have any questions or require additional information.

Best rega

/ — L

Tim Davis, CFA

Director of Business Development
Center for Discovery

4281 Katella Avenue, Suite 111
Los Alamitos, CA 90720
714-947-7357 (OFFICE)
806-438-3505 (CELL)
714-828-1868 (FAX)
tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com
www.centerfordiscovery.com

4281 Katella Ave - Suite 111 - Los Alamitos, CA 90720

800-760-3934 - www.centerfordiscovery.com 18



1)  Complete the following OHCA tables available in the attached CON application identified
as the “Main Form™:
a. Table 2

TABLE 2
SERVICE AREA TOWNS

List the official name of town* and provide the reason for inclusion.

Town* Reason for Inclusion

Discovery owns and operates the facility in
Southport with full zoning approval to do so. It
will require minimal effort to convert the home

from adolescent to adult use.

Southport

b. Table 6 — Report the projected utilization for Fiscal Years (“FY”) 2016, 2017 and

2018.
TABLE 6
PROJECTED UTILIZATION BY SERVICE
Projected Volume

Service* FY 2016** FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019
Residential Eating Disorder 18 30 35 40

Treatment

Total 18 30 35 40

* |dentify each service type by location and add lines as necessary. Provide the number of
visits/discharges as appropriate for each service listed.

** |f the first year of the proposal is only a partial year, provide the first partial year and then the
first three full FYs. Add columns as necessary. If the time period reported is not identical to the
fiscal year reported in Table 4 of the application, provide the date range using the mm/dd
format as a footnote to the table.
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c. Table 7 — Report the Projected Payer Mix for FY 2016, 2017 and 2018 based
on population payer mix for the facility on Congress Street, Fairfield.

TABLE 7
APPLICANT’S CURRENT & PROJECTED PAYER MIX
Current Projected
Payer FY 2016 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018

Discharges % Discharges % Discharges % Discharges %
Medicare* 0 0 0 0 0 0
Medicaid* 0 0 0 0 0 0
CHAMPUS & TriCare 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Government 0 0 0 0 1] 0
Commercial Insurers 17 94 28 93 37 93
Uninsured 1 6 2 7 3 7
Workers 0 0 0 0 0 0
Compensation
Total Non- 18 100 30 100 40 100
Government
Total Payer Mix

* Includes managed care activity.

** Fill in years. Ensure the period covered by this table corresponds to the period covered in the projections
provided. New programs may leave the “current” column blank.

2)  Using the format of Table 5 in the Main Form, report the number of clients in the existing
program at the start of each month by town and state.
TABLE 5
HISTORICAL UTILIZATION BY SERVICE
Actual Volume
Q4 2015 Census on 1%t day of each month (not total
month) 2016
November
Service** October 2015 2015 December 2015 | January 2016
White Plains,
Rego Park, NY Rego Park, NY NY
Rego Park, NY Staten Island, New Hyde Park, | Baldwin Place,
Staten Island, NY NY NY NY
. . o Scarsdale, NY Scarsdale, NY Merrimack, NH | Wallingford,
Residential Eating Disorder Treatment ) . cT
South Windsor, CT Patterson, NY Stafford Springs,
Warwick, NY Holmes, NY cr Herndon, VA
Manhasset, NY New Hyde Clinton, CT Whitestone,
Park, NY Tolland, CT NY
Tolland, CT
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|

Total 6 6 6 6

*  For periods greater than 6 months, report annualized volume, identifying the number of actual months covered and the

method of annualizing. For periods less than 6 months, report actual volume and identify the period covered.

** ldentify each service type and level adding lines as necessary. Provide the number of visits or discharges as appropriate for

each service type and level listed.

*** Fill in years. If the time period reported is not identical to the fiscal year reported in Table 4 of the application, provide the

3)

4)

5)

6)

7

date range using the mm/dd format as a footnote to the table.

Page 1 of the submitted CON application states, “the existing facility in Fairfield is running
at capacity and we have a wait list that is several months long.” Provide an expanded
discussion of the capacity at the existing facility and report the number of persons on the
wait list at the beginning of each month of operations. Where are the persons on the wait
list currently receiving treatment?

As evidenced in Table 5 above, our Fairfield facility has been at full capacity (6 beds)
every month for the last several months and it only opened in April of 2015. Currently,
the house is full and has a wait list of 10 individuals that meet the criteria for residential
treatment of eating disorders.

Individuals on the wait list are from the Connecticut and New York area and are
receiving a variety of treatment options. Some are in in-patient acute hospital settings
such as Columbia Hospital in Westchester, others are in an outpatient setting such as our
Intensive Outpatient Program in Greenwich, CT. Others are only seeing an outpatient
practitioner and a physician or psychiatrist.

Complete the attached supplemental CON application form identified as “Establishment of
a New Health Care Facility (Mental Health and/or Substance Abuse Treatment).”

See Attached
Provide any available letters of support for the proposal.

N/A

Describe how the proposed project is consistent with any applicable policies and standards
in regulations adopted by the Connecticut Department of Public Health.

The facility will fully comply with all applicable policies and standards for this level of residential

care.

Describe how the proposed project aligns with the Connecticut Department of Public
Health Statewide Health Care Facilities and Services Plan, available on OHCA’s website.

The Statewide Services Plan acknowledges Connecticut’s lack of mental and behavioral health
care support. Our service clearly falls under that heading and adds to the available treatment
options in the State while not requiring any funding from the State itself as Discovery finances the
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entire operation. This application would allow for a total of 12 beds to focus on the treatment of
adult women with eating disorders in the State. Additionally, we operate an IOP for women with
eating disorders and working to improve the entire spectrum of care for women with eating
disorders in the region.

8)  With respect to the proposal, provide evidence and documentation to support clear public
need:
a. discuss how low income persons, racial and ethnic minorities, disabled persons
and other underserved groups will benefit from this proposal;

Center for Discovery does not discriminate based off income, race, or disabilities
in their admissions process. In fact, unlike other providers throughout the
country, Discovery is predominately funded through insurance payments and not
a cash pay system like other treatment providers. This allows anyone with a
health care plan to be eligible for admission to our program.

b. explain how access to care will be affected;

Discovery’s proposal will improve access to care. Discovery’s other facility in
Fairfield is the only operating facility in the entire State of Connecticut to provide
this level of care. Opening an additional facility will severely reduce wait times
Jor individuals needing this life saving care.

c. discuss any alternative proposals that were considered.

N/A

9) Describe how the proposal will:
a. improve the quality of health care in the region;

By providing additional beds in the behavioral and mental health field, this will
improve accessibility to services that are lacking in the region. Discovery is a
Joint Commission accredited company that is working to bring all levels of care
to the Connecticut region.

b. improve accessibility of health care in the region; and
As mentioned above, the wait list for the existing facility (which is the sole facility
in Connecticut) is extremely long, this would cut wait times and get clients into
the treatment level they need to survive and thrive much faster.

c. improve the cost effectiveness of health care delivery in the region.
One of the problems with behavioral/mental health care is the high rate of relapse
that sends patients back to an inpatient or hospital level of care, and then back

down to outpatient levels of care. Our facility works to bridge that gap, and has
been showed to significantly reduce readmission rates to higher levels of care in
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10)

11)

12)

13)

14)

15)

our clients. This significantly reduces health care costs to clients who might
otherwise endlessly cycle between hospital stays and lengthy outpatient terms.

How will this proposal help improve the coordination of patient care (explain in detail
regardless of whether your answer is in the negative or affirmative)?

Discovery works hand in hand with referring providers (hospitals, outpatient therapists &
psychiatrists, etc.) to provide the best care possible for each client in our care. We work with
several outpatient providers that we step our clients down to upon discharge and make sure that
our clients do what is necessary to continually improve their eating disorder.

Describe how this proposal will impact access to care for Medicaid recipients and indigent
persons.

While not directly contracted with Medicaid, Discovery welcomes calls from the state about
individual patients who may need our care and will help to provide that care when possible. Please

feel free to reach out if you have a client that needs help, and we will work with you to get them
the care they need.

If the proposal fails to provide or reduces access to services by Medicaid recipients or
indigent persons, provide explanation of good cause for doing so.

N/A

Will the proposal adversely affect patient health care costs in any way? Quantify and
provide the rationale for any changes in price structure that will result from this proposal,
including, but not limited to, the addition of any imposed facility fees.

Over time, this proposal should help decrease health care costs and reduce the number of inpatient
visits from individuals with eating disorders.

Describe the impact of this proposal on the financial strength of the state’s health care
system or demonstrate that the proposal is financially feasible for the applicant.

Please refer to our financial statements included in the initial application. Discovery operates
roughly 25 other sites throughout the country and can support the facility with its own cash
operations for an indefinite period of time.

The Financial Attachment I provided on page 20 of the initial CON submission appears to
be a replica of the attachment given for OHCA Docket Number 14-31913-CON. Review
the information reported and submit a revised table. Explicitly identify the fiscal years
being reported by including them in the column heading. If there are no changes between
the new and old tables, explain why. List the assumptions used to prepare the reported
information.

See Attachment
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16)

17)

18)

19)

20)

Assumptions are that 2016 would not start accepting admissions until May/June (based
on CON approval, house adjustments, staff training, licensing visit, etc.) Admission
assumptions are 18, 30, and 40, respectively.

Report the minimum number of admissions required to show an incremental gain from
operations for projected FYs 2016, 2017 and 2018.

The initial forecast for 2016 only anticipates 18 admissions because it probably will not
open until close to the summer time. Therefore, it would take an additional 4 admissions

to achieve full annual profitability for the next year, and only one incremental admission
per year after that.

Provide a discussion that supports the need for six beds for the facility.

The size and set-up of the facility allow it to accommodate six beds and the appropriate
care giving staff needed to oversee the facility and provide the treatment our clients need.
Furthermore, the city has already granted zoning approval for the site to utilize six beds.

Explain why the approval of the proposal will not result in an unnecessary duplication of
services.

As referenced, our wait list is lengthy and continually growing. We expect demand to
continually increase for our existing facility and clients on the wait list have nowhere else
1o go in the State. As eating disorders are an incredibly complex disorder, it is imperative
that these clients do not wait too long to receive treatment or they risk dying from this
disorder. There are not enough of these services to meet the demand. So, far from

creating unnecessary services, this would simply be helping accommodate the existing
demand.

How will the proposal impact the diversity of health care providers and patient choice or
reduce competition in the geographic region?

The proposal will simply add to the available treatment options for individuals with
eating disorders. There is no competition in the area, so it will not reduce it. It should
help the growth of outpatient providers and programs in the area as more clients are
able to successfully seek treatment in the area.

Discuss the referral pattern for the facility on Congress Street. (Where do the clients reside
and what treatment facility are they coming from?)

The majority of our clients reside throughout the State of Connecticut with Fairfield/Southport
being a somewhat central location for our admissions. Additional clients occasionally come from
New York. Our referrals come from Intensive Outpatient Centers such as Renfrew, Center for
Discovery, and Walden. Many admits are stepping down from hospital stays at places like Yale
Hospital, Columbia Hospital, and Long Island Jewish Hospital.
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21)

22)

23)

24)

25)

26)

27)

Demonstrate how this proposal will impact the financial strength of the health care system
in the state or that the proposal is financially feasible.

See Question 14.

Explain how the proposal will improve quality, accessibility and cost effectiveness of
health care delivery in the region.

Discovery operates one of the highest quality eating disorder treatment programs in the country,
accessibility is difficult for clients right now as Discovery operates the only existing program in the
state and its 6 beds are often full. The new facility would offer an additional six beds and reduce
wait times thereby increasing accessibility. It should help reduce inpatient visits from eating
disorder clients throughout the state and help mitigate the costs of those visits.

Provide a discussion on the Applicant's private pay agreement with clients that are
uninsured or underinsured. Does the Applicant provide these clients with a sliding fee
schedule?

Discovery analyzes these cases on an individual basis. Discovery does have a sliding fee
schedule for some clients. In addition, Discovery operates its own scholarship fund to
help those who cannot afford treatment to receive treatment at Discovery.

If the proposal fails to provide or reduces access to services by Medicaid recipients or
indigent persons, provide explanation for good cause for doing so. Note: good cause shall
not be demonstrated solely on the basis of differences in reimbursement rates between
Medicaid and other health care payers.

The proposal will not reduce access and, as mentioned, we are more than willing to help
with Medicaid cases that meet criteria for residential eating disorder treatment.

Does the Applicant have relationships with other Connecticut providers that provide a
referral base for the proposed facility?

Yes. Discovery operates an outpatient clinic in Greenwich, and we have relationships
with Renfrew outpatient center, Walden Behavioral Health, and Yale-New Haven
hospital, along with a large number of outpatient therapists that provide referrals.

Explain how clients discharged from the proposed inpatient program will obtain outpatient
care in their community.

Discovery operates a step-down program in Greenwich for any client that needs
outpatient care. If they live further away, Discovery sets up their first outpatient visit with

an eating disorder specialist in their area to help with the continuity of care.

Provide a list of existing providers in Connecticut that have outpatient treatment programs
for eating disorders.
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Center for Discovery (Greenwich, CT)
Renfrew (Greenwich, CT)
Walden Behavioral Health (Windsor, CT)

28) Who is the owner of the building and land where the proposed facility will be located?

Southport CFD, LLC
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Attachments
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Connecticut Department
of Public Health

Supplemental CON Application Form
Establishment of a New Health Care Facility (Mental
Health and/or Substance Abuse Treatment)*
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-638(1)

Applicant: Discovery Practice Management, Inc.

Project Name: Center for Discovery, Southport

*This supplemental form should be included with all applications requesting authorization
for the establishment of a mental health and/or substance abuse treatment facility.
For the establishment of other “health care facilities,” as defined by Conn. Gen. Stat §

19a-630(11) - hospitals licensed by DPH under chapter 386v, specialty hospitals, or a
central service facility - complete the Main Form only.
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Affidavit

Applicant; X/S‘CW!%/ /221.&'/ M(AMA
Project Title: Cc/mly ‘rar hlm"j" %M?L

L K@ \WeSreawan ). O

(Name) < (Position — CEO or CFO)
of N&UFVA‘SJ& y, being duly sworn, depose and state that the

(Facility Name)said facility cofhplies with the appropriate and applicable criteria as set
forth in the Sections/19a-63@/ 19a-637, 19a-638, 19a-639, 19a-486 and/or 4-181 of the
Connecticut Generdl Statutgs.

i

Julie

Signature | Date

Subscribed and sworn/to b me on/%/ W / 2 ﬂ/&

M

Notary Public/Commissioner of Superior Court

My commission expires: %//M // 2 // 7

Orange County

PAOLA GRIJALVA DOV .
Commigsion @ 209,
Notary Pubdlie - Calitor:

Orange Coun:,

Comen. Expires ¥
M —I

P

il

PAOLA GRIJALVA DOMINGUEZ
R Commussion # 2097330
Notary Public - California

My Comm. Expires Jan 16, 2019

z
z
2
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1. Project Description: New Facility (Mental Health and/or Substance Abuse)

a. Describe any unique services (i.e., not readily available in the service area)
that may be included in the proposal.

The project will provide Residential Eating Disorder Treatment for adult
women who suffer from anorexia, bulimia, or binge-eating disorders. Only
one such facility exists in the state, and is also operated by Discovery. That
facility is running at capacity and clients are having to wait several months for
an available bed. This proposal would allow 6 additional beds and help
decrease wait times and allow individuals access to life saving treatment
even faster.

b. List the type and number of DPH-licensed health care professionals that will
be required to initiate the proposal.

The facility would have two licensed therapists (PhD, PsyD, MFT, LPC, etc).
The facility will also contract with a licensed psychiatrist and a licensed
physician to provide on-call support and weekly check-ins.

2. Projected Volume

a. For each of the specific population groups to be served, report the following by
service level (include all assumptions):

(i) An estimate of the number of persons within the population group by
town that need the proposed service; and

It is estimated that nearly 2,700 women in Fairfield county and 10,600
women in Connecticut will require care similar to ours.

(i)  The number of persons in need of the service that will be served by the
proposal (estimated patient volume).

Discovery estimates that an additional 40 clients per year will be able
to be served by the new location.

b. Provide statistical information from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Administration (“SAMSHA”), or a similar organization demonstrating that the
target population has a need for the proposed services.

Please note: provide only publicly available and verifiable information and
document the source.
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Greer, Leslie

From: Greci, Laurie

Sent: Monday, February 01, 2016 11:33 AM

To: 'tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com'

Cc: Greer, Leslie; Riggott, Kaila

Subject: Request for Additional Information Regarding CON Application 15-32042
Attachments: 15-32042-CL 2nd 02012016.docx

Dear Mr. Davis,

Please see attached request for additional information regarding CON application 15-32042 -- Establishment of a 6-bed
Residential Living Center for Women in Fairfield.

Please contact me if you have any questions. Responses are due by Friday, April 1, 2016.
Regards,
Laurie Greci

Office of Health Care Access

Connecticut Department of Public Health

410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA, Hartford, CT 06134
Tel: 860-418-7001

Fax: 860-418-7053

mailto: laurie.greci@ct.gov

Web: www.ct.gov/ohca

DPH



STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Dannel P. Malloy
Governor
Raul Pino, M.D., M.P.H. =g
Acting Commissioner gy

Office of Health Care Access

Nancy Wyman
Lt. Governor

February 1, 2016 Via Email Only

tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com

Tim Davis

Business Development Manager

Discovery Practice Management, Inc. d/b/a Center for Discovery
4281 Katella Ave., Ste. 111

Los Alamitos, CA 90720

RE: Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 15-32042-CON
Establishment of a 6-bed Residential Living Center for Women in Fairfield
Certificate of Need Second Completeness Letter

Dear Mr. Davis:

On January 12, 2016, OHCA received the requested responses to questions concerning the
Certificate of Need application of Discovery Practice Management, Inc. d/b/a Center for
Discovery ("Applicant™) proposing to establish a 6-bed mental health residential living center for
adult women age 18 and older with eating disorders.

OHCA requests additional information pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes §19a-639a(c).
Please electronically confirm receipt of this email as soon as you receive it. Provide responses to
the questions below in both a Word document and PDF format at the earliest convenience as an
attachment to a responding email. Please email your responses to all of the following email
addresses: OHCA@ct.gov; laurie.greci@ct.qov; and kaila.riggott@ct.gov.

Repeat each question before providing your response and paginate and date your response, i.e.,
each page, in its entirety. Information filed after the initial CON application submission (e.g.,
completeness response letter, prefile testimony, late file submissions and the like) must be
numbered sequentially from the Applicant’s document preceding it. Please begin your
submission using Page 132 and reference “Docket Number: 15-32042-CON.”

_— 5,

D P H Phone: (860) 509-8000 e Fax: (860) 509-7184 o \/P: (860) 899-1611
. 410 Capitol Avenue, P.O. Box 340308
Hartford, Connecticut 06134-0308
www.ct.gov/dph
Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer

Connecticut Department
of Public Health



Discovery Practice Managements d/b/a Center for Discovery Page 2 of 2
Docket Number: 15-32042-CON

Pursuant to Section 19a-639a(c) of the Connecticut General Statutes, you must submit your
response to this request for additional information no later than sixty days after the date that this
request was transmitted. Therefore, please provide your written responses to OHCA no later than
April 1, 2016, otherwise your application will be automatically considered withdrawn.

1. Page 123 of the completeness responses states that “Discovery welcomes calls from the
state about individual patients that may need our care and will help to provide that care
when possible.” Expand upon the statement and describe what exactly Discovery would
do to help provide care when possible. For example, does Discovery have a sliding fee
scale to accommodate patients that do not have insurance or may have some form of
governmental insurance? If so, describe how the sliding fee scale would be applied to the
persons treated at the facility. Provide descriptions of any additional resources that
Discovery may utilize to admit patients in need to the proposed facility.

If you have any questions concerning this letter, please feel free to contact me at (860) 418-7001
or (860) 418-7045.

Sincerely,

Laurie Greci
Associate Research Analyst

Office of Health Care Access

Connecticut Department of Public Health

410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA, Hartford, CT 06134
Tel: 860-418-7001

Fax: 860-418-7053

mailto: laurie.greci@ct.gov

Web: www.ct.gov/ohca




Greer, Leslie

From: Tim Davis <tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com>

Sent: Monday, February 01, 2016 2:27 PM

To: Greci, Laurie

Cc: Greer, Leslie; Riggott, Kaila

Subject: RE: Request for Additional Information Regarding CON Application 15-32042
Attachments: CON Edits 02012016.pdf

Hi Laurie,

Thank you for reviewing our application. Attached is our response to your question from this morning.

Best,
Tim

Tim Davis, CFA

Director of Business Development
Center for Discovery

4281 Katella Avenue, Suite 111
Los Alamitos, CA 90720
714-947-7357 (OFFICE)
806-438-3505 (CELL)
714-828-1868 (FAX)
tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com
www.centerfordiscovery.com

CENTER FOR DISCOVERY

From: Greci, Laurie [mailto:Laurie.Greci@ct.gov]

Sent: Monday, February 1, 2016 8:33 AM

To: Tim Davis <tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com>

Cc: Greer, Leslie <Leslie.Greer@ct.gov>; Riggott, Kaila <Kaila.Riggott@ct.gov>
Subject: Request for Additional Information Regarding CON Application 15-32042

Dear Mr. Davis,

Please see attached request for additional information regarding CON application 15-32042 -- Establishment of a 6-bed
Residential Living Center for Women in Fairfield.

Please contact me if you have any questions. Responses are due by Friday, April 1, 2016.
Regards,
Laurie Greci

Office of Health Care Access
Connecticut Department of Public Health



410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA, Hartford, CT 06134
Tel: 860-418-7001

Fax: 860-418-7053

mailto: laurie.greci@ct.gov

Web: www.ct.gov/ohca
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CENTER FOR DISCOVERY"

February 1, 2016

Laurie Greci

Associate Research Analyst

Office of Health Care Access

Connecticut Department of Public Health

410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA, Hartford, CT 06134

Dear Laurie,

This letter is our response to your February 1, 2016 request for additional information in reference to
Docket Number: 15-32042-CON.

Your letter stated the following:

1. Page 123 of the completeness responses states that “Discovery welcomes calls from the
state about individual patients that may need our care and will help to provide that care
when possible.” Expand upon the statement and describe what exactly Discovery would
do to help provide care when possible. For example, does Discovery have a sliding fee
scale to accommodate patients that do not have insurance or may have some form of
governmental insurance? If so, describe how the sliding fee scale would be applied to the
persons treated at the facility. Provide descriptions of any additional resources that
Discovery may utilize to admit patients in need to the proposed facility.

In response, yes, Discovery does offer a sliding fee schedule to accommodate patients without
insurance. The sliding fee schedule offers up to a 30% discount to potential clients who meet the
appropriate medical criteria for care of eating disorders at a residential level. In addition, Discovery will
offer up to two scholarships per year to residents of Connecticut who meet our admission criteria but
may be unable to pay for treatment. The scholarship is an all-inclusive waiver of fees.

Please let me know if you have any questions or require additional information.

Best regans,

-~
-
T —

Tim Davis, CFA

Director of Business Development
Center for Discovery

4281 Katella Avenue, Suite 111
Los Alamitos, CA 90720
714-947-7357 (OFFICE)
806-438-3505 (CELL)
714-828-1868 (FAX)

4281 Katella Ave

- Suite 111 - Los Alamitos, CA 20720

800-760-3934 www.centerfordiscovery.com

<<ﬂ32>>



Greer, Leslie

From: Greci, Laurie

Sent: Thursday, February 18, 2016 3:57 PM

To: 'tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com'

Cc: Riggott, Kaila; Greer, Leslie

Subject: Completeness Questions concerning Docket Number 15-32042-CON
Attachments: 15-32042-CON Completeness Letter 3.docx

Dear Mr. Davis,

Please see attached request for additional information regarding CON application 15-32042 -- Establishment of a 6-bed
Residential Living Center for Women in Fairfield. There are just a few items that need to be addressed.

Please contact me if you have any questions. Responses are due by Monday, April 18, 2016.

Regards,

Laurie Greci

Office of Health Care Access

Connecticut Department of Public Health

410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA, Hartford, CT 06134
Tel: 860-418-7001

Fax: 860-418-7053

mailto: laurie.greci@ct.gov

Web: www.ct.gov/ohca

DPH



STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Dannel P. Malloy

£ Y Governor
Raul Pino, M.D., M.PH. 5__{;11." 5

i Nancy Wyman
Commissioner y wy

sy Lt. Governor
Office of Health Care Access

February 18, 2016 Via Email Only

Tim Davis

Business Development Manager

Discovery Practice Management, Inc. d/b/a Center for Discovery
4281 Katella Ave., Ste. 111

Los Alamitos, CA 90720

RE: Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 15-32042-CON
Establishment of a 6-bed Residential Living Center for Women in Fairfield
Certificate of Need Completeness Letter

Dear Mr. Davis:

On February 1, 2016, the Department of Public Health (“DPH”), Office of Health Care Access
(“OHCA”) received the requested responses to questions concerning the Certificate of Need
application of Discovery Practice Management, Inc. d/b/a Center for Discovery ("Applicant™)
proposing to establish a 6-bed mental health residential living center for adult women age 18 and
older with eating disorders.

OHCA requests additional information pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes §19a-639a(c).
Please electronically confirm receipt of this email as soon as you receive it. Provide responses to
the questions below in both a Word document and PDF format at the earliest convenience as an
attachment to a responding email. Please email your responses to all of the following email
addresses: OHCA@ct.gov; laurie.greci@ct.gov; and kaila.riggott@ct.gov.

Phone: (860) 509-8000 o Fax: (860) 509-7184 e \/P: (860) 899-1611
410 Capitol Avenue, P.O. Box 340308
D P H Hartford, Connecticut 06134-0308
www.ct.gov/dph
Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer

Connecticut Department
of Public Health


mailto:OHCA@ct.gov
mailto:laurie.greci@ct.gov
mailto:kaila.riggott@ct.gov

Discovery Practice Management, Inc.
15-32042-CON

Page 2 of 3

Repeat each question before providing your response and paginate and date your response, i.e.,
each page, in its entirety. Information filed after the initial CON application submission (e.qg.,
completeness response letter, prefile testimony, late file submissions and the like) must be
numbered sequentially from the Applicant’s document preceding it. Please begin your
submission using Page 133 and reference “Docket Number: 15-32042-CON.”

1) Table 6 on page 119 of the completeness response reports the following information
concerning utilization of the proposed facility. Report the projected first date of operations on
which Applicant is basing the number of clients projected to be served in FY 2016. Provide
the date using the mm/dd/yyyy format.

PROJECTED NUMBER OF CLIENTS
Fiscal Year (Jan 1 to Dec 31)
2016 2017 2018 2019
18 30 35 40

Number of Clients

2) Report the total number of clients admitted to the existing facility in FY2015.

3) Table 7 on page 120 of the completeness response reports the patient population payer mix
by fiscal year. However, the number of clients does not reflect the number reported in Table
6 on page 119. Update the following table concerning the patient payer mix to include the
number of clients to be served in FYs 2018 and 2019.

APPLICANT’S PATIENT POPULATION MIX BY PAYER AND FISCAL YEAR
FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019
No. % No. % No. % No. %

Medicare 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
Medicaid 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
CHAMPUS &TriCare 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
Total Government 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
Commercial Insurers 17 94% 28 93%
Uninsured 1 2% 2 2%
Worker's Comp 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
Total Non-Government 18 98% 30 98% 35 98% 40 98%
Total Payer Mix 18 | 100% 30 | 100% 35| 100% 40 | 100%

4) The financial worksheet on page 131 reports the following revenue and expense incremental

to the proposal. Update the worksheet to include FY 2019 to enable completion of the
following table:

APPLICANT'S PROJECTED INCREMENTAL GAIN FROM OPERATIONS

Fiscal Year (Jan 1 to Dec 31)
2016 2017 2018 2019
Revenues from Operations $750,000 $1,200,000 $1,500,000
Total Operating Expense 875,750 905,780 937,011
Incremental Gains from
Operations ($ 81,738) $ 294,220 $562,989




Discovery Practice Management, Inc. Page 3 of 3
15-32042-CON

Please note that pursuant to Section 19a-639a(c) of the Connecticut General Statutes, you must
submit your response to this request no later than sixty days from the date of this email
transmission. Therefore, please provide your written responses to OHCA no later than Monday,
April 18, 2016, otherwise your application will be automatically considered withdrawn. Please
email your responses to all of the following email addresses: OHCA@ct.gov;
laurie.greci@ct.gov; and kaila.riggott@ct.gov. If you have any questions concerning this letter,
please feel free to contact me at (860) 418-7001 and (860) 418-7045.

Sincerely,

Laurie Greci
Associate Research Analyst


mailto:OHCA@ct.gov
mailto:laurie.greci@ct.gov
mailto:kaila.riggott@ct.gov

Greer, Leslie

From: Tim Davis <tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com>

Sent: Thursday, February 18, 2016 4:40 PM

To: Greci, Laurie

Cc: Riggott, Kaila; Greer, Leslie

Subject: RE: Completeness Questions concerning Docket Number 15-32042-CON
Attachments: CON edits 02182016.pdf

Dear Laurie,
Please see attached responses to your questions from today.
Please let me know if you have any additional questions or concerns and | look forward to hearing from you soon.

Best,
Tim

From: Greci, Laurie [mailto:Laurie.Greci@ct.gov]

Sent: Thursday, February 18, 2016 12:57 PM

To: Tim Davis <tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com>

Cc: Riggott, Kaila <Kaila.Riggott@ct.gov>; Greer, Leslie <Leslie.Greer@ct.gov>
Subject: Completeness Questions concerning Docket Number 15-32042-CON

Dear Mr. Davis,

Please see attached request for additional information regarding CON application 15-32042 -- Establishment of a 6-bed
Residential Living Center for Women in Fairfield. There are just a few items that need to be addressed.

Please contact me if you have any questions. Responses are due by Monday, April 18, 2016.

Regards,

Laurie Greci

Office of Health Care Access

Connecticut Department of Public Health

410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA, Hartford, CT 06134
Tel: 860-418-7001

Fax: 860-418-7053

mailto: laurie.greci@ct.gov

Web: www.ct.gov/ohca




CENTER FOR DISCOVERY"

February 18™, 2016

Laurie Greci

Associate Research Analyst

Office of Health Care Access

Connecticut Department of Public Health

410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA, Hartford, CT 06134

Dear Laurie,

Thank you for taking the time to review our application. This letter provides responses to the questions
referencing our CON application; Docket Number: 15-32042-CON, posed on February 18", 2016. Please
let me know if you have any additional questions or require additional information.

1) Table 6 on page 119 of the completeness response reports the following information
concerning utilization of the proposed facility. Report the projected first date of
operations on which Applicant is basing the number of clients projected to be served in
FY 2016. Provide the date using the mm/dd/yyyy format.

PROJECTED NUMBER OF CLIENTS

Fiscal Year (Jan 1 to Dec 31)
2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019
Number of Clients 18 30 35 40

Estimated Opening Date is 06/01/2016.

2) Report the total number of clients admitted to the existing facility in FY2015.

It did not treat any adult clients in FY2015. However, it did admit 44 adolescent clients during FY2015.

3) Table 7 on page 120 of the completeness response reports the patient population payer
mix by fiscal year. However, the number of clients does not reflect the number reported
in Table 6 on page 119. Update the following table concerning the patient payer mix to
include the number of clients to be served in FYs 2018 and 2019.

APPLICANT’S PATIENT POPULATION MIX BY PAYER AND FISCAL YEAR

FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019

No. % No. % No. % No. %

Medicare 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
Medicaid 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

4281 Katella Ave Suite 111 Los Alamitos, CA 80720

800-760-3934 www.centerfordiscovery.com
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0%

CHAMPUS &TriCare 0 0% 0 0% 0 0 0%

Total Government 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Commercial Insurers 17 94% 28 93% 33 37

Uninsured 1 2% 2 2% 2 8

Worker's Comp 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Total Non-Government 18 98% 30 98% 35 98% 40| 98%

Total Payer Mix 18 100% 30 100% 35 100% 40 | 100%

4) The financial worksheet on page 131 reports the following revenue and expense
incremental to the proposal. Update the worksheet to include FY 2019 to enable
completion of the following table:
APPLICANT'S PROJECTED INCREMENTAL GAIN FROM OPERATIONS
Fiscal Year (Jan 1 to Dec 31)
2016 2017 2018 2019

Revenues from Operations $750,000 $1,200,000 $1,500,000 $1,800,000
Total Operating Expense 875,750 905,780 937,011 960,000
Incremental Gains from ($ 81,738) $ 204 220 $562.989 $840,000

Operations

Please let us know if we can provide any additional information and we look forward to working with
your department in the near future to open up this new facility.

Best regards,

Tim Davis, CFA

Director of Business Development

Center for Discavery

4281 Katella Avenue, Suite 111

Los Alamitos, CA 90720
714-947-7357 (OFFICE)

806-438-3505 (CELL)
714-828-1868 (FAX)

4281 Katella Ave

800-760-3934

Suite 111

« Los Alamitos, CA 90720

www.centerfordiscovery.com



Greer, Leslie

From: Greci, Laurie

Sent: Monday, February 29, 2016 9:07 AM

To: 'tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com'

Cc: Riggott, Kaila; Greer, Leslie

Subject: 15-32042-CON Application Deemed Complete Notification
Attachments: 15-32042-CON Notification of Application Deemed Complete.docx

Good morning,

Please see the attached deemed complete letter for Docket No. 15-32042-CON.
Regards,

Laurie Greci

Office of Health Care Access

Connecticut Department of Public Health

410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA, Hartford, CT 06134
Tel: 860-418-7001

Fax: 860-418-7053

mailto: laurie.greci@ct.gov

Web: www.ct.gov/ohca

DPH



STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Dannel P. Malloy
Governor
Raul Pino, M.D., M.PH.

Commissioner

Nancy Wyman
Lt. Governor

Office of Health Care Access

February 29, 2016 Via Email Only

tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com
Tim Davis

Director of Business Development
Center for Discovery

4281 Katella Ave., Ste. 111

Los Alamitos, CA 90720

RE:  Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 15-32042-CON
Establishment of a 6-bed Residential Living Center for Women in Fairfield
Certificate of Need Completeness Letter

Dear Mr. Davis:

This letter is to inform you that, pursuant to Section 19a-639a (d) of the Connecticut General Statutes, the
Office of Health Care Access has deemed the above-referenced application complete as of February 26,
2016.

If you have any questions concerning this letter, please feel free to contact me at (860) 418-7001.

Sincerely,
Lawrie Greew

Laurie Greci
Associate Research Analyst

Phone: (860) 509-8000  Fax: (860) 509-7184 « VVP: (860) 899-1611
410 Capitol Avenue, P.O. Box 340308
DPH Hartford, Connecticut 06134-0308
www.ct.gov/dph
Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer

Connecticut Department
of Public Health
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Greer, Leslie

From: Greci, Laurie

Sent: Wednesday, March 02, 2016 12:38 PM

To: 'tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com'

Cc: Riggott, Kaila; Greer, Leslie

Subject: 15-32042-CON Application for New Facility

Dear Mr. Davis,

One more question for you to addresse concerning the above application. Did Discovery Practice Management, Inc.,
d/b/a Center for Discovery, ("Applicant") consider expanding the existing facility on Congress St. to accommodate the
need for the additional beds? Please explain in detail why the second facility was proposed rather than adding beds to
the existing facility. Provide descriptions of the two facilities in Fairfield in your discussion.

Please reply directly to Kaila Riggott at kaila.riggott@ct.gov. | thank you in advance for your response.

Sincerely,
Laurie Greci

Office of Health Care Access

Connecticut Department of Public Health

410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA, Hartford, CT 06134
Tel: 860-418-7001

Fax: 860-418-7053

DPH



Greer, Leslie

From: Tim Davis <tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com>
Sent: Wednesday, March 02, 2016 12:45 PM

To: Greci, Laurie

Cc: Riggott, Kaila; Greer, Leslie

Subject: RE: 15-32042-CON Application for New Facility

Dear Laurie & Kaila,

There are two main reasons behind our decision to add a second facility rather than expanding the existing facility. The
first, and most restrictive reason, is that Connecticut state and local zoning laws allow us the 6 bed model with no
special zoning exemptions, permits, etc. If we want to add additional beds, this would require Conditional Use Permits,
Public Hearings, and would be subject to a vote of the neighbors, over which we have little control, and probably little
chance of success as, historically, these public hearings do not go very well for providers.

Second, we prefer to keep our treatment milieus small and intimate for more one on one care, and to maintain the feel
of a home, rather than an institutional setting. Both of the homes allow for 3 bedrooms to be utilized as double
occupancy bedrooms, and allow the extra 2-3 bedrooms to be utilized by the therapists we employ to use as therapeutic
offices and group therapy rooms. If we were to cram more beds into the house, we would lose the space needed for our
staff to operate and provide the appropriate level of care.

Tim

From: Greci, Laurie [mailto:Laurie.Greci@ct.gov]

Sent: Wednesday, March 2, 2016 9:38 AM

To: Tim Davis <tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com>

Cc: Riggott, Kaila <Kaila.Riggott@ct.gov>; Greer, Leslie <Leslie.Greer@ct.gov>
Subject: 15-32042-CON Application for New Facility

Dear Mr. Davis,

One more question for you to addresse concerning the above application. Did Discovery Practice Management, Inc.,
d/b/a Center for Discovery, ("Applicant") consider expanding the existing facility on Congress St. to accommodate the
need for the additional beds? Please explain in detail why the second facility was proposed rather than adding beds to
the existing facility. Provide descriptions of the two facilities in Fairfield in your discussion.

Please reply directly to Kaila Riggott at kaila.riggott@ct.gov. | thank you in advance for your response.

Sincerely,
Laurie Greci

Office of Health Care Access

Connecticut Department of Public Health

410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA, Hartford, CT 06134
Tel: 860-418-7001

Fax: 860-418-7053
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Dannel P. Malloy
Govermor

Raul Pil’l(), MD M.PH. Nancy Wyman

Commissioner Lt Covernor
Office of Health Care Access
Final Decision
Applicant: Discovery Practice Management, Inc.

d/b/a Center for Discovery
Docket Number:  15-32042-CON

Project Title: Proposal to Establish a 6-Bed Mental Health Residential
Treatment Facility for Women with Eating Disorders

Project Description: Discovery Practice Management, Inc., d/b/a Center for Discovery,
(“Applicant™) seeks authorization to establish a 6-bed mental health residential treatment
facility for women with eating disorders at 1320 Mill Hill Road, Fairfield, Connecticut.

Procedural History: The Applicant published notice of its intent to file the Certificate of
Need application in the Connecticut Post (Bridgeport) on September 22, 23 and 24, 2015.
On November 19, 2015, the Office of Health Care Access ("OHCA™) received the
Certificate of Need application from the Applicant for the above-referenced project. On
February 26, 2016, OHCA deemed the Certificate of Need application complete. OHCA
received no responses from the public concerning the Applicant’s proposal and no
hearing requests were received from the public pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes
(“Conn. Gen. Stat.”) § 19a-639%a(e). Deputy Commissioner Brancifort considered the
entire record in this matter.

Phone: (860) 418-7001 e Fax: (860) 418-7053
410 Capitol Avenue, P.O. Box 340308
Hartford, Connecticut 06134-0308
www.ct.gov/dph/ohca
Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer




Discovery Practice Managements d/b/a Center for Discovery Page 2 of 9
Docket Number: 15-32042-CON

10.

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law

Discovery Practice Management, Inc., d/b/a Center for Discovery, ("Applicant")
specializes in the treatment of eating disorders. The Applicant has treated over 2,600
clients at the residential level of care since 1999. Ex. A, p. 7, 30.

The Applicant has facilities in California, Connecticut, Illinois, Virginia and
Washington. Ex. A, pp. 76, 94, 95.

Each of the Applicant's facilities is located in a residential neighborhood. The
Applicant treats a small number of residents at one time to maintain an intimate,
home-like setting with a low resident-to-staff ratio. Ex. A, pp. 75-76.

The Applicant currently operates a 6-bed women’s residential treatment facility at
4536 Congress Street, Fairfield for adult women with eating disorders. It is licensed
as a mental health residential living center and is the only residential center for
adults in Connecticut. Fx. A, p. 8, 52.

The Congress Street facility opened in April 2015 and reached maximum capacity’
within three months of opening. Ex. A, pp. 10, 52.

The Congress Street facility served 44 clients in 2015. From October 2015 to
January 2016, the Applicant had six clients in treatment at the start of each month.
Ex. C,p. 121 and Ex, G, p. 133.

The Applicant currently has a wait list of 10 individuals who are receiving care in
other less-appropriate treatment settings, such as an acute care hospital, an intensive
outpatient program or are only being seen as an outpatient by a physician or a
psychiatrist. Ex. C, p. 121.

The Applicant is proposing to establish a second 6-bed residential treatment facility
in Fairfield (“new facility”) located at 1320 Mill Hill Rd., Fairfield, Connecticut, Ex.
A pp. 4,7

The Applicant is not attempting to expand the existing facility to twelve beds as that
would require seeking special zoning exemptions and would result in Josing
therapeutic offices and group therapy rooms to bed space. In addition, the Applicant
prefers to maintain the feel of a six-bed home, rather than a 12-bed institutional
setting. ExhibitJ, p. 1.

The proposed service area will primarily be towns within Fairfield County, with
some clients also expected from other Connecticut and neighboring Westchester
County, New York towns. Ex. A, p. 77.

' A facility with six beds has a maximum capacity of 2,190 bed days. Based on an average length of stay of
A0 bed days, at 100% utilization the facility can admit 54 women.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

i6.

17.

The new facility will provide the same intermediate level of care as the Congress
Street facility. It will provide therapeutic support 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, to
no more than six individuals at one time. Ex. A, p. 1.

Clients served at the Applicant’s residential treatment facilities have a primary
diagnosis of anorexia, bulimia or binge eating and often have co-occurring
diagnoses, including depression and anxiety. Ex. A, p. 7.

The Applicant’s residential treatment includes:

one-on-one therapeutic treatments 3 to 4 times each week;
therapeutic group meetings;

weekly checks with a psychiatrist and a physician;
one-on-one meetings with a dietitian; and

meal preparation, food logs and restaurant outings.
Ex. A, p. 8.

Additional treatment components include psycho-educational group therapy,

discharge planning, exercise and recreational therapy, exposure response prevention
and a variety of activities including art and music. Ex. A, p. 8.

Eating disorders occur in approximately 10% of the female population. The
percentage reaches 30% for women ages 18 to 24. One percent (1%) of adult

women between the ages of 18 and 65 will require the Applicant’s level of care. Ex.
A p.9

There are approximately 2,700 women in Fairfield County and 10,600 in
Connecticut overall. Assuming only one-third of those clients in need actually seek
and receive treatment, 891 women in Fairfield County and 3,512 in Connecticut
may require residential-level treatment. Ex. A, p. 9

Based on utilization of its existing facilities, the Applicant projects that during the
first full year of operations it will provide services to 30 clients.

TABLE 1
PROJECTED UTILIZATION

Fiscal Year (Jan 1 to Dec 31)

Description

2016* 2017 2018 2019
Number of clients 18 30 35 40
Average length of stay, bed days 40 40 40 40
Number of bed days 720 1,200 1,400 1,600

Maximum number of bed days
based on 6 beds 1,830 2,190 2,160 2,180

Percent of capacity 39% 55% 64% 73%
* Partial year; projected numbers based on anticipated June 1 start date.
Ex. C,p. 119 and Ex. F, p. 133.
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

25.

The Applicant has existing relationships with local mental health outpatient
therapists, physicians and psychiatrist and receives referrals from Yale-New Haven
Hospital as well as hospitals in New York. Ex. C, p. 80.

There are no other providers of similar services in Connecticut. The closest
providers are Renfrew Treatment Center in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania and the
Cambridge Eating Disorder Program in Cambridge, Massachusetis. Ex. A,p.9.

Eating disorders have the highest mortality rate of any mental illness. Four percent
(4%) of women with eating disorders will die from complications related to their
disease. Ex. A, p. 31.

Eating disorders are frequently associated with other psychopathology and role
impairment and are frequently under-treated. Ex. A, p. 37.

The National Task Force on Eating Disorders has identified residential treatment as
an effective and necessary level of intervention in the treatment of more severe and
treatment-resistant eating disorders. Ex. A, p. 8.

Clients that are discharged directly to an outpatient program from an inpatient
hospital stay have high levels of relapse. Residential care provides long-term
supervision and a structured learning environment where clients can learn and
practice the behaviors they will need to be successful in an outpatient program and
the at-home setting. Ex. A, pp. 16, 17.

Only 14.7% of the Applicant’s residential clients have been readmitted at any time
within the last 16 years, a rate lower than the readmission rate often reported for a
higher level of care, which ranges from 45.0% to 77.5%. Ex. A, p- 30.

The Applicant provides the necessary structure for cessation of purging behavior, a
symptom that can be difficult to end at a lower level of care. Six months to one year
after discharge from one of the Applicant’s residential freatment facilities, three-
quarters of those with a history of purging ceased this behavior and approximately
90% of clients with anorexia nervosa maintained their weight within a healthy
range. Ex. A, p. 29.
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26. The Applicant’s projected patient population mix at the new facility is illustrated in

27.

28.

29.

30.

the following table:
TABLE 4
APPLICANT'S PATIENT POPULATION MIX BY FISCAL YEAR
FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019
No. % No. % No. % No. %
Medicare 0 0% 0 0% ¢] 0% 0 0%
Medicaid 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
CHAMPUS &TriCare 1] 0% 0 0% 0] 0% 0 0%
Total Government 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
Commercial Insurers 17 94% 28 93% 33 94% 37 93%
Uninsured 1 6% 2 7% 2 6% 3 7%
Worker's Comp 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
Total Non- o o
Government 18 | 100% 30 | 100% 35| 100% 40 100%
Total Payer Mix 18 | 100% 30| 100% | 35| 100% | 40| 100%

Ex. C,p. 120 and Ex. F, p. 134,

The Applicant has a sliding fee schedule that offers up to a 30% discount to
potential clients who meet the appropriate medical criteria for admission. The
Applicant will also offer up to two scholarships per year to residents of Connecticut
without insurance who meet the admission criteria but may be unable to pay for
treatment. Ex. E, p. 132.

Although the Applicant does not have a contract with Connecticut’s Department of
Soctal Services, it will accept Medicaid clients via individual case agreements,
sliding fee schedules or scholarships. Ex. C, pp. 78-79 and Ex. D, p. 1.

The Applicant has sufficient funds and cash flow from its existing operations to
support the new facility. Ex. A, p. 14.

The Applicant projects incremental gains from operations in each of the proposal’s
first full three fiscal years.

TABLE 5
APPLICANT'S PROJECTED INCREMENTAL GAIN FROM OPERATIONS

Fiscal Year (Jan 1 to Dec 31)
2017 2018

Description

2016 2019

Revenues from Operations

$750,000

$1,200,000

$1,500,000

$1,800,000

Total Operating Expense

875,750

905,780

937,011

960,000

Incremental Gains from Operations

($ 81,738)

$ 294,220

$ 562,989

$ 840,000

Ex. C, p. 13t and Ex. G, p. 134.

31. The proposal has no associated capital expenditure as the Applicant already owns

the property where the facility will be located. There is an adolescent care program

currently at that location which will be relocated if the proposal is approved. Ex. A, p.
14.
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32

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39,

40.

41.

42.

43.

OHCA is currently in the process of establishing its policies and standards as
regulations. Therefore, OHCA has not made any findings as to this proposal’s
relationship to any regulations adopted by OHCA. (Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-639(a)(1)).

This CON application is consistent with the Statewide Health Care Facilities and
Services Plan. (Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-639(a)(2)).

The Applicant has established that there is a clear public need for the proposal.
{Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-639(a)(3)).

The Applicant has demonstrated that the proposal is financially feasible. (Comm. Gen.
Stat. § 192-639(a)(4)).

The Applicant has satistactorily demonstrated that the proposal will improve the
accessibility and maintain the quality and cost effectiveness of health care delivery
in the region. (Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-639(a)(5)).

The Applicant has shown that there will be no adverse change in the provision of
health care services to the relevant population and payer mix, including access to
services by Medicaid recipients and indigent persons. (Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-639(a)(6)).

The Applicant has satisfactorily identified the population to be served by the
proposal. (Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-639(a)(7)).

The Applicant's historical provision of services in the area supports the proposal.
{Comm. Gen. Stat. § 19a-639(a)8)).

The Applicant has satisfactorily demonstrated that the proposal will not result in an
unnecessary duplication of existing services in the area. (Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-
639(a)(9)).

The Applicant has demonstrated that there will not be a reduction in access to
services by Medicaid recipients or indigent persons. (Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-639(a)(10))

The Applicant has demonstrated that the proposal will not negatively impact the

- diversity of health care providers and client choice in the region. (Conn. Gen. Stat. §

19a-639(a)(11).

The Applicant has satisfactorily demonstrated that the proposal will not result in any
consolidation that would affect health care costs or accessibility to care. (Conn. Gen.
Stat. § 19a-639(a)(12))
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Discussion

CON applications are decided on a case-by-case basis and do not lend themselves to
general applicability due to the uniqueness of the facts in each case. In rendering its
decision, OHCA considers the factors set forth in Connecticut General Statutes § 19a-
639(a). The Applicant bears the burden of proof in this matter by a preponderance of the
evidence. Jones v. Connecticut Medical Examining Board, 309 Conn. 727 (2013).

Discovery Practice Management, Inc. d/b/a Center for Discovery (*Applicant™)
specializes in the treatment of eating disorders and has treated over 2,600 clients at the
residential level of care since 1999. FF7 The Applicant treats a small number of residents
at one time in an intimate, home-like setting. Fr3

In April 2015, the Applicant opened a 6-bed residential treatment facility in Fairfield for
women with eating disorders. That facility now operates at nearly 100% of its capacity.
FF5 The Applicant is proposing to establish a second facility in Fairfield. 778 The
establishment of a second facility will allow the Applicant to maintain a home-like
atmosphere for its patients, retain therapeutic space and avoid seeking special zoning
exemptions. FF9 The proposed facility will provide the same level of care as the

Applicant’s existing facility, the only residential center for women in Connecticut. FFiJ,
18

The Applicant’s existing facility has a 10-person waiting list for admission. In lieu of
residential treatment, some of the women on the waiting list are receiving care in other
less-appropriate treatment settings such as acute care hospitals or intensive outpatient
programs. Others on the waiting list may only be seeing an outpatient practitioner such as
a physician or a psychiatrist. 777 Clients that are discharged directly to an outpatient
program from an inpatient hospital stay have high levels of relapse. Residential care, as
proposed by the Applicant, provides long-term supervision and a structured learning
environment where clients can learn and practice the behaviors they will need to be
successful in an outpatient program and the at-home setting. FF23

The Applicant has a successful record of treating eating disorders. Only 14.7% of the
Applicant’s residential clients have been readmitted at any time within the last 16 years, a
rate lower than the readmission rate often reported for a higher level of care, which
ranges from 45.0% to 77.5%. FF24 Six months to one year after discharge from one of the
Applicant’s residential treatment facilities, three-quarters of those with a history of
purging ceased this behavior and approximately 90% of clients with anorexia nervosa
maintained their weight within a healthy range. FF25 Therefore, the Applicant’s proposal
will not only improve access to care but also provide care at the appropriate treatment
level.

Based on utilization at its existing facilities, the Applicant projects that during the first
full year of operations it will provide services to 30 clients. FF17 This projection is
reasonable, considering the percentage of women with eating disorders, especially those
between ages 18 and 24, and the population of Connecticut and Fairfield County. FFi5, 16
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Although most of the Applicant’s clients have commercial insurance, the Center for
Discovery has a sliding fee scale that offers up to a 30% discount. Additionally, the
Applicant also offers up to two scholarships per year to Connecticut residents without
insurance. Fr26, 27 And, while the Applicant does not have a contract with Connecticut’s
Department of Social Services, it does accept Medicaid clients via individual case
agreements, as well as offer Medicaid clients sliding fees or scholarships. FF28

Given the aforementioned, the Applicant has sufficiently demonstrated that its proposal
will satisfy a clear public need for the relevant population. There will be no unnecessary
duplication of services within the proposed service area and there will not be a reduction
in access to services for Medicaid recipients or indigent persons.

There is no capital expenditure associated with the proposal as the Applicant already
owns the property where the facility will be located. FF31 The Applicant projects
incremental gains in the first full three years of operation and has sufficient funds and
cash flow from its existing operations to support operation of the new facility. FF29, 30
Therefore, the Applicant has demonstrated that its proposal is financially feasible.

The Applicant has satisfactorily demonstrated clear public need for the new facility,
improving access to care for the population currently being served, with no effect on the
diversity of health care providers or patient choice. The proposal strengthens the
continuum of care for women in the area and, therefore, the Applicant has demonstrated
that the proposal is consistent with the Statewide Health Care Facilities and Services
Plan.
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Order

Based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact and Discussion, the Certificate of Need
application of Discovery Practice Management, Inc. d/b/a Center for Discovery, to
establish a 6-bed Mental Health Residential Treatment Facility for women with eating
disorders at 1320 Mill Hill Road, Fairfield, Connecticut is hereby APPROVED.

All of the foregoing constitutes the final order of the Office of Health Care Access in this
matter.

By Order of the
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access

(il 27 2006

Dikte '




Olejarz, Barbara

I 00
From: Olejarz, Barbara
Sent: Wednesday, April 27, 2016 4:13 PM
To: ‘tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com'
Ce: Riggott, Kaila; Greer, Leslie; Martone, Kim
Subject: final decision
Attachments: 32042 pdf
Tracking: Recipient Delivery

‘tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com'

Riggott, Kalla Delivered: 4/27/2016 4:13 PM
Greer, Leslie Delivered: 4/27/2016 4:13 PM
Martone, Kim Delivered: 4/27/2016 4:13 PM

4/27/16
Please see attached final decision for Center for Discovery, DN: 15-32042-CON

Barbara K. Olejarz

Administrative Assistant to Kimberly Martone
Office of Health Care Access

Department of Public Health

Phone: (860) 418-7005

Email: Barbara.Olejarz@ct.gov
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Olejarz, Barbara

From: Microsoft Outlook

To: tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com

Sent: Wednesday, April 27, 2016 4:13 PM

Subject: Relayed: final decision
Delivery to these recipients or groups is complete, but no delivery notification was sent by the E

destination server:

tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com (tim.davis@centerfordiscovery.com)

Subject: final decision
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State of Connecticut
Office of Health Care Access

Form for Modification of a Previously

Authorized Certificate of Need

All persons who are requesting a modification to a previously authorized Certificate of Need
must complete this form. Completed forms should be submitted to the Director of the Office of
Health Care Access, 410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA, P.O. Box 340308, Hartford,
Connecticut 06134-0308.

SECTION I. PETITIONER INFORMATION

If more than 2 Petitioners, please attach a separate sheet of paper and provide additional
information in the format below:

~ Petitioner i Petltloner

' Discovery Practice '
Management, Inc.

| Full legal name
l‘
|

g
N
|
i Doing Business As E Center for Discovery
|

i Name of Parent Corporatlon
!

‘ Offlce Box, include a street J Los Alamitos, CA 90720
mamng address for Certified
\ Mail

i
l
'Mailing Address, ff Post 4281 Katella Ave, #111 |
i
\
\
|

' Petitioner type '(élg'ﬁ';'_ﬁ"fé‘r"“""'""'5 P |
- profit and NP for Not for
' Profit) !
[Name of Contactpersom, [ Tmbave [ |

| i

| including title Director of Business &
! | Strateglc Development

| Contact person’s street | 4281 Katella Ave., #111 |
- mailing address | Los Alamitos, CA 90720

I

| Contact person’s phone, fax | 714-947-7357; fax: 714-

' and e-mail address [ 828-1868;

‘ | ' Tim.davis@centerfordisco
- very.com
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SECTION Il. GENERAL PROPOSAL INFORMATION

a.

Title of Previously Authorized Project and Associated Docket Number(s):
___Proposal to Establish a a 6-Bed Mental Health Residential Treatment Facility
for Women with Eating Disorders Docket Number: 15-32042-CON

Location of proposal (Town including street address):
_ 1320 Mill Hill Road, Fairfield, Connecticut

Type of Modification Request:
[_] Change in the Scope of the Authorized Certificate of Need Project
[_] Extension of CON Expiration Date
[] Change in a CON Order Condition (other than to extend expiration date)

@; Other — Describe: ____Change of Address

SECTION lll. IF REQUESTING A CHANGE IN THE SCOPE OF AUTHORIZED PROJECT:

a.

Provide a one page description of the requested change in the scope of a previously
authorized Certificate of Need project and provide a detailed rationale for such change:

SECTION IV. IF REQUESTING AN EXTENSION OF THE CON EXPIRATION DATE:

a.

b.

C.

Certificate of Need expiration date per CON Final Decision: N/A

Requested revised CON expiration date: N/A

Rationale for increased time to fully complete and implement the authorized project:

Revised 8/11
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SECTION V. IF REQUESTING A CHANGE IN A CON FINAL DECISION CONDITION
(other than extension of the CON expiration date)

a. Identify the CON Condition that you are requesting to be revised or vacated.

b. Provide the rationale for such requested change:

SECTION VI. OTHER
a. Submit a completed CON Modification Affidavit.

b. Identify any other pertinent changes to the findings of facts upon which the original CON
authorization was based as a result of this requested modification.

Finding of Fact #8 states “The applicant is proposing to establish a second 6-bed residential
freatment facility in Fairfield (“new facility”) located at 1320 Mill Hill Rd., Fairfield, Connecticut”

We would like fo change the address to 600 Wellington Dr, Fairfield, Connecticut.

No other changes or modifications to the CON are requested. At the time we requested the
CON, we did not own or lease the property on Wellington Drive. We have since acquired the
property and it would be easier to open the new program at this location, rather than moving
the adolescent program out of the Mill Hill Rd location to Wellington, and then opening the
Adult program.

c. Identify what has been accomplished to date in terms of full project implementation.

Revised 8/11
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CON MODIFICATION AFFIDAVIT

Applicant: /\ /I(dow /z:w{cc M/M{m’f/ /?/Lé

Project Title: Z%mu/ 74 e(‘ég/&{ Vrd C‘f@/ /%u.é/ /4//7@_@@«744/
f -a'.,‘i[ /’44,5/ 5/ # A/om LJ/%A éﬁj UCV‘;(‘.(S

L Reerc B, W= &

(Name , (Position ~ CEO or CFO)

being duly sworn, depose and state that the

information provi/tj/e?/ in this CON Modification form is true and accurate to the best of my

/
{

[/
&*

/ " — el

Signat(ire ~ ‘% Date

knowledge. / /

Subscribed and sworn to before me on J%ﬁ( %///’/ %

"PAOLA GAIJALVA DOMNGUET |
Commission & 2087330
Motary Publlc - California

Nofary Public/Commissionef of Superior Court.

My commission expires: /%;&WM /% 7 ﬂ/ 7
- ~

Revised 8/11



Greer, Leslie

From: Martone, Kim

Sent: Tuesday, July 12, 2016 12:14 PM
To: Hansted, Kevin

Cc: Roberts, Karen; Greer, Leslie
Subject: FW: Center for Discovery
Attachments: Complaint letter re Ctr For Disc.pdf
Importance: High

Kimberly R. Martone

Director of Operations, Office of Health Care Access
Connecticut Department of Public Health

410 Capitol Avenue, MS #13 CMN, Hartford, Connecticut 06134
Phone: 860-418-7029 Fax: 860-418-7053

Email: Kimberly.Martone@ct.gov Website: www.ct.gov/ohca

ey
o .
o s
Comnectiout Department
of Public Health

From: Rossignol, Charles [mailto:CRossignol@waldenbehavioralcare.com]
Sent: Tuesday, July 12, 2016 12:15 PM

To: Martone, Kim

Cc: Koman, Stuart; Pat Gerner (KLG1@aol.com)

Subject: Center for Discovery

Importance: High

Greetings, Kim. Thank you for speaking with me this morning. Attached is our formal letter from Walden Behavioral
Care challenging Center for Discovery’s (CFD) opening of a treatment center in New Haven — less than 15 miles from our
Guilford clinic. Our attorney, Patricia Gerner Esq, is copied on this correspondence. An original letter will be coming by
certified mail.

I, along with Attorney Gerner, would appreciate being able to hear of the progress with your actions regarding

CFD. Thank you in advance for your response. Please let us know if there are any other actions we can/should take to
support your efforts.

Sincerely —

Chuck Rossignol

kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkhkkkkhkkkkhkkkkhkkhkkhkkhkkhkkkhkkhkkkx

Charles R R oss{gnol MBA

Vice President - Business Development & Contracting
Walden Behavioral Care

51 Sawyer Road

Waltham, MA 02453



Office: 781-647-2922
Cell: 978-314-1660

Email: crossignol@waldenbehavioralcare.com

Confidentiality Notice: This email message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain
confidential and/or privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended
recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and destroy/delete all copies of the original message.
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July 12, 2016

By email: Kimberly.Martone@ct.gov

Ms. Kimberly Martone

Director of Operations

Department of Public Health

Division of the Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA

P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: Center for Discovery — service opening in New Haven CT

Dear Ms. Martone:

I am writing to you today to express our significant concern and alarm with the upcoming
opening of a new eating disorder program in New Haven, within 15 miles of our recently
licensed eating disorders clinic in Guilford, CT. The service is operated by Center For
Discovery (CFD), perhaps under the name of Discovery Practice Management, and is
located at 900 Chapel Street in New Haven. Walden became aware of this through
receipt of an email announcement — a copy of which is attached. A review of the
materials in the announcement indicates that the program in many ways mirrors that of
our own program in Guilford. The announcement indicates that the intended opening is
planned for July 25, less than two weeks away.

Our attorney, Ms. Patricia Gerner, has confirmed with your office that there is no record
of CFD’s application for a Certificate of Need, thus appearing to make their service
launch a clear violation of regulatory procedures, and accordingly, licensure — quite
dubious. We hope that we can count on your office to take every legal measure to require
CFD to cease its plans for service opening. We would appreciate continuing
communication with your office regarding the progress of your plans regarding CFD, and
would welcome any opportunity to support your efforts in challenging their intentions in

any way.

51 Sawyer Road, 5™ Floor / Waltham, MA 02453 Tel: 781-647-6767 / Fax: 781-647-6755
www.waldenbehavioralcare.com



Thank you for receiving this very important communication. An original of this letter
will be sent by certified mail. I can be reached at any time for further discussion through
my office, by calling 781-647-6767.

President and Chief Executive Officer

Cc:  Patricia Gerner, Esq.

51 Sawyer Road, 5™ Floor / Waltham, MA 02453 Tel: 781-647-6767 / Fax: 781-647-6755
www.waldenbehavioralcare.com



From: Center For Discovery [mailto:alexia.mowry@centerfordiscovery.com]
Sent: Friday, July 08, 2016 10:08 AM
Subject: Opening July 25: Center For Discovery New Haven Eating Disorder Qutpatient Program

[
«x\\&\\ CENTER FOR DISCOVERY
\%\, NEW HAVEN OUTPATIENT

Eating Disorder Treatment
Partial Hospltallzatloq___l Intensive Outpatient

51 Sawyer Road, 5™ Floor / Waltham, MA 02453 Tel: 781-647-6767 / Fax: 781-647-6755
www.waldenbehavioralcare.com






Advanced technology that facilitates more effective
communication with referring tfreatment team and
families.

CONTACT ABOUT OUR
ADMISSIONS PROGRAM

TakeA\TourToday!e—

PINTEREST

51 Sawyer Road, 5 Floor / Waltham, MA 02453 Tel: 781-647-6767 / Fax: 781-647-6755
www.waldenbehavioralcare.com



4281 Katella Avenue, Suite 111 * Los Alamitos, CA 90720

Center for Discovery, 4281 Katella Avenue, Suite 111, Los Alamitos, CA 90720

SafeUnsubscribe™ mmcdonough@waldenbehavioralcare.com

Forward this email | Update Profile | About our service provider

Sent by alexia.mowry@centerfordiscovery.com in collaboration with

Constant Contact , =™

Try it free today

51 Sawyer Road, 5" Floor / Waltham, MA 02453 Tel: 781-647-6767 / Fax: 781-647-6755
www.waldenbehavioralcare.com



STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Dannel P. Malloy
Governor
Raul Pino, M.D., M.P.H.

- Nancy Wyman
Commissioner y Y

Lt. Governor

Office of Health Care Access

State of Connecticut
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access

Final Decision

Modification of a Previously
Authorized Certificate of Need

Applicant: Discovery Practice Management, Inc. d/b/a Center for

Discovery
4281 Katella Ave., #111, Los Alamitos, CA 90720

Docket Number: 16-32042-MDF

Project Description: Modification of Previous Certificate of Need
Authorization 15-32042-CON

Procedural History: On April 27, 2016, the Office of Health Care Access (“OHCA”) granted
a Certificate of Need (“CON”) to Discovery Practice Management, Inc. d/b/a Center for
Discovery (“Discovery’) under Docket Number 15-32042-CON for the establishment a 6-bed
mental health residential treatment facility for women with eating disorders at 1320 Mill Hill
Road, Fairfield, Connecticut.

On June 14, 2016, OHCA received a Request for Modification seeking to change the address of
the treatment facility. Deputy Commissioner Addo has reviewed the entire record in this matter.

Phone: (860) 418-7001 e Fax: (860) 418-7053
410 Capitol Avenue, P.O. Box 340308
e ool Hartford, Connecticut 06134-0308
of Public Health WWWCt.gOV/dph
Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer




Findings of Fact

1. Discovery was issued a CON under Docket Number 15-32042-CON to establish a 6-bed
mental health residential treatment facility for women with eating disorders at 1320 Mill Hill
Road, Fairfield, Connecticut (the “Facility™).

2. Discovery seeks to change the location of the Facility to 600 Wellington Dr., Fairfield,
Connecticut.

3. At the time the CON was issued, Discovery did not own or lease the property at 600
Wellington Dr., Fairfield, Connecticut,

4. Subsequent to the CON being issued, Discovery acquired the property at 600 Wellington Dr.,
Fairfield, Connecticut.

Discussion

Connecticut General Statutes § 4-181a (b) provides in relevant part: “On a showing of changed
conditions, the agency may reverse or modify the final decision, at any time, at the request of any
person or on the agency’s own motion.” Discovery is seeking to modify the location of the
Facility as a result of changed conditions related to the acquisition of property at 600 Wellington
Dr., Fairfield, Connecticut. The Applicant has sufficiently identified a change in conditions that
warrant the requested modification.

Order

Based upon the foregoing, the request to modify the CON issued under Docket Number 15-
32042-CON is hereby APPROVED.

7 halie t-;ik VMG (4 L&Q@

Date Yvonne T. Addo, MBA
Deputy Commissioner
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